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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 26 MAY 2021 

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning Mr Frankl in ,  good morning  

everybody.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Good morning Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   What  have we got  today? 

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Thank you Chai r  today we are  

convened for  the  cont inuat ion of  the SARS work  st ream 

evidence and in  par t i cu lar  fo r  Mr Moyane the  former 

Commissioner  of  SARS to g ive h is  ev idence.  

 But  Chai r  wi l l  recal l  that  Mr Moyane was due to  10 

test i fy  on the 25 t h  o f  March of  th is  year  but  submi t ted a  

le t ter  not i fy ing the commission on the 24 t h  o f  March that  he 

was i l l  and unable to  at tend so th is  is  the reschedu led date  

for  the hear ing of  Mr Moyane’s test imony.  

 Before Mr Moyane test i f ies,  however there are two 

pending appl icat ions to  cross-examine h im.  

 Fi rs t ly  f rom Mr Van Loggerenberg and secondly f rom 

Mr Symington both of  whom have a l ready g iven evidence 

before the commission and I  understand that  the Chai r  wi l l  

hear  these appl i cat ions at  the outset  o f  proceedings today.  20 

 Before that  happens Chai r,  there are a number of  my 

learned f r iends who are represent ing the var ious par t ies 

and who would l ike to  p lace themselves on record and 

would th is  be an appropr ia te t ime for  that?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes le t  us do that .   You can do i t  f rom 
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where you are i f  your  mic i s  work ing.   I f  i t  is  not  work ing 

you can approach the podium.    

ADV HUTTON SC:   Thank you Chai rperson.   Ross Hut ton  

for  Mr Loggerenberg on the ins t ruct ions of  Werksmans 

At torneys Mr Hotz .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  

ADV SEBOKO:   And I  Mr  Chai rman I  am Tiny Seboko.   I  

ass is t  Mr Moyane today on inst ruct ion Er ic  Mabuza 

At torneys.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   10 

ADV FOURIE:    Good morning Chai r.   I  am Greg Four ie .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV FOURIE:   I  represent  Mr V lok Symington on 

inst ruct ions f rom Mr Hotz of  Werksmans At to rneys.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   Okay a l l  r ight .   I  w i l l  s tar t  

wi th  the appl i cat ions and in  par t icu lar  we star t  wi th  Mr 

Loggerenberg ’s  appl i cat ion and thereaf ter  we wi l l  deal  wi th  

Mr Symington ’s appl i cat ion.    

 I  th ink i t  w i l l  be preferable that  when counsel  moves 

that  appl i cat ion they are at  the podium.   Somebody wi l l  20 

sani t i se the podium before he goes there.  

 Yes Mr Hut ton.  

ADV HUTTON SC:   Thank you Chai rperson.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HUTTON SC:   Chai rperson what  serves before  you at  
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the moment  is  an  appl i cat ion by in  terms of  the ru les of  th is  

commission on behal f  o f  Mr Johannes Hendr ikus Van 

Loggerenberg to  – for  leave to  c ross-examine Mr Moyane in  

terms of  the commission’s ru les.  

 We re ly  on two af f idavi ts  in  support  o f  that .   There is  

an aff idavi t  dated  the 17 t h  o f  March 2021 which commences 

at  paginated page 1 of  sequence 14 2021 003.    

 That  aff idavi t  serves two purposes.  Fi rs t l y  to  set  ou t  

fur ther  ev idence of  Mr Van Loggerenberg who by the way 

has a l ready test i f ied by cer ta in ly  in  par t  i f  not  complete ly  10 

some t ime ago – somet ime last  month – two months ago.   

 So there is  fur ther  ev idence conta ined in  th is  and i t  

sets out  the basis upon which Mr Van Loggerenberg seeks 

leave.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  understand that  there is  a  redacted 

aff idavi t  that  has been awai ted,  is  that  correct .  

ADV HUTTON SC:   Yes,  that  is  cor rect .  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  o ther  than that ,  i t  is  redacted i t  is  the 

same aff idavi t  tha t  we have had a l l  a long.  

ADV HUTTON SC:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   In  the appl i cat ion.  

ADV HUTTON SC:   I  have had a br ie f  opportuni ty  to  look at  

i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HUTTON SC:   I t  would appear  that  names of… 
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CHAIRPERSON:   Just  the names are ( ta lk ing over  one 

another )  

ADV HUTTON SC:   Names of  agents have been redacted 

out  and they have been renamed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay then i t  means now looks l ike that  

has been put  in to my f i le .  Ja.  

ADV HUTTON SC:   You wi l l  see the names are somewhat  

random.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV HUTTON SC:   They now have Kumo Hobbs etce tera.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja pseudo names.  

ADV HUTTON SC:   One would need a –  one would need a  

key.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV HUTTON SC:   To f ind out  who they are.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay no that  is  f ine.   I  have read the – Mr  

Van Loggerenberg ’s appl i cat ion –  h is  aff idavi t .   I  th ink I  

noted that  there are many areas in  h is  aff idavi t  where he 

says in  effect ,  there i s  no d ispute  between h is  vers ion and 

Mr Moyane’s vers ion on cer ta in  mat te rs.   He says Mr  20 

Moyane does not  d ispute th is  – does not  d ispute that  – does 

not  d ispute that  b la ,  b la ,  b la .   So that  is  the one aspect .  

 The second aspect  i s  that  as I  understand h is  

aff idavi t  he does not  say that  Mr  Moyane has made any 

a l legat ions against  h im having  been involved in  s tate 
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capture for  example.    

 I  th ink he does re fer  to  the uni ts  that  has been g iven 

d i f ferent  names.  

ADV HUTTON SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   As you may be aware.   The issue of  that  

un i t  was deal t  wi th  by the commission headed by  Just ice  

Nugent .  

ADV HUTTON SC:   That  is  correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And the – the at tempt  has been to  t ry  and 

not  dupl i cate what  that  commission has done wi thout  10 

necessar i ly  saying that  un i t  cannot  be ment ioned here.  

 You would have been I  assume you would have read 

my ru l ing in  re la t ion to  Mr Moyane’s appl i cat ion for  leave to  

cross-examine Min is ter  Gordhan where at  least  a t  that  

s tage the issue o f  that  un i t  was not  to  be covered but  there  

were cer ta in  00:08:48 that  happened af te r  that .  

 So I  ment ion these th ings because I  am in  –  more 

inc l ined to  grant  leave to  cross-examine to  people who are  

accused of  having been involved in  s tate capture and 

corrupt ion than people who s imply say I  wold l ike the  20 

opportuni ty  to  cross-examine th is  w i tness because he says I  

am ly ing or  he is  denying what  I  –  what  I  say he sa id.  

 So fo r  that  k ind of  i ssue my inc l inat ion is  the 

ev idence leaders  of  the commission p lay an adequate ro le  

to  take care of  that .   That  i s  my inc l inat ion.  
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 So having regard to  that  and you may of  course say I  

have missed out  someth ing in  th ink ing a long the l ines  that  I  

am th ink ing.   In  saying a l l  o f  that  we have got  to  go  back to  

the ru les of  the commission in  re la t ion to  appl i cat ions such 

as  these and they provide that  the Chai rperson may grant  

leave looking at  regu – at  a  Rule 3.7:  

“ In  accordance w i th  Regulat ion 8.3 there is  

no r ight  to  cross-examine a wi tness before  

the commission but  the Chai rperson may 

permi t  c ross-examinat ion should he deem i t  10 

necessary and in  the best  in terest  o f  the  

work of  the commission to  do so. ”  

 So even where  we are wi th  the work of  the 

commission want ing to  wrap up one has got  to  – I  have got  

to  th ink about  among other  th ings why should we add more  

work when we are  t ry ing to  wrap up.   But  obviously that  has 

got  to  be balanced against  the  in terest  and r ights of  

ind iv iduals but  a lso the publ i c  in te rest  i s  qu i te  important .  

 So you might  wish to  address me on those thoughts.  

ADV HUTTON SC:   Yes.   I  am fu l ly  cognisant  Chai rperson 20 

of  the t ime l imi ta t ions and t ime const ra in ts  on the  

commission at  th is  s tage.   I t  is  correct  that  Mr Van 

Loggerenberg is  not  accused of  be ing a state capturer  and 

that  broadly speaking the – the Nugent  Commission i f  I  may 

refer  to  ( inaudib le ) .   I  t raversed some of  that  –  some of  that  



26 MAY 2021 – DAY 403 
 

Page 9 of 221 
 

area a l though i t  d id  not  make – i t  d id  not  make fundamenta l  

f ind ings and I  –  in  re la t ion to  tha t .   I t  was essent ia l ly  a  

concluding comment  that  sa id that  I  –  word – and I  

paraphrase at  th is  s tage –  I  see noth ing wrong wi th  the 

establ ishment  of  the ( inaudib le )  I  see noth ing wrong wi th  

what  i t  d id  i f  i t  d id  – i f  someth ing i l legal  was done that  does 

not  mean that  the uni t  should have been d isbanded and i t  

seems to me that  i t  was a good th ing that  there was such a 

uni t .   That  i s  –  that  in  a nutshel l  is  what  Just ice Nugent  

found.  10 

 I  a lso appreciate the fact  that  Mr Van Loggerenberg 

has had h is  – has had a hear ing f rom you in  re la t ion to  in te r  

a l ia  the – the uni ts  – the uni ts ’ act i v i t ies – had h is  

opportuni ty  to  – to  p resent  that  ev idence to you.  

 I t  is  –  and I  a lso  fu l ly  understand that  i f  that  is  the 

commission’s ev idence leaders are in  a posi t ion to  tease 

out  any points – any points of  d ispute my v iew of  my ro le 

today when I  was prepar ing the shor t  t ime that  we had 

avai lab le is  that  I  would very much l ike to  cur ta i l  –  to  cur ta i l  

my quest ion ing of  Mr Moyane r ight  to  be g iven leave to  the 20 

events that  occurred immediate ly  af ter  the Sunday Times 

repor t  in  October  2014.  

 And you wi l l  see f rom – you wi l l  see that  there is  

fa i r l y  lengthy set t ing out  by Mr Van Loggerenberg  in  h is  

aff idavi t  in  suppor t  o f  the – h is  appl icat ion to  c ross-examine 
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which sets out  a  sequence of  events where Mr Moyane 

appeared having  just  arr i ved as  the Commissioner  and 

having read the Sunday Times on the Sunday i t  denounced 

the – to  denounce th is  ent i re  uni t  wi thout  fur ther  ado on the 

Monday by – by  sending out  a  memorandum to – to  the 

ent i re  s taff  workforce at  SARS where he on the face of  i t  

took a s ide wi thout  –  wi thout  fur ther  ado and he 

admonished the members of  the – of  the uni t .  

 What  then t ranspi red is  that  the members of  the uni t  

some s ix  of  them who were the remain ing members  at  that  10 

stage who were at  work sent  a  very,  very deta i led le t ter  to  

Mr Moyane where they – where they jo ined issue wi th  the 

a l legat ions that  had been made.  

 What  happened was that  the i r  fear  was tu rned that .   

They got  no – they got  no hear ing –  they got  no – the i r  

vo ice was not  heard and… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  am sorry to  in terpret  you Mr Hut ton.  

ADV HUTTON SC:   Cer ta in ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You see some o f  the th ings that  I  have 

seen I  th ink in  Mr  Van Loggerenberg ’s  aff idavi t  and I  do not  20 

know – I  cannot  remember whether  Mr Symington does the 

same.   He has ra ised issues that  are real l y  employer  /  

employee k ind of  issues you know.   Gr ievances about  how 

Mr Moyane deal t  wi th  cer ta in  i ssues and whi le  those have 

the i r  p lace and in  regard to  some mat te rs they have been 
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qu i te  important  in  the commission.  Some of  –  some of  those 

issues have been qui te  important .   But  that  has been l imi ted  

to  s i tuat ions where there  are  a l legat ions of  –  there were 

a l legat ions to  the effect  that  th is  employee were  – was 

being removed fo r  example as par t  o f  s tate capture and so 

on and so on.    

 But  a lso my inc l inat ion in  regard to  the issue that  

you say you wish to  l im i t  your  cross-examinat ion to  my 

inc l inat ion would be subject  to  the ev idence leader what  h is  

v iew is  in  te rms of  whether  he would inc lude that  issue in  10 

h is  quest ion ing o f  Mr Moyane my inc l inat ion would be why 

should that  not  be  le f t  to  Mr –  to  the ev idence leader  to  deal  

wi th?  

ADV HUTTON SC:   I  understand the posi t ion that  you are 

tak ing Mr Chai rperson and perhaps and I  am – th is  had 

cer ta in ly  crossed my mind whi le  I  was prepar ing that  

perhaps – perhaps we had th is  the wrong way round.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HUTTON SC:   Today.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

ADV HUTTON SC:   And that  my – my c l ient ’s  appl icat ion for  

leave to  c ross-examine perhaps proper ly  on ly a r ises  once – 

once Mr Moyane has g iven h is  ev idence in  ch ief  and has 

been led by the  

CHAIRPERSON:   Evidence leader.  
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ADV HUTTON SC:   By the ev idence leader and i f  a t  the end 

of  that  there are issues which are of  –  which are per t inent  

to  the – to  the commission or  a t  least  to  that  we bel ieve 

f rom our  s ide are per t inent  and would proper ly  be the – 

proper ly  fa l l  w i th in  the ambi t  o f  leg i t imate  cross-

examinat ion of  Mr  Moyane.  

 Not  s imply to  test  h is  credib i l i ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV HUTTON SC:   But  to  advance the pursui t  o f  t ru th.    

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    I  am sor ry I  have just  been advised 10 

that  there is  a  technica l  p roblem and we have been 

requested to  stop for  ten minutes whi le  the technica l  

problem is  resolved.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r ight .   Ja no somet imes these 

technica l  p roblems star t  as we are  t ry ing to  s tar t  then they 

star t .  

 Okay le t  us adjourn fo r  ten minutes .   

We adjourn.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 20 

CHAIRPERSON :    So I  see i t  took  longer  to  so lve  the  

prob lem but  le t  us  cont inue.   Yes,  you were  s t i l l  address ing  

me on some o f  the  issues tha t  I  ra ised.  

ADV HUTTON SC :    Yes.   I f  I  cou ld  jus t  go  back on  an 

issue tha t  you ra ised a t  the  ou tse t  and tha t  i s  tha t  
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Mr  Moyane has not  accused Mr  Van Loggerenberg  o f  be ing  

engaged in  the  s ta te  captu re  and the re fo re  he  is  no t  

imp l ica ted  in  tha t  sense and accord ing ly,  I  wou ld  –  I  –  you  

wou ld  pre fer  to  res t ra in  ou r  c ross-examinat ion  on  each 

person imp l ica ted  in  s ta te  captu re  as  Mr  Moyane has been.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

ADV HUTTON SC :    There  is  one  passage in  Mr  Moyane ’s  

a f f idav i t  tha t  runs  aga ins t  tha t . . .   [Speaker  unc lear ]   I  th ink  

the  content ion  tha t  Mr  Van Loggerenberg  has no t  been 

invo lved in  s ta te  capture  as  a  par t i c ipant  in  amongst (?)  10 

cor rec t .    

 Bu t  Mr  Moyane,  w i thout  ment ion ing  

Mr  Van Loggerenberg  by  name but  in  the  contex t  tha t  

Mr  Van Loggerenberg  was the  head,  a t  a l l  mater ia l  t imes,  

o f  th is  un i t .   He says the  fo l low ing a t  paragraph 31 o f  h is  

a f f idav i t  and tha t  i s  SARS-03746 WW7 Response 592.   He  

says the  fo l low ing:  

“More  s ign i f i can t ly  and o f  re levance to  the  

Commiss ion  is  the  fac t  tha t  the  un i t  c lea r ly  

car r ied  ou t  ex t ra  jud ic ia l  and un lawfu l  cover t  20 

in te l l igence ac t iv i t ies  thus crea t ing  a  para l le l  

in te l l igence serv i ce  wh ich  was not  accountab le  

to  any s t ruc ture  o f  Par l iament . . . ”  

 Th is ,  su re ly,  amounts   o f  the  capture  o f  s ta te  or  

some s ign i f i can t  par ts  thereof .   So th rough tha t  b road  
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s t roke . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV HUTTON SC :    He does.   He does.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]    

ADV HUTTON SC :    In  tha t  b road s t roke,  he  accuses  

everyone who was pa r t i c ipants  in  the  ac t iv i t ies  o f  the  un i t  

whethe r  go ing  back to  the  foundat ion  o f  the  un i t ,  the 

es tab l i shment  o f  the  un i t  o r  th rough i t s  l i fespan and 

Mr  Van Loggerenberg  was the  commander  o f  the  un i t ,  the 

manager  o f  the  un i t  fo r  tha t  re levant  per iod .   He is  indeed 10 

accused o f  be ing  a  s ta te  capture r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  maybe even i f  one has regard  to  

tha t ,  g iven the  to ta l i t y  o f  h is  a f f idav i t  and what  appears  to  

be  the  bas is  fo r  h is  app l i ca t ion ,  I  wou ld  s t i l l  be  inc l ined to  

–  o f  the  v iew tha t  i t  shou ld  be  adequate  i f  whatever  

in fo rmat ion  he  w ishes to  be  p laced before  the  Commiss ion  

tha t ,  one,  he  h imse l f  has been ab le  to  dea l  w i th  tha t  in  h is  

ev idence.   But  a lso  tha t  he  can fu rn ish  to  the  ev idence 

leader  whatever  perspect ives  or  in fo rmat ion  tha t  he  

requests  to  be  pu rsued in  the  ques t ion ing  o f  Mr  Moyane.   20 

 Obv ious ly,  the  ev idence leader  i s  no t  bound by  

tha t  bu t  in  h i s  d i sc re t ion  can look  a t  tha t  and see whethe r  

he  can put  some quest ions re la t ing  to  tha t .   So my  

inc l ina t ion  wou ld  be  tha t  where  he  has been g iven a  

chance to  g ive  ev idence and there fore  re fu te  whatever  Ms  
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Moyane has to  say and two,  Mr  Moyane w i l l  be  sub jec ted  to  

quest ion ing  by  the  ev idence leader  and in  th is  regard ,  one  

remembers  tha t  the  ru les  make i t  c lear  tha t  the  ev idence 

leader  i s  en t i t led  to  quest ion  a  w i tness w i th  a  v iew to 

es tab l i sh ing  the  t ru th .  

 That  I  wou ld  be  more  inc l ined to  say.   Why does 

he not  g ive  the  ev idence leader  whatever  he  wants  to  g ive  

h im or  d raw h i s  a t ten t ion  two and  the  ev idence leader  can 

cover  as  much as ,  obv ious ly,  in  h is  d iscre t ion  he  needs to  

cover.    10 

ADV HUTTON SC :    Can I  jus t  respond to  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HUTTON SC :    . . . to  one s ign i f i can t  par t  o f  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HUTTON SC :    . . .o f  what  you sa id ,  Mr  Cha i rpe rson?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

ADV HUTTON SC :    And i t  i s  th is .   As  we s tand  today,  

Mr  Van Loggerenberg ’s  ev idence i s  incomple te .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

ADV HUTTON SC :    Essent ia l l y,  the  Commiss ion  ran  ou t  o f  

t ime . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HUTTON SC :    . . .occas ion  la te  a f te rnoon or  even ing  

sess ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HUTTON SC :    . . .and had to  te rm inate .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HUTTON SC :    I t  has  no t  been ind i ca ted  to  

Mr  Van Loggerenberg  when or  i f  indeed a t  a l l ,  he  wou ld  be  

ca l led  back to  cont inue.  

CHAIRPERSON :    There  i s  an  i n ten t ion  to  g i ve  h im an 

oppor tun i ty  to  comple te .    

ADV HUTTON SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Frank l in ,  has been remind ing  me 10 

about  tha t  ou ts tand ing  issue.   So there  is  an  in ten t ion  – o f  

course  we a re  t ry ing  to  wrap up but  i t  has  no t  been 

fo rgo t ten  and the  in ten t ion  is  to  f ind  some t ime to  comple te  

i t .  

ADV HUTTON SC :    A l r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HUTTON SC :    Wel l ,  tha t  does  g ive  us  some comfor t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .   Cer ta in ly,  there  i s  tha t  in ten t ion  

ja .   

ADV HUTTON SC :    Because there  are  two aspects .   There  20 

are  two d is t inc t  aspects  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HUTTON SC :    . . . in  Mr  Van Loggerenberg ’s  ev idence.   

One o f  wh ich  is  re levant  to  Mr  Moyane.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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ADV HUTTON SC :    Bu t  the  o ther  i s  –  a re  in  a  comple te ly  

d i f fe ren t  s t ream.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HUTTON SC :    And he was requested a f te r  he  

tes t i f ied  on  the  prev ious occas ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HUTTON SC :    . . . to  subm i t  fu r ther  ev idence not  

re la ted  to  SARS but  say  ra ther  re la ted  to  the  SSA 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  10 

ADV HUTTON SC :    . . .and i t s  in te rvent ions.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HUTTON SC :    That  has been . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  do  remember  tha t .  

ADV HUTTON SC :    That  has been led  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HUTTON SC :    . . . th rough Mr  Pre tor ius ’ s t ream,  as  I  

unders tand i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   I  do  remember  tha t  when  

Mr  Van Loggerenberg  was g iv ing  ev idence the  las t  t ime 20 

when he was f in i sh ing ,  there  was  an ind ica t ion  tha t  there  

was qu i te  some ev idence tha t  shou ld  be  p laced before  –  I  

cannot  remember  whethe r  i t  i s  law enforcement  agenc ies  

or  SARS.  

ADV HUTTON SC :    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Or  mat te rs  tha t  were  known to  h im but  

he  cou ld  no t  dea l  w i th  them.  

ADV HUTTON SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because i t  remained c lass i f ied  or  

someth ing  to  tha t  e f fec t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV HUTTON SC :    Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    And I  encourage h im to  p lace  tha t  be fore  

the  re levant  au thor i t ies .   

ADV HUTTON SC :    Yes.   I  do  no t  want  to  p reamp tha t  

ev idence a t  a l l .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HUTTON SC :    Because i t  is  no t  –  in  e f fec t  remains  

in . . .   [Speaker  unc lea r ]    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV HUTTON SC :    Bu t  there  are  one o r  two po in ts  where  

there  is  a  c ross-over.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV HUTTON SC :    And i t  i s ,  you know,  i t  wou ld  cer ta in ly  

be  comfor t ing  to  us  to  know tha t  Mr  Van Loggerenberg  w i l l  

have h i s  oppor tun i ty  . . . [ in te rvenes ]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HUTTON SC :    . . . in  re la t ion  to  bo th  aspec ts .  The  

comple t ion  o f  h is  SARS ev idence and then h is  tes t imony in  

re la t ion  to  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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ADV HUTTON SC :    Bu t  I  am not  ask ing  i f  a  ru l ing  in  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   No,  no ,  no  I  –  a l l  I  can  say is  tha t  

there  cer ta in ly  i s  an  in ten t ion  tha t  he  be  g iven an 

oppor tun i ty  to  comple te  the  ev idence tha t  he  d id  no t  

comple te .   Obv ious ly,  the  ev idence leader  w i l l  have a  c lear  

idea o f  what  remained.  

ADV HUTTON SC :    Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON :    So  i f  i t  i s  f ine  w i th  you.   I  wou ld  l i ke  to  

g ive  you the  l as t  f i ve  m inutes  i f  you  have any  fu r ther  10 

submiss ion  to  make.  

ADV HUTTON SC :    Yes.   Yes,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HUTTON SC :    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.   Cha i rperson,  

I  am in  somewhat  o f  a  d i lemma because the re  are  two  

avenues.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HUTTON SC :    Two avenues open a t  the  moment .   The  

one is  to  request  you to  end th is  a rgument  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  up  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

ADV HUTTON SC :    . . .and a l low me to  take  i t  up  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HUTTON SC :    . . . i f  –  ja ,  i f  war ran ted . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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ADV HUTTON SC :    . . .a f te r  the  ev idence leader  has 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am qu i te  happy to  do  tha t  i f  you  pre fer  

tha t  to  say . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV HUTTON SC :    I  am not  sure  what  I  p re fer.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   [ laughs]    

ADV HUTTON SC :    [ laughs]    

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  you  have  very  l i t t le  t ime to  make 

up your  m ind.   [ laughs]    

ADV HUTTON SC :    Yes.   The obv ious . . . [ in te rvenes ]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HUTTON SC :    . . . the  obv ious o ther  po in t  i s  to  do  what  

I  had been br ie fed  to  do .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HUTTON SC :    And tha t  i s  ask ing  you to  make a  ru l ing  

now.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  h ’m.  

ADV HUTTON SC :    The d i f f i cu l t y  w i th  ask ing  you to  make 

a  ru l ing  now is  tha t  I  am not  p r ivy  to  what  the  ev idence 

leader  has prepared today and I  do  no t  know what  a reas he  20 

in tends to  t raverse  and i t  may put  the  ev idence leader  in  a  

b i t  o f  a  t r i cky  pos i t ion  i f  he  sudden ly  to  f ind  h imse l f  in  a 

pos i t ion  where  he  has to  qu i ck l y  i nvo lve  h imse l f  in  mat te rs  

tha t  he  an t ic ipa ted  wou ld  be  dea l t  w i th  in  c ross-

examinat ion  on  beha l f  o f  Mr  Van Loggerenberg .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  can  dec ide  fo r  you.   [ laughs]    

ADV HUTTON SC :    [ laughs]    

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  us  de fer  i t  bu t  the  –  so  tha t  you can  

take  a  v iew a f te r  Mr  Moyane has f in ished h i s  ev idence.  

ADV HUTTON SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Take a  v iew whether  you pursue i t  o r  no t  

and then we can take  i t  f rom there  bu t  we are  no t  

contempla t ing  –  I  am not  contempla t ing  tha t  there  wou ld  be  

much to  say a f te r  tha t  in  te rms o f  a rgument  bu t  you might  

have one or  two po in ts  to  make ar is ing  ou t  o f  m is te r  o r  the  10 

ev idence tha t  Mr  Moyane wou ld  have g iven as  to  how i t  

impacts  on  the  app l i ca t ion .  

ADV HUTTON SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HUTTON SC :    Yes.   Thank you,  Cha i rpe rson.   I  th ink  

tha t  tha t  i s  p robab ly  the  sens ib le  way to  do  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

ADV HUTTON SC :    And a t  leas t  by  the  t ime tha t  the  

ev idence is  comp le te  . . . [ in te rvenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

ADV HUTTON SC :    . . . I  w i l l  have c la r i t y  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

ADV HUTTON SC :    . . .as  to  whe ther  there  i s  –  there  are  

po in ts  s t i l l  to  be  dea l t  w i th .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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ADV HUTTON SC :    And there  w i l l  cer ta in ly,  I  imag ine ,  be  

some nar row doubt (?)  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HUTTON SC :    . . .a  b road,  b road  canvass 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HUTTON SC :    . . . there  m ight  be .   One s t ream or  one –  

maybe jus t  a  few quest ions . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HUTTON SC :    . . .on  those aspects .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja-no,  tha t  i s  f ine .   That  i s  f ine .   A l r igh t .  

ADV HUTTON SC :    Wel l ,  then I  p lace  my leave  fo r  the 

moment .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HUTTON SC :    I  w i l l  re tu rn  to  my p lace.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   [ laughs]    

ADV HUTTON SC :    And I  w i l l  l i s ten  ve ry  care fu l l y.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  so  th is  app l i ca t ion  is  s t i l l  no t  done 

unt i l  Mr  Moyane has f in ished ev idence.    

ADV HUTTON SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   Le t  me have the  o ther  

app l i ca t ion .    

ADV FOURIE :    Good morn ing ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Good morn ing ,  Mr  Four ie .  

ADV FOURIE :    Cha i r,  in  l igh t  o f  the  rou te  tha t  en t i re  
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app l i ca t ion  has taken.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV FOURIE :    I  wou ld  ask  tha t  th is  app l i ca t ion  a lso  s tand  

down . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV FOURIE :    . . . in  conc lus ion  o f  the  ev idence  leaders  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV FOURIE :    . . . lead ing  Mr  Moyane.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  I  th ink  tha t  makes sense.  10 

ADV FOURIE :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  thank you.   Th i s  app l i ca t ion  is  a lso  

s tood down unt i l  Mr  Moyane has comple ted  h is  ev idence.   

Thank you.   Good  morn ing ,  Mr  Moyane.  

MR MOYANE :    Good morn ing ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you fo r  ava i l ing  yourse l f  to  g ive 

ev idence.   You d id  say tha t  you wou ld  come and you wou ld  

g ive  ev idence and you wou ld  ava i l  you rse l f  fo r  ques t ion ing .   

So thank you fo r  ava i l ing  yourse l f .  

MR MOYANE :    Thank you very  much,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Frank l in .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Cha i r,  wou ld  i t  be  

o f  any ass is tance i f  I  wou ld  g i ve  my ind ica t ion  in  re la t ion  

to  the  app l i ca t ions to  c ross-examine now,  jus t  very  b r ie f l y?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  th ink  i t  m igh t  he lp .   Ja .  
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ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Thank you .   In  b r ie f ,  Cha i r.   The  

a t t i tude tha t  I  take  as  Ev idence  Leader  i s  tha t  I  wou ld  

suppor t  bo th  app l i ca t ions fo r  the  s imp le  reason tha t  i t  w i l l  

fac i l i ta te  the  comple t ion  o f  the  tes t imony o f  Mr  Moyane.   I t  

w i l l  no t ,  as  mat te rs  a re  p lanned,  impe l  the  l i ke l ihood o f  

f in ish ing  o r  no t .   A t  the  end o f  the  day,  we on ly  have a  day,  

as  you know.    

 The prepara t ion  has been done on tha t  bas is ,  on  

tha t  assumpt ion ,  perhaps,  whether  i t  was cor rec t  o r  no t .   

And i f  I  am ent i t led  to  c ross-examine on the  top i cs ,  then I  10 

take  i t  there  –  i t  i s  permiss ib le  fo r  my lea rned f r iends to  

l i kewise  do  so .   You,  as  Cha i r,  o f  course ,  wou ld  no t  a l low 

dup l i ca t ion  in  respect  o f  top ics  tha t  I  have  a l ready 

covered.   

 So in  due course ,  when you make a  f ina l  

dec is ion  on  i t ,  I  wou ld  cer ta in ly  request  tha t  the  

app l i ca t ions be  g ranted on tha t  bas is  and on the  bas is  and  

unders tand ing  tha t  there  w i l l  be  very  l im i ted  and focussed 

cross-examinat ion  on  par t i cu la r  top ics .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  you  can,  I  wou ld  l i ke  you to  cover  20 

every th ing  tha t  shou ld  be  covered because tha t  i s  what  

normal ly  happens.   Obv ious ly,  i f  you  have covered 

every th ing  tha t  shou ld  be  covered and i f  leave to  c ross-

examinat ion  is  g ran ted,  then the  cross-examinat ion  can  

focus on  rea l l y  impor tan t  aspects .   So ra ther  than tha t  
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a reas a re  le f t  ou t  when you quest ion .   So i f  you  are  ab le  

to ,  I  wou ld  l i ke  you to  cover  every th ing  bu t  obv ious ly  i f  I  

g ran t  leave to  c ross-examine,  then I  wou ld  take  i t  that  

wou ld  fac i l i ta te  th ings.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   But  i f  there  are  cha l lenges,  you  

wou ld  le t  me know.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Mr  Moyane to  be  sworn  in .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   P lease  admin is te r  the  oa th  or  

a f f i rmat ion .  

REGISTRAR:    P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

WITNESS:    My name is   Thomas Swabih i  Moyane.  

REGISTRAR:    Do you have any ob jec t ion  in  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

WITNESS:    No.  

REGISTRAR:    Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  

WITNESS:    Yes.  20 

REGISTRAR:    Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence 

you w i l l  g ive ,  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ,  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

bu t  the  t ru th?   I f  so ,  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and say,  

so  he lp  me God.  

WITNESS:    So  he lp  me God.  
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THOMAS SWABIHI  MOYANE :   (d .s .s )  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you,  Mr  Moyane.  

EXAMINATION BY ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   

Good morn ing ,  Mr  Moyane.  

MR MOYANE :    Good morn ing ,  s i r.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    You can conf i rm tha t  you are  

tes t i f y ing  today pursuant  to  a  subpoena wh ich  was  served  

on you on the  19 t h  o f  May o f  2021?  

MR MOYANE :    Yes,  I  do .   But  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  address the  

Cha i r  be fo re  I  do .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   I  th ink  your  

counse l  had ind ica ted  in  chambers  tha t  you wou ld  make a  

request  to  address me in  an  open ing  s ta tement  fo r  about  

ten  m inutes  or  so .   P lease do so .  

COUNSEL :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

MR MOYANE :    Cha i rperson . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry.   I  have not  seen what  you are  

go ing  to  read.   I  p re fe r  –  I  a lways pre fe r  to  see i t  in  case i t  

imp l ica tes  peop le  who have not  been not i f ied .   You are  

shak ing  your  head to  suggest  tha t  i t  does not  imp l ica te  20 

anybody.   I s  tha t  r igh t .  

MR MOYANE :    That  i s  r igh t ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r i gh t .   That  i s  f ine .   And you keep 

your  m ic  on  th roughout .   Ja .  

MR MOYANE :    Cha i rperson,  thank  you very  much fo r  your  
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we lcoming address de l i vered th i s  morn ing  wh ich  I  found a  

b i t  cont rad i c to ry  to  the  le t te r  tha t  I  rece ived.   F i r s t l y,  

addressed to  someone in  th is  meet ing .   I  d id  convey  to  the  

lady who ca l led  me on Wednesday,  cons ider ing  tha t  a l l  

mater ia l  t imes I  and the  team,  my lega l  team,  presented 

ourse l ves when we were  requested  to  do  so .   

 I ,  th rough my counse l ,  ind ica ted  tha t  I  am wi l l i ng 

to  ass is t  the  Commiss ion  a t  a l l  t imes.   So to  be  d i scharged  

o f  respons ib i l i t i es  in  the  manner  tha t  the  cons t i tu t ion 

a l lows i t .   Cha i rperson,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  pu t  i t  on  record .   I  10 

found as  somewhat  conf ron ta t iona l (? ) .  [Speaker  unc lear ]    

 From my f i rs t  a f f idav i t  deposed  in  September  

2018,  a t  a l l  subsequent  subm iss ions I  a f f i rmed my 

w i l l i ngness to  suppor t  you,  Cha i rpe rson,  and the  

Commiss ion  and  my counse l  has  counse l  has a lso  on  

severa l  occas ions a f f i rmed th i s  pos i t ion  in  the  appearances  

tha t  we made.  

 The quest ion  tha t  begs to  be  answered is  tha t  

why the  summons th is  t ime around and the  ru le  o f  the  law 

to  be  used aga ins t  me as  a  c r im ina l .   The man who 20 

dragged my name in to  the  Commiss ion  has under  oa th  

admi t ted  tha t  the re  was no ev idence and re l ied  en t i re ly  on  

goss ip .   I  incur red  lega l  expenses o f  such a  goss ip .  

 Dur ing  the  f i rs t  c ross -examinat ion  o f  Mr  

Gordhan,  my lega l  counse l  was g iven an hour  and i t  looked  
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very  odd to  me tha t  th is  man,  the  Min is te r,  had made  

ser ious and unfounded a l legat ions  leve l led  aga ins t  me.   He 

was g iven l im i t less  t ime so  tha t  he  can ran t  and cast  my 

name and reputa t ion .  

 Le t  me address my appo in tment  as  a  

Commiss ioner  o f  SARS.   I  was appo in ted  as  a  

Commiss ioner  fo r  SARS on the  25 t h  o f  September  2014 by  

the  fo rmer  Pres ident  Jacob Zuma.   Cha i rpe rson,  le t  me 

dea l  w i th  my remova l  as  a  Commiss ioner.   My remova l  f rom 

SARS was a  we l l -o rchest ra ted  process.    10 

 On Satu rday a f t e rnoon on the  16 t h  o f  March 

2018,  I  rece ived a  ca l l  f rom my o f f i ce  tha t  the  Pres ident ,  

Mr  Ramaphosa w ishes to  meet  w i th  me on Sunday,  the  

17 t h  o f  March  2018 a t  h is  p r iva te  res idence a t  22 :00 .   I  du ly  

conf i rmed my a t tendance.  

 La ter  tha t  a f te rnoon,  I  saw an ar t i c le  on  News24  

wr i t ten  by  a  person,  René(? )  Bodnoches(?)  and Sam 

Koke le(?)  B loomberg ,  t i t led :   “Expect  to  Soon See New 

Leadersh ip  a t  SARS – Gordhan”   In  th is  a r t i c le  –  I  am 

read ing  i t ,  Gordhan is  quoted:  20 

 I  quote :  

“ I t  i s  ou t  there  in  the  pub l i c  domain  tha t  

leadersh ip  team has los t  c red ib i l i t y  and the  

t ime fo r  change,  i t  shou ld  be  sooner  ra ther  

than la te r. ”  
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 Fur ther  down the  l ine  the  ar t i c les  a l ludes,  I  

quote :  

“Moyane ’s  remova l  f rom SARS is  imminent  and 

he w i l l  be  pu t  to  Cab ine t . ”  

 Th is  was based on a  Bus iness Day Newspaper  

repor t  on  14  March w i thout  say ing  where  i t  go t  the  

in fo rmat ion .   The  meet ing  be tween me and the  Pres ident  

on  Sunday even ing ,  ominous t im ing ,  d id  conf i rm in  no t  so  

many words th i s  p lo t .   There  was no d i scuss ion  about  my  

per fo rmance or  lack  thereof  be tween me and the  P res ident .   10 

The Pres ident ,  Mr  Cyr i l  Ramaphosa s imp ly  in t imated or  

p ro jec ted  outcome as per  the  ou tgo had a l ready out l ined.   

Low and beho ld  on  March 2018,  I  was suspended.    

 Le t  me address issues around Judge Nugent ’s  

inqu i ry  and repor t .    

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Cha i r,  I  am sor ry  to  in te r rup t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    I  am not  cer ta in  what  the  pu rpose o f  

th is  so -ca l led  open ing  s ta tement  i s .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  20 

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    There  is  no  prov is ion  fo r  a  w i tness 

to  g ive  an  open ing  s ta tement .   Of  course ,  i t  i s  g raph ica l l y  

permiss ib le  fo r  a  w i tness ’s  counse l  to  p lace  mat te rs  on  

record  bu t  i t  appears  tha t  Mr  Moyane now wishes  to  use  

th is  oppor tun i ty  to  t raverse  a  number  o f  top ics  and  g ives  
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h is  ve rs ion  on  i t .   Wi th  respect ,  tha t  i s  no t  permi t ted .   He 

is  he re  to  be  lead  and h is  ev idence  to  be  p laced before  the  

Commiss ion  and he can g ive  h is  answers  in  the  course  o f  

tha t .   But  he  has  begun w i th  an  a t tack  o r  c r i t i c i sm  o f  the  

Commiss ion  fo r  hav ing  summonsed  h im.    

 Then he has fo l lowed w i th  an  a t tack  on  Min i s te r  

Gordhan and then i t  appears  he  w ishes to  c r i t i c i se  the  

Pres ident  fo r  remov ing  h im as Commiss ioner.   None o f  tha t  

i s  leg i t imate ,  w i th  respect .   And  I  wou ld  ob jec t  to  h im 

cont inu ing  w i th  such a  s ta tement .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Wel l ,  I  have a l lowed to  peop le  to  

make,  what  some have ca l led  open ing  remarks  or  open ing  

s ta tements ,  and in  regard  to  tha t ,  they  have touched upon 

some o f  the  issues tha t  they wou ld  be  g iv ing  ev idence on.   

I  th ink ,  my assessment  i s  tha t  Mr  Moyane has probab ly  

used about  f i ve  m inutes  and is  le f t  w i th  another  f i ve  

m inutes .   I  wou ld  a l low h im,  as  long as  i t  s t i cks  w i th in  the 

issues tha t  re la te  to  h im and SARS.   But  jus  bear  i n  m ind,  

Mr  Moyane,  you  promised me tha t  i t  w i l l  no t  imp l ica te  

anybody.   Okay a l r igh t .    20 

MR MOYANE :    Cha i r,  as  fa r  as  I  am concerned.   I  have  

jus t  up  to  thus fa r,  I  have not  imp l ica ted  anybody.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Wel l ,  le t  –  cont inue.  

MR MOYANE :    Cha i rperson,  Judge Nugent  was ins t ruc ted  

to  fo l low the  scr ip t .   He met  sec re t ly  w i th  Min i s te r  Gordhan  
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to  d iscuss the  ou tcome.   “Get  Tom out  as  soon as  

poss ib le ” .   In  tha t  commiss ion  I  was be la ted ly  inv i t ed  and I  

was the  cause o f  the  es tab l i shment  o f  tha t  un i t .   I t  i s  

common cause,  Cha i rperson,  tha t  on  the  5 t h  o f  October  

2014,  jus t  when I  was jus t  been appo in ted ,  med ia  repor t s  

and exposé convened.  

 I  convened an urgent . . .  where  I  requested tha t  I  

to  be  taken the  cour t  in  conf idence about  th is  mat te r  

a round the  Rogue un i t ,  share  the  ou tcome wi th  the 

Min is te r.   He was  qu i te  upset  abou t  the  deve lopments  as  i t  10 

impacted negat ive ly  on  the  ins t i tu t ion  and the  reputa t ion  

thereof .   A week  la te r,  on  the  12 t h  o f  October  2014,  another  

exposé was pub l i shed.  

 I  met  w i th  the  Min is te r,  Nene,  in  the  even ing  a t  

O.R.  Tambo A i rpor t .   I  was ex t remely  angry  and annoyed 

about  th is  repor t .   I  in fo rmed h im tha t  I  now had a  sense  

tha t  I  have exco  members  tha t  a re  sh ie ld ing  each o ther  

over  the  wrongdo ing  tha t  was  happen ing  w i th in  the  

organ isa t ion  and  a t  the  t ime I  cannot  be  ab le  to  re ly  on  

the i r  adv ice  and coopera t ion .  20 

 The repor t s  by  Muz i  S ikhakhane and Peter  

R icher,  invest iga t ive  jou rna l i s ts  were  ins igh t fu l  and  

worr isome on the  reputa t ion  o f  the  organ isa t ion .   The 

repor t  by  Advoca te  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  on  the  14 t h  o f  August  in to  

mul t ip le  a l legat ions o f  impropr ie ty  w i th in  the  o rgan isa t ion  
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was deemed inconc lus i ve  and Advocate  Muz i  S ikhakhane ’s  

pane l  was appo in ted  on the  5 t h  o f  September  2014 by  Ivan 

P i l lay  immedia te ly,  submi t ted  a  repor t  bu t  ind ica ted  tha t  

there  was a  pr ima fac ie  ev idence o f  the  ex is tence o f  a  

rogue un i t .    

 The es tab l i shment  o f  the  un i t  w i thout  tak ing  the  

requ is i te  s ta tu to ry  au thor i t y  was un lawfu l ,  pr ima fac ie  

ev idence tha t  the  un i t  may have  abused i t s  power  and 

resources by  engag ing  in  ac t i v i t ies  bu t  res id ing  the  o ther  

agenc ies  o f  government  in  wh ich  they had no  lawfu l  10 

au thor i t y.    

 Cha i rperson,  I  want  to  conf i rm  here  tha t  I  

l i t e ra l l y  wa lked in to  a  m idd le  o f  a  s to rm tha t  has been 

brewing over  a  long t ime.   I  had the  oppor tun i ty,  over  t ime,  

to  meet  some,  i f  no t  a l l ,  o f  those members  who were  

ment ioned.   A l l  members  o f  th is  un i t  were  issued w i th  fake  

ident i t y  ca rds ,  s igned by  the  commiss ioner  then  wh ich  

sh ie lded them f rom be ing  on do ing  the i r  i l l ega l  ac t i v i t ies  in  

the  event  they were  caught  ou t .   

 I  have a  copy o f  such a  document  tha t  ind ica tes  20 

they had fake  documents .   There  is  a  copy,  Cha i rperson,  

wh ich  I  w i l l  g ive  i t  to  yourse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  am no t  sure  about  tha t  par t ,  

Mr  Moyane.   That  m ight  be  imp l ica t ing  peop le  in  

wrongdo ing  tha t  par t  o f  what  you have sa id  bu t  con t inue.  
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MR MOYANE :    Wel l ,  tha t  ac tua l l y  was g i ven to  your  –  to  

the  team as an  annexure  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MOYANE :    . . . in  my prev ious a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .  

MR MOYANE :    Cha i r,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  ind ica te  tha t  the  

rogue un i t  members  d id  approach  me and two o f  them and 

two submi t ted  where  they have sa id  there  is  a  c r im ina l ,  

they  thought  tha t  on ly  death  wou ld  save them.   The 

confess ion  was e labora ted  in  de ta i l  on  how they embarked,  10 

in te rcepted,  l i s tened and then v ideo- recorded ac t iv i t ies  o f  

the  NPA’s  o f f i ces ,  leaders  o f  the  SAPS and Scorp ion  

Pro jec t  Codename Sunday Even ing .   These co l leagues 

were  ins t ruc ted  by  Ivan P i l lay  to  co l labora te  w i th  the 

consp i racy  leaders  whose name is  ment ioned  in  the  

record ing  who prov ided the  fund ing  in  the  opera t i on ,  the 

sum to ta l  o f  one mi l l ion  was used fo r  th is  opera t ion .  

The t ransc r ip t  o f  th is  confess ion  i s  p rov ided to  the  

Commiss ion  fo r  ease o f  re fe rence.   Perhaps i f  these were  

prov ided in  to  the  med ia  in  an  aud io  fo rm,  South  A f r i cans 20 

w i l l  be  ab le  to  wake up to  the  [ ind is t inc t ]  l i es  tha t  were  

da i l y  fed .   I t  is  in  th is  Commiss ion  tha t  Mr  Gordhan  

admi t ted  dur ing  c ross-examinat ion  under  oa th  tha t  th is  un i t  

ex i s ted  a f te r  f ru i t less  a t tempts  t o  deny and sh ie ld  i t s  

ex i s tence.  
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Cha i rperson was  dragged in to  th is  s ta te  capture  

meet ing  and there  was no substant ia ted  ev idence to  

p rov ide  ev idence to  tha t  e f fec t .   I t  is  sa id  tha t  I  lay  charges  

aga ins t  Mr  Gordhan to  the  po l i ce  and the  Hawks and  

fa lse ly  so ,  tha t  I  was in  pu rsu i t  to  the  end o f  the  s ta te  

capture  and more  spec i f i ca l l y  in  the  execu t ion  o f  

consp i racy  master -m inded by  the  fo rmer  Pres ident  to  

remove h im f rom the  pos i t ion  o f  the  m in is te r  wh ich  I  den ied  

emphat ica l l y  and wh ich  was den ied  here  in  your  p resence.  

I  am ext remely  aghast  a t  th is  b razen a t tempt  to  p lace  me 10 

as  a  proponent  o f  s ta te  capture  and ta rn ish  my reputa t ion  

and image to  suggest  tha t  I  in f luenced the  fo rmer  

Pres ident  to  f i re  h im as a  Min i s te r  o f  F inance  is  jus t  

p reposterous because I  have no author i t y  o r  power  over  

the  Pres ident .   He appo in ts  and d ismisses min is te rs  a t  h i s  

w i l l .  

Qu ick ly,  Cha i rperson,  dur ing  my tenure  a t  SARS for  

th ree  consecut ive  years  I  was ab le  to  de l i ver  and  per fo rm  

s ter l ing ly  and these a re  tabu la ted  as  fo l lows.  

Dur ing  the  2014/2015 f inanc ia l  year  SARS co l lec ted  906 20 

b i l l i on  aga ins t  the  ta rge t  o f  979 ind ica t ing  a  surp lus  o f  7 .3 

b i l l i on .   Th is  t rans la ted  to  9 .6% growth  f rom the  prev ious  

year  and tax  to  GDP ra t io  was 25.7%.  

In  the  2015/2016  f inanc ia l  year  we co l lec ted  1 .69  

t r i l l i on  aga ins t  a  ta rge t  o f  1 .69 .7  ind ica t ing  a  surp lus  o f  
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200 mi l l ion ,  8 .5  g rowth  f rom the  prev ious years  and the  tax  

to  GDP rose to  26 .2%.  

Dur ing  the  2016/2017 f inanc ia l  year  SARS co l lec ted  

1 .144 t r i l l i on  aga ins t  a  ta rge t  o f  the  same number  wh ich  

means we were  on  ta rge t  and  th is  ind i ca ted  we had a 

growth  o f  6 .9  on  the  prev ious year  and the  tax  to  GDP was 

26.1 .  

And f ina l l y,  jus t  when I  was  removed as  a 

Commiss ioner  o f  SARS the  resu l ts  were  as  fo l lows:  

2017/2018 f inanc ia l  year  SARS co l lec ted  1 .216.6  10 

t r i l l i on  aga ins t  a  ta rge t  tha t  had  on ly  m issed the  

ta rge t  by  mere  700 mi l l ion .  

Cha i r,  in  conc lus ion ,  I  want  to  a ff i rm here  tha t  I  want  to  

ind ica te  tha t  on  the  29  September  when  I  was 

Commiss ioner  fo r  SARS I  had a  very  funny ca l l  f rom Mr  

Gordhan ins t ruc t ing  my team and my PA to  come to  h im to  

be  congra tu la ted  as  a  Commiss ioner  bu t  due to  the  

ac t i v i t ies  tha t  I  had a t  the  t ime I  cou ld  no t  do  so .    

Lo  and beho ld  on  the  23  October  2015 a t  a  med ium 

term budget  po l i cy  s ta tement  wh ich  was to  be  de l i vered by  20 

the  fo rmer  Min i s te r  Nene,  Mr  Prav in  wa lked in to  the  

Nat iona l  Assembly  and approached the  box wh ich  the  DGs 

were  s i t t ing ,  he  was shak ing  hands  w i th  everyone.   When i t  

was my tu rn ,  I  s tood up and ex tended my hand,  he  passed 

me and he gree ted everybody.   When a l l  was done,  he  
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came back to  me and he sa id :  

“Tom,  i t  i s  no t  done”  

In  a  v is ib ly  angry  tone…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    He sa id?  

MR MOYANE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  p lease repea t  what  tha t… 

MR MOYANE:    Tom –  when he had done the  greet i ngs o f   

 everybody he came back to  me and he sa id ,  I  quote :  

“Tom,  i t  i s  no t  done”  

In  a  v is ib ly  angry  tone and my response was:  10 

“What  i s  i t  tha t  i s  no t  done,  S i r? ”  

And h is  response  was:  

“Why d id  you not  re tu rn  my ca l l  o r  contac t  me?”  

I  was shocked.   L i t t le  d id  I  know tha t  th is  ep isode  

was to  repeat  i t se l f  on  the  15  December  2015 a  day 

a f te r  h is  appo in tment  as  the  Min i s te r  o f  F inance by  

the  fo rmer  Pres ident  Jacob Zuma.   I  rece ived a  ca l l  

f rom h is  o f f i ce  tha t  the  m in is te r  want  to  have a  one-

to -one meet ing  w i th  me a t  SARS a round ten  o ’c lock .   

I  wa i t  fo r  h im outs ide  my o f f i ce  together  w i th  the  20 

Deputy  Min i s te r  then Mceb is i  Jonas.   Upon h is  

a r r i va l  I  ex tended my hand to  g reet  h im.   He  

shouted a t  the  top  o f  h is  vo ice  in  fu l l  v iew o f  s ta f f  

tha t  a re  ga thered  outs ide :  

“Do not  shake my  hand!   Shake the  DM f i rs t ! ”  
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Then –  whom I  had a l ready comple ted  fo rmal i t ies  

w i th  –  I  conta ined my d i sbe l ie f  and anger  a t  be ing  

t rea ted  as  a  leper.   He sa id  to  me:  

“D id  you not  know tha t  I  wou ld  be  coming back?”  

Th is  was conf ron ta t iona l  and an abuse o f  power  a t  

the  h ighest  o rder  and I  was not  go ing  to  accept  and  

a l low i t  to  go  uncha l lenged.   He moved away  

momentar i l y  to  a t tend to  a  phone ca l l .   I  expressed  

my d i sp leasure  to  Mr  Jonas and I  to ld  h im in  my  

own language tha t  [speak ing  in  the  vernacu la r ] .   10 

L i te ra l l y  t rans la ted :  

“Deputy  Min i s te r  he  w i l l  never  aga in  repeat  th is  

t ype o f  a t t i tude. ”  

And I  sa id  to  h im,  I  am d isappo in ted  w i th  you,  DM,  

fo r  keep ing  qu ie t  in  v iew o f  such unbecoming 

behav iou r  o f  the  Min is te r .   I  had  to  ind ica te  I  had 

acr imon ious re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Mr  Gordhan f rom the  

t ime he re turned a t  SARS.   He was a lways shout ing  

and I  f ina l l y  re ta l ia ted  in  k ind  when h i s  uncouth  

behav iou r  showed i t se l f  aga in  in  a reco rded 20 

te lephone t ransc r ip t  p rov ided to  the  Commiss ion ,  I  

had i r re fu tab le  proof  tha t  the  man is  a  vowed rac i s t  

and [ ind i s t inc t ]  condescend ing .    

In  conc lus ion ,  Cha i rperson,  I  appea l  to  the  Cha i r  

tha t  in  your  repor t  to  p ronounce and make a  
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de terminat ion  tha t  Mr  Gordhan spoke f rom goss ip 

and jea lous l y  b l i nded by  h i s  rac is t  a t t i tude towards 

me.   Mr  Gordhan  must  no t  make h is  p rob lems wi th  

the  fo rmer  Pres ident  my bus iness.   I  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  thank you,  Mr  Moyane.   Jus t  fo r  

c la r i f i ca t ion ,  you  know,  I  a l low these open ing  s ta tements ,  

open ing  remarks  s imp ly  because I  see them as par t  o f  the 

peop le  or  w i tnesses get t ing  a  chance to  pu t  across  the  

main  po in t s  o f  what  i s  o f  concern  to  them or  the i r  s ide  o f  

the  s to ry  so  I  have a l lowed o thers ,  so  you have been 10 

a l lowed as  we l l .    

Okay,  we can cont inue.   I  th ink  t he  one th ing  wh ich  

I  shou ld  say someth ing  about  and maybe Mr  Frank l i n  m ight  

o r  m ight  have someth ing  to  say  about  i s  the  i ssue o f  a  

summons.   I  th ink  you expressed  concern  as  to  why you 

were  served w i th  a  summons in  the  c i rcumstances  where  

fo r  a  long t ime you had made c lear  tha t  you wou ld  make  

yourse l f  ava i lab le  to  the  Commiss ion .    

There  have been o ther  w i tnesses who have  

expressed the  same concern .   One o f  them is  Mr  Br ian  20 

Mole fe  because he sa id  a l so  he  was surpr ised tha t  he  was  

served w i th  a  summons in  c i rcumstances where  he  had 

made i t  known to  the  Commiss ion  tha t  he  wanted to  come 

and g ive  ev idence.  

The reason may we l l  be  tha t  because we are  – we  
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have t ime const ra in ts  now,  i f  we do not  serve  you  w i th  a  

summons,  a l though you may be w i l l i ng  to  come and ass i s t  

the  Commiss ion ,  tha t  da te  m ight  be  a  da te  where  you  

pre fe r  to  do  someth ing  e l se  and then we do not  wan t  to  ge t  

in  lengthy  d i scuss ions about  da tes  so  tha t  you wou ld  on l y  

ask  fo r  anothe r  da te  i f  rea l l y  the re  is  someth ing  ser ious  

tha t  p revents  you f rom coming tha t  day.   So i t  m igh t  –  i t  

p robab ly  has no th ing  to  do  w i th  th ink ing  tha t  you wou ld  no t  

come,  i t  i s  a  ques t ion  o f  t ry ing  to  use our  t ime proper ly  and  

mak ing  sure  tha t  un less  somebody  rea l l y  has a  ser ious and 10 

va l id  reason they wou ld  come.   So tha t  wou ld  be  my 

th ink ing  in  te rms  o f  the  summons.   As  I  sa id  ear l ie r  on  to  

you,  I  do  know tha t  you have made i t  c lear  in  your  a f f idav i t  

be fore  th is  Commiss ion  and to  your  counse l  tha t  you w i l l  

ava i l  yourse l f  to  g ive  ev idence and to  be  quest ioned on the  

mat te rs  tha t  the  Commiss ion  is  look ing  in to .   Okay,  Mr  

Frank l in?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   I f  we cou ld  then 

proceed,  Mr  Moyane?  You were  the  fo rmer  Commiss ioner  

o f  the  South  A f r i can Revenue Serv i ces ,  we w i l l  desc r ibe  as  20 

SARS,  i f  you  can conf i rm tha t?  

MR MOYANE:    Yes,  I  was.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And you  he ld  the  pos i t ion  f rom 

September  o f  2014 unt i l  October  o f  2018,  a  per iod  o f  jus t  

over  four  years .  
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MR MOYANE:    Cor rec t .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    You have deposed to  a  number  o f  

a f f idav i t s  be fore  the  Commiss ion .   I  wou ld  l i ke  to  go  to  

some o f  those p lease.   You w i l l  have around you a  number  

o f  bund les  and I  am go ing  to  re fer  you to  var ious bund les  

and ask  you to  look  a t  them and no doubt  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Somebody w i l l  ass i s t  you,  Mr  Moyane,  to  

f ind  those f i les .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes,  the  f i rs t  one I  w i l l  ask  you to  

look  a t ,  there  is  SARS bund le  03 .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    You might  w ish  to  use tha t  space  

because you do not  have a  lo t  o f  space there ,  you might  

w ish  to  move some o f  the  f i les  –  ja ,  okay.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    P lease w i l l  you  tu rn  to  page  SARS-

03-012 and jus t  fo r  you r  o r ien ta t ion ,  whenever  I  re fe r  to  

page numbers ,  I  re fe r  to  the  b lack  numbers  on  the  top  le f t  

hand s ide  o f  the  page.   Do you have page 012?  Top le f t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  shou ld  be  the  beg inn ing  o f  your  

a f f idav i t .   I  th ink  Mr  Moyane –  can  you he lp  h im,  i t  i s  page 

12,  b lack  numbers  a t  the  top  le f t  corne r  o f  the  page,  i t  i s  20 

wr i t ten  SARS-03-012.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Do you have tha t  now? 

MR MOYANE:    I  am now fami l ia r.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Good,  tha t  i s  a  w i tness s ta tement  o f  

a  Mr  Thomas Moyane,  tha t  i s  your  name,  i s  i t?  
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MR MOYANE:    Yes,  i t  i s .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    P lease tu rn  to  page 36 o f  the  same 

bund le .    

MR MOYANE:    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    There  is  a  s ignature  a t  the  bo t tom o f  

the  page,  i s  tha t  your  s ignatu re?  

MR MOYANE:    I t  i s .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And do you conf i rm the  t ru th  and  

accuracy o f  the  contents  o f  th is  a f f idav i t?  

MR MOYANE:    Yes,  I  do .  10 

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Cha i r ,  may  I  ask  tha t  i t  be  admi t ted  

as  EXHIBIT WW6,  the  w i tness a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Thomas 

Moyane?  

CHAIRPERSON :    The a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Thomas Swabih i  

Moyane tha t  s ta r ts  a t  page 12 is  admi t ted  as  an  exh ib i t  and 

w i l l  be  marked as  EXHIBIT WW6.  

AFFIDAVIT  OF THOMAS SWABIHI  MOYANE STARTING 

AT PAGE 12 HANDED IN AS EXHIBIT  WW6 

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Thank you ,  Cha i r .   Can I  ask  you  

p lease,  Mr  Moyane,  to  keep tha t  par t i cu la r  vo lume and tha t  20 

par t i cu la r  a f f idav i t  open in  f ron t  o f  you because I  w i l l  be 

re fer r i ng  to  i t  on  a  number  o f  occas ions.  

 I  wou ld  now l i ke  to  ident i f y  ce r ta in  fu r ther  a f f idav i t s .   

Cha i r ,  i t  does not  appear  to  be  necessary  tha t  they be  

admi t ted  as  exh ib i t s  bu t  jus t  fo r  the  w i tness ’  o r ien ta t ion  
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and yours ,  may I  p lace  these on record?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :   Mr  Moyane,  you probab ly  do  no t  

remember  the  da tes ,  e tce te ra ,  bu t  i f  you  w ish  to  look  a t  

any o f  the  a f f idav i t s  tha t  I  am about  to  l i s t  then p lease le t  

me know.   F i r s t l y ,  you brought  an  app l i ca t ion  to  c ross-

examine Min is te r  Gordhan in  December  o f  2018,  cor rec t?  

MR MOYANE:    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And you f i led  an  a f f idav i t  in  found ing  

in  tha t  app l i ca t ion  on  the  13  December  2018.   I  am go ing  10 

to  g ive  the  re ference.   That  i s  in  app l i ca t ion  bund le  N fo r  

November  3  and  i t  i s  f rom pages  TSM3 to  15 .   I t  i s  no t  

necessary  fo r  you to  go  to  each o f  them un less  you want  

you.   I  am jus t  go ing  to  ident i f y  them   Do you reca l l  a  

found ing  a f f idav i t  in  tha t  app l i ca t ion?  

MR MOYANE:    I  take  tha t  you are  cor rec t  and you w i l l  

d i rec t  me in  the  r igh t  d i rec t ion .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Thank you.   Then on the  1  February  

2019 you deposed to  a  supp lementary  a f f idav i t  in  the  same 

proceed ings and tha t  too  is  in  app l i ca t ion  bund le  N3,  the  20 

page is  TSM260 to  268,  tha t  i s  the  second.   The next  i s  the  

rep l y ing  a f f idav i t  on  the  5  March 2019,  tha t  i s  a lso  in  

app l i ca t ion  bund le  N3,  page TSM690 to  709 and then the  

four th ,  as  I  have i t ,  i s  da ted  the  15  January  2020,  tha t  i s  in  

app l i ca t ion  bund le  N3A a t  page TSM944 to  974.    
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 Now re turn ing ,  Mr  Moyane,  to  the  w i tness a f f idav i t  –  

I  w i l l  ca l l  i t  the  w i tness a f f idav i t ,  tha t  I  f i rs t  po in ted  you to  

and wh ich  you have open in  f ron t  o f  you.   

 I  jus t  want  to  ask  you some prepara to ry  quest ions  

in  re la t ion  to  tha t .   Can you conf i rm to  the  Cha i r  a t  the  

t ime you deposed to  tha t  a f f idav i t  on  the  3  March o f  2021  

you had rece ived  so-ca l led  Ru le  3 .3  no t ices  tha t  you were  

imp l ica ted  in  a l leged wrongdo ing  by  Mr  Wi l l iams o f  Ba ins .   

Do you reca l l  tha t?  

MR MOYANE:    I  reca l l  tha t .  10 

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And  Mr  Symington o f  SARS.   Do you  

reca l l  tha t?  

MR MOYANE:    I  reca l l  tha t .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And Mr  van  Loggerenberg ,  a  fo rmer  

employee o f  SARS.   Do you conf i rm tha t?  

MR MOYANE:    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And you were  g iven the  re levant  

par t s  o f  the i r  respect ive  a f f idav i t s  fo r  you to  cons ider ,  

cor rec t?  

MR MOYANE:    Cor rec t .  20 

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And  you took those a l legat ions in to  

account  when compi l ing  your  w i tness s ta tement  in  o rder  to  

answer  those a l legat ions as  best  as  you cou ld ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR MOYANE:    Cor rec t .  
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ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And tha t  is  what  you have  done in  

your  w i tness s ta tement ,  you have va r ious in t roductory  

comments  and then your  unders tand ing  o f  s ta te  capture  

and then you have separa te  pa r ts  o f  the  a f f idav i t  in  wh ich  

you dea l  w i th  a l legat ions made aga ins t  you by  Min is te r  

Gordhan,  f i rs t l y ,  and then a lso  Messrs  Wi l l iams,  Symington 

and Van Loggerenberg  under  separa te  head ings,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR MOYANE:    Cor rec t .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And you are  aware ,  Mr  Moyane,  tha t  10 

a l l  th ree  o f  the  peop le  tha t  I  have ment ioned who have 

tes t i f ied  here  under  the  SARS work  s t ream,  tha t  i s  

Wi l l iams,  Syming ton and Van Loggerenberg ,  have tes t i f ied  

in  th is  Commiss ion  on  the  24 t h ,  25 t h  and 26  March .   Can I  

ask  d id  you l i s ten  to  the i r  tes t imony when they were  g iv ing  

i t  on  l i ve  s t reaming?  

MR MOYANE:    I  was not  we l l ,  as  you cou ld  see tha t  there  

was document  tha t  was even here ,  so  there  was no way  

tha t  I  cou ld  hear,  I  d id  no t  fo l low the i r. . .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    So  you d id  no t  fo l low.  20 

MR MOYANE:    No.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Bu t  subsequent  to  tha t ,  the  

t ranscr ip t  o f  the i r  tes t imony has  been up loaded  to  the 

Commiss ion ’s  webs i te ,  you are  aware  o f  tha t?  

MR MOYANE:    Yes,  I  am.  
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ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And I  take  i t  you  have read those  

t ranscr ip ts?  

MR MOYANE:    I  had oppor tun i ty  to .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    A l r igh t  and then a l l  th ree  o f  those 

gent lemen a lso  p rov ided s ta tements  to  the  Commiss ion  and  

I  unders tand tha t  the  s ta tements  o f  Mr  Wi l l iams and Mr  

Symington have  been up loaded  to  the  Commiss ion ’ s  

webs i te  and have  you s im i la r ly  had the  oppor tun i ty  to  read 

those s ta tements?  

MR MOYANE:    Yes,  I  have.  10 

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    A l r igh t .   I f  I  cou ld  then ask  you to  

look  a t  you r  w i tness a f f idav i t .   F i rs t l y  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    And tha t  i s  EXHIBIT WW6? 

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    I  w i l l  ca l l  tha t  your  w i tness a f f idav i t ,  

Mr  Moyane,  tha t  i s  what  you have ca l led  i t  so  you know 

what  I  am ta lk ing  about .   Wou ld  you look p lease a t  

parag raph 7  f i rs t l y?   And the re  you  say:  

“The main  purpose o f  these submiss ions is  to  20 

suppor t  my s t rong ly  he ld  asser t ion  tha t  a t  a l l  

mater ia l  t imes:  

1 .  I  was never  invo lved in  f raud,  cor rup t ion ,  money  

launder ing  and s im i la r  c r imes.  

2 .  I  am cer ta in ly  no t  gu i l t y  o f  s ta te  captu re ,  as  I  
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unders tand the  te rm,  o r  as  i t  i s  genera l l y  

unders tood,  and  

3 .  On the  cont ra ry  I  was p r ivy  to  in fo rmat ion  wh ich  

is  l i ke ly  to  imp l ica te  some o f  my accusers  in  

some act iv i t ies  wh ich  may or  no t  fa l l  under  the  

genera l  rub r ic  o f  s ta te  capture . ”  

That  i s  what  you have sa id  and then p lease look a t  para  72  

on page 36,  r igh t  a t  the  end o f  the  a f f idav i t .   You have sa id  

there  and I  quote :  

“ I  there fore  humbly  request  tha t  any a l legat ions o f  10 

s ta te  captu re ,  cor rup t ion  or  f raud (o r  any o the r  

c r ime)  leve l led  aga ins t  me by  these accusers  mus t  

acco rd ing ly  be  spec i f i ca l l y  re jec ted  and tha t  a  

f ind ing  to  tha t  e f fec t  be  made in  the  Commiss ion ’s  

repor t  tha t  w i l l  go  a  long way towards res tor ing  my  

human d ign i ty  wh ich  has been mal i c ious l y  

ta rn ished,  most  p robab ly  fo r  the  sake o f  po l i t i ca l  

exped iency. ”  

Do you s tand by  those s ta tements  wh ich  you made  in  your  

a f f idav i t?  20 

MR MOYANE:    Yes,  I  do .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And the  essent ia l  message tha t  you 

convey to  the  Cha i r  i s  t ha t  you main ta in  your  i nnocence 

and you deny any invo l vement  in  s ta te  captu re ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  
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MR MOYANE:    Cor rec t .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Mr  Moyane,  you w i l l  know by now 

tha t  the  s tance  tha t  you take  in  wh ich  you main ta in  

innocence and a  den ia l  o f  any invo lvement  i s  in  s ta rk  

cont ras t  to  what  the  SARS wi tnesses have sa id .   You 

unders tand tha t?  

MR MOYANE:    I  am not  su re  what  the  SARS ev idence –  

SARS wi tnesses sa id .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Wel l ,  when I  ta lk  about  the  SARS 

wi tnesses,  I  am ta lk ing  about  Mr  Wi l l iams,  Mr  Symington 10 

and Mr  van Loggerenberg .   You say you read the i r  

tes t imony.  

MR MOYANE:    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And a t  p laced in  the i r  tes t imony they 

make a l legat ions aga ins t  you in  re la t ion  to  your  conduct  a t  

SARS which  are  negat ive  and wh ich  they say demonst ra tes  

tha t  you were  invo l ved in  s ta te  capture .   You are  aware  

tha t  tha t  i s  what  they a l lege?  

MR MOYANE:    Yes,  wh ich  I  re fu te .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  to  c la r i f y ,  Mr  Frank l in ,  a l though you 

inc lude Mr  Wi l l iams when you say SARS’  w i tnesses o f  

course  he was not  f rom SARS,  i t  i s  jus t  tha t  he  tes t i f ied  

under  the  SARS work  s t ream.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Thank you fo r  the  c la r i f i ca t ion ,  
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Cha i r ,  I  have s imp ly  used tha t  labe l  fo r  the  w i tnesses who  

tes t i f ied  under  the  SARS work  s t ream.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Bu t  you unders tand the  po in t  the  

Cha i r  i s  mak ing ,  Mr  Wi l l iams was a  fo rmer  Ba in  Consu l t ing  

employee.   You know tha t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    So tha t  i s  the  f i rs t  g roup o f  peop le  

and then you are  probab ly  aware  and I  w i l l  take  you to  th is ,  

tha t  Ba in  Consu l t ing  –  I  w i l l  s imp ly  ca l l  them Ba in ,  have 10 

themse lves pub l i c ly  sa id  i n  South  A f r i ca  tha t  the i r  ro le  in  

SARS was a  d i sas ter  and tha t  you yourse l f  had a  pa r t i cu la r  

agenda.   I  take  i t  you  read those  s ta tements  in  la te  2018  

wh ich  were  pu t  ou t  in  the  med ia?  

MR MOYANE:    Yes,  I  read,  i t  i s  jus t  un for tunate  tha t  Ba in  

has to  make tha t  s ta tement ,  i t  i s  jus t  un for tunate .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    I  am sor ry ,  I  d id  no t  hear?  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry ,  jus t  repeat?  

MR MOYANE:    I  am say ing  i t  i s  un for tunate l y  tha t  they 

made tha t  s ta tement .  20 

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    A l r igh t  and then the  th i rd  ca tegory  

tha t  I  wou ld  re fer  to  i s  the  f ind ings in  the  Nugent  

Commiss ion  f ina l  repor t  wh ich  was issued in  December  o f  

2018.   You have re fer red  to  i t  in  your  open ing  s ta tement .   I  

take  i t  you  have read tha t  repor t  and you have seen what  
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f ind ings were  made aga ins t  you.  

MR MOYANE:    Yes,  ja ,  i t  i s  h is  f ind ings.   I  do  no t  th ink 

tha t  there  is  any mer i t s  because I  was not  par t  to  i t .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Sor ry ,  I  d id  no t  …[ in tervenes]  

MR MOYANE:    As  I  ind ica ted  tha t  i t  was  a  we l l -

o rchest ra ted  process,  I  was not  par ty  to  i t ,  i t  was a  

dec is ion  taken by  Nugent  and h is  t eam.  

CHAIRPERSON :    As  you tes t i f y ,  Mr  Moyane,  i f  you can t ry  

and fac t  me.  

MR MOYANE:    Okay.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    So  tha t  –  because I  am the  one you are  

te l l ing  the  s to ry .  

MR MOYANE:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.    

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  o f  course ,  the  ev idence leader  i s  

ask ing  the  quest i ons I  am not  say ing  do  not  look  a t  h im,  so  

–  a l r igh t .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes a t  th is  s tage I  s imp ly  wanted to  

es tab l i sh  t ha t  you have read tha t  f ina l  repor t  and you  20 

conf i rm tha t  you have,  co r rec t?  

MR MOYANE:    I  was not  g i ven the  f ina l  repor t .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Bu t  I  thought  you sa id  you had read 

i t .  

MR MOYANE:    Yes bu t  the  repor t  was not  g i ven to  me 
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ADV FRANKLIN SC :    R igh t  bu t  no t  –  desp i te  i t  no t  be ing 

g iven to  you,  you  got  access to  i t  and you read i t?  

MR MOYANE:    No,  I  d id  no t  have t ime to  read i t  because I  

fe l t  tha t  i t  had no th ing  to  do  w i th  me,  i t  was a  mee t ing  tha t  

–  an  inqu i ry  tha t  was done outs ide  my scope.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Mr  Moyane,  un less  I  am mis taken,  a  

few moments  ago you sa id  you d id  read the  repor t .   D id  

you or  d id  you no t?  

MR MOYANE:    No,  I  read the  repor ts  o f  the  two 

gent lemen,  the  th ree  peop le  who  came here  and tes t i f ied ,  10 

Van Loggerenberg ,  Wi l l iams and [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  

vo i ce ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  I  am so r ry ,  I  jus t  want  to  make 

sure  I  unders tand.   Are  you say ing  tha t  you read what  

some o f  the  w i tnesses who tes t i f ied  sa id  about  what  the  

repor t  says?  

MR.  MOYANE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You d id  no t  read  the  ac tua l  repor t?  

MR MOYANE:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  20 

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Jus t  so  tha t  there  i s  no  I  

m isunders tand ing  about  tha t ,  Mr  Moyane,  a re  you  te l l ing 

th is  Commiss ion  tha t  as  you s i t  here  on  the  26  May 2021 

you have s t i l l  no t  read the  f ina l  repor t  da ted  the  11 

December  2018 o f  the  Commiss ion  o f  Inqu i ry  in to  Tax 
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Admin is t ra t ion  and Governance by  SARS which  we ca l l  the  

Nugent  repor t?   I s  tha t  what  you a re  say ing?  

MR MOYANE:    That  i s  what  I  am say ing .    

CHAIRPERSON :    And the  in te r im repor t ,  d id  you read tha t  

one?  

MR MOYANE:    No,  I  d id  no t  read i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You a lso  d id  no t  read tha t  one.  

MR MOYANE:    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    You were  the  s i t t ing  Commiss ioner  

o f  SARS a t  the  t ime …[ in tervenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  one second,  Mr  Frank l in?   I  thought  

tha t  –  I  unders tood when I  was dea l ing  w i th  your  

app l i ca t ion  fo r  l eave to  c ross-examine Mr  Gordhan I  

unders tood tha t  your  pos i t ion  was tha t  e i ther  you were  

in tend ing  to  take  tha t  repor t  on  rev iew or  you had a l ready 

launched a  rev iew.   I  am not  sure  wh ich  one.   So based on 

tha t  I  wou ld  have assumed tha t  you had read the  repor t ,  

tha t  tha t  was a  I  m isunders tand ing?   

MR MOYANE:    Cha i r ,  le t  me c la r i f y ,  thanks fo r  b r ing ing  

tha t  to  my a t ten t ion .   When the  repor t  was f ina l l y  –  20 

whatever  the  in te r im,  the  f ina l  repor t  was made,  I  met  w i th  

my counse l  and they gave me a  résumé o f  what  the  repor t  

i s  a l l  about .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MOYANE:    I ,  as  Tom Moyane,  d id  no t  read tha t .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    A l r igh t ,  I  had h igh l igh ted  fo r  you tha t  

on  the  one hand you have sa id  tha t  you are  innocent  and 

on the  o ther  the re  i s  th is  body o f  ev idence aga ins t  you and 

there fo re  i t  i s  necessary  to  exp lore  th is  p lease.   So i f  I  

may jus t  concent ra te  f i rs t l y  on  Ba in .   You are  fami l ia r  w i th  

the  company Ba in  Consu l t ing?  

MR MOYANE:    Yes,  I  do .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    They were  appo in ted  as  a  serv i ce  

prov ider  to  SARS f i rs t l y  in  January  o f  2015,  co r rec t?  10 

MR MOYANE:    Cor rec t .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And then the i r  cont rac t  was  

ex tended on va r ious occas ions thereaf te r  in  2015,2016 and  

2017 and tha t  they per fo rmed serv i ces  fo r  SARS for  

approx imate l y  th ree  years  in  to ta l ,  cor rec t?  

MR MOYANE:    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And th i s  was a l l  why you were  

Commiss ioner  o f  SARS,  cor rec t?  

MR MOYANE:    Cor rec t .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    You sa id  to  the  Cha i r  tha t  you reca l l  20 

tha t  Ba in  made pub l i c  s ta tements  in  2018 and I  want  to  

take  you p lease to  one o f  those and I  am go ing  to  ask  you  

p lease to  take  out  SARS bund le  01 .   Do you have tha t?  

P lease tu rn  to  annexure  AW45,  tha t  i s  a t  page SAR01-252.   

Jus t  to  o r ien ta te  you,  Mr  Moyane,  these are  annexures to  
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Mr  Wi l l iams’  s ta tement .  

MR MOYANE:    You say SARS0. .?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    01 ,  page 252.   You have tha t?  

MR MOYANE:    Ja .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:     Thank  you,  tha t  i s  a  pub l i c  

s ta tement  i ssued by  Ba in  on  17 –  on  or  about  17  December 

2018,  so  th is  i s  what  the  consu l t ing  company put  ou t  in to  

the  pub l ic  domain ,  you are  f ree  to  read the  en t i re  

document  i f  you  w ish ,  bu t  I  jus t  want  to  h igh l igh t  cer ta in  

par t s  o f  i t .   On the  f i rs t  page,  252,  on  the  le f t  hand s ide  o f  10 

the  page,  th is  i s  how they open:  

“The past  few  months have  been a  h igh ly  

cha l leng ing  and  sober ing  per iod  fo r  Ba in  South  

A f r i ca  and Ba in  g loba l l y  th rough  pub l i c  tes t imony  

and documents  submi t ted  a t  the  Commiss ion  o f  

Inqu i ry  headed by  Judge Nugen t ,  i t  has  become 

pa in fu l l y  ev ident  tha t  the  f i rm 's  invo lvement  w i th  the  

South  A f r i can Revenue Serv i ce ,  SARS,  was  a  

ser ious fa i lu re  fo r  South  A f r i ca ,  and SARS and  

c lea r ly  fo r  Ba in  too .   The Commiss ions hear ings 20 

and the  f ina l  repor t  pub l i shed las t  week,  have la id  

bare  the  d isar ray  in  wh ich  SARS now f inds  i t se l f  

w i th  bo th  mora le  and per fo rmance severe l y  

damaged. ”  

I  am jus t  s topp ing  the re .  What  i s  your  react ion  to  tha t  
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conc lus ion  by  Ba in ,  what  do  you say about  tha t?  

MR MOYANE:    Cha i r  as  I  sa id ,  i t  i s  an  un fo r tunate  

s ta tement  because the  work  tha t  I  have been ab le  to  do  

dur ing  my tenure  and the  t ime  tha t  I  was g iven th is  

oppor tun i ty,  the  resu l ts  a re  very  c lear  tha t  i t  was th rough  

the i r  counse l l ing  and ass is tance tha t  we have been ab le  to  

ach ieve the  resu l ts  tha t  we were  ab le  to  repor t  here  to  

yourse l f .   

So I  do  no t  see why th is  cou ld  be  seen as  a  ser ious 

fa i lu re  when the  resu l ts  a re  g la r i ng ly  c lea r,  to  everybody.   10 

That  i t  i s  th rough the  work  tha t  they have done w i th  th is  

tha t  we ach ieved th is  s te r l ing  work .  So as  I  sa id ,  i t  i s  

un for tunate ,  m is in fo rmed.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    A l r igh t ,  so  you say tha t…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on one second,  Mr  Frank l in .   Try  

and not  be  too  fa r  f rom the  mic  because I  th ink  as  you 

speak,  some words do  not  come th rough and we want  them 

to  be  recorded,  okay,  cont inue Mr  Frank l in .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Thank you ,  so  I  unders tand  you to  

d isagree w i th  tha t  conc lus ion ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?   20 

MR MOYANE:    I  do .   

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Then p lease tu rn  to  page 254 on the  

r igh t  hand s ide ,  there  is  a  head ing  absence o f  pub l i c  

sec tor  p ro toco ls .   Do you have tha t?   

MR MOYANE:   H ’m.  
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ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Now the  fo l low ing is  sa id :  

“On ly  a  smal l  p ropor t ion  m inus 5% s ince 2010 o f  

our  work  in  South  A f r i ca  i s  fo r  the  pub l i c  sec to r.  As  

a  resu l t ,  there  was a  lack  o f  s t rong pub l i c  sec to r  

capab i l i t y  o r  unders tand ing  o f  pub l i c  sec tor  

p ro toco ls . ”  

And th is  i s  the  impor tan t  par t :  

“ In  h inds igh t ,  there  i s  ev idence to  suggest  tha t  Mr  

Moyane was pursu ing  a  pe rsona l  po l i t i ca l  agenda a t  

SARS.   P roper  due d i l igence on  Mr  Moyane may 10 

have ident i f ied  th is  r i sk . ”  

So once aga in ,  t here  is  a  spec i f i c  a l legat ion  tha t  i s  made 

pub l i c ly  by  Ba in  wh ich  was the  se rv ice  prov ider  du r ing  the  

t ime tha t  you were  Commiss ioner  aga ins t  you,  and what  i s  

your  react ion  to  tha t  a l legat ion?  

MR MOYANE:    P reposte rous:  

“That  in  h inds igh t  there  i s  ev idence to  suggest  tha t  

Mr  Moyane was pursu ing  a  persona l  po l i t i ca l  

agenda a t  SARS. ”  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Yes.   20 

MR MOYANE:    I  th ink  they cou ld  have done much bet te r  to  

p rov ide  c lear  aspects  as  to  what  th is  po l i t i ca l  agenda is  a l l  

about ,  i t  i s  to  genera l .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    So  you d isagree w i th  i t…[ in te rvene]  

MR MOYANE:    Comple te ly.   
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ADV FRANKLIN SC:    R igh t ,  in  fac t ,  i f  one looks  a t  your  

w i tness s ta tements ,  back to  tha t  one,  wh ich  I  hope you 

have handy,  a t  pa rag raph 66.  

MR MOYANE:    Cha i r,  w i th  your  pe rmiss ion  Mr  Frank l in ,  le t  

me address you to  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MOYANE:    I  f ind  i t  very  ha rd  tha t…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    You are  speak ing  to  th is  paragraph? 

MR MOYANE:    Ja ,  in  h inds igh t ,  there  is  ev idence to  

suggest  tha t  Mr  Moyane was pursu ing  a  persona l  po l i t i ca l  10 

agenda a t  SARS.   SARS is  a revenue se rv i ce  no t  a  po l i t i ca l  

ins t i tu t ion ,  c lea r l y  de f ined tasks  and respons ib i l i t i es .   So i t  

shou ld  have been very  c lear  fo r  them to  prov ide  tha t  t ype  

o f  l ine  o f  th ink ing  as  to  what  po l i t i ca l  agenda tha t  I  was 

pursu ing .   

I  was dea l ing  w i th  tax  payers ,  I  was dea l ing  w i th  bus iness,  

capta ins  o f  indus t ry.   So there  is  no t  t ime fo r  po l i t i cs  a t  

SARS.   We dea l  w i th  techn ica l  i ssues tha t  re la te  to  the  

l i ves  o f  South  A f r i cans,  espec ia l l y  f rom a  f inanc ia l  and  

f i sca l  aspect .  So tha t  s ta tement  i s  jus t  un for tunate ,  a lso .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Mr  Frank l in .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    A l r igh t .   I  had asked you to  look  a t  

your  w i tness s ta tement  parag raph 66.13,  i t  appears  a t  

SARS  03 /034.  

MR MOYANE:    66?  
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ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Po in t  13 .   

MR MOYANE:    Got  i t .   

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    A l r igh t ,  and here  hav ing  dea l t  

w i th…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  i s  the  page 66?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    No,  no  i t  i s  34 ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Page 34,  yes ,  you can cont inue.   

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Thank you.   I  want  to  read jus t  par t  

o f  th is  paragraph ,  you can read the  who le  lo t  i f  you  w ish  

and i t  s ta r ts :  10 

“However,  I  can assure  the  Commiss ion  tha t  there  

was noth ing  un toward  or  i r regu lar  about  Ba in ’s  

subsequent  appo in tment .   Indeed,  I  can s ta te  

w i thout  any fea r  o f  cont rad ic t ion  tha t  the  Ba in /SARS 

re la t ionsh ip  y ie lded the  best  resu l ts  ever  recorded  

in  the  en t i re  h i s to ry  o f  SARS. ”  

So s topp ing  there  Mr  Moyane I  unders tand you to  say tha t ,  

the  fa r  f rom be ing  th is  be ing  a  d isas te r  fo r  the  count ry,  and 

fo r  SARS and fo r  Ba in  in  fac t ,  i t  was a  great  success,  i s  

tha t  cor rec t?  20 

MR MOYANE:    I t  was a  g reat  success,  Cha i r  bu t  le t  me 

underp in  the  fo l low ing.  In  my open ing  s ta tement  

Cha i rperson,  I  d id  ind i ca te  tha t  dur ing  those f inanc ia l  

years ,  we produce s ter l ing  resu l ts ,  wh ich  are  h i s to r i ca l  and  

there fo re  I  f ind  i t  very  s t range fo r  somebody to  come and 
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say  he re ,  tha t  i t  was a  d isas ter.   

I t  was h is to r ica l  and everybody accepted tha t  the  

team a t  SARS had worked and put  a  shou lde r  in to  the  

work .   Now,  to  make th is  cur ious a l legat ions tha t  we d id 

no t  -  we made,  we made great  s t r ides  to  pu t  Sou th  A f r i ca  

where  i t  i s  supposed to  be  and these f igures  are  no t  thumb 

sucked and th i s  f igures  are  no t  f rom Moyane.   These are  

f igures  f rom the  organ isa t ion  and  these were  accepted by  

the  Nat iona l  Treasury  and the  count ry.   So i t  i s  no t  

numbers  tha t  were  crunched somewhere  fo r  exped iency o f  10 

the  par t i cu la r  person or  ind i v idua ls  here .   I  there fo re ,  

s tand by  my s ta tement  tha t  tha t  re la t ionsh ip  was benef ic ia l  

to  the  count ry.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    You see what  i s  apparent ,  Mr  

Moyane and what  i s  o f  course  o f  in te res t  to  the 

Commiss ion ,  i s  the  enormous  d isconnect ,  tha t  there  

appears  to  be  be tween,  fo r  ins tance,  what  Ba in  sa id  

pub l i c ly,  and wha t  w i tnesses have sa id  in  th is  Commiss ion  

and what  you main ta in .   You accept  tha t  there  is  a  vast  

chasm between your  ve rs ion  on  the  one hand and what  20 

Ba in  and the  SARS wi tnesses have sa id  on  the  o ther,  do  

you accept  tha t?  

MR MOYANE:    I  accept  tha t  because we are  ta lk ing  f rom 

d i f fe ren t  pe rspect ives .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    A l r igh t ,  then as  fa r  as  the  Nugent  
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Commiss ion  is  concerned,  cou ld  I  ask  you to  look  a t  the 

app l i ca t ion  bund le .   I  am sor ry,  there  i s  a  lo t  o f  f i l es  and 

not  much space.   In  3 ,  App l ica t ion  Bund le  there  are  two  

f i les ,  p lease look a t  the  second f i le .  

MR MOYANE:    Which  one?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Someone wi l l  ass is t  you.   He w i l l  te l l  you  

aga in ,  what  the  numbers  are ,  p lease jus t  repeat  the  

numbers  Mr  Frank l in .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Sor ry,  Cha i r,  there  seems to  be  a  

prob lem get t ing ,  loca t ing  tha t  f i l e ,  bu t  ex t ra  one fo r  p resent  10 

purposes and I  w i l l  re t r ieve  i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   A re  you manag ing  w i th  the 

space there  Mr  Moyane?  

MR MOYANE:    I t  w i l l  come r igh t ,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   What  i s  the  page number,  

Mr  Frank l in?   

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Thank you,  i t  beg ins  a t  TSM 448.   

MR MOYANE:    Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:    488?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    No,  448,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    448,  yes  I  have got  i t .   

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Thank you.   You w i l l  see  tha t  tha t  is  

the  f i rs t  page o f  the  Nugent  Commiss ion  Repor t ,  do  you 

see tha t?   

MR MOYANE:    Yes.   
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ADV FRANKLIN SC:    And I  w ish  to  jus t  pu t  b r i e f l y  cer ta in  

o f  the  conc lus ions tha t  were  reached by  the  Commiss ion .  

F i r s t l y,  on  page  451,  paragraph  4  a t  the  bo t tom o f  the 

page,  do  you have tha t?  

MR MOYANE:    451,  yes .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    R igh t .   So ,  under  the  head ing ,  the  

te rms o f  re fe rence and the  Commiss ion 's  p r imary  

conc lus ions in  parag raphs 4  and 5 ,  wh ich  I  w i l l  take  you to  

the  fo l low ing i t  sa id :  

“The conc lus ion  we reach a t  the  end o f  th is  inqu i ry  10 

is  tha t  there  has been a  mass ive  fa i lu re  o f  in tegr i t y  

and governance a t  SARS and a l l  e lse  fo l lows f rom 

tha t  what  SARS was and what  i t  has  become is  

su f f i c ien t  p roo f  in  i t se l f ,  tha t  in tegr i t y  and 

governance fa i led  on  a  mass ive  sca le . ”  

Then in  parag raph 5 :  

“ I  repor ted  in  my in te r im repor t ,  tha t  tha t  was 

brought  about  by  a t  leas t  reck less  m ismanagement  

on  the  pa r t  o f  Mr  Moyane.   We have heard  much 

ev idence s ince  then,  what  has become c lear  i s  tha t  20 

what  occu r red  a t  SARS was inev i tab le  the  moment  

Mr  Moyane se t  foo t  in  SARS.   He ar r i ved w i thout  

in tegr i t y  and then d i smant led the  e lements  o f  

governance one by  one.   Th i s  was more  than mere  

mismanagement ;  i t  was se iz ing  cont ro l  o f  SARS as  
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i f  i t  was h is  to  have. ”  

Now were  those f ind ings brought  to  your  a t ten t ion?  

MR MOYANE:    Yes,  they were ,  can I  comment  on  tha t?   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  you may comment .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    You may.  

MR MOYANE:    The conc lus ion  tha t  i s  a  mass ive  fa i lu re  o f  

in tegr i t y  in  governance a t  SARS,  I  d ispute .   We d id  pu t  

governance measures a t  SARS,  le t  me c i te  an  example  

Cha i rperson.   On my f i rs t  Exco  meet ing  on  the  29 t h  o f  

September  2014,  wh ich  was  labe l led fami l ia r i sa t ion  10 

meet ing  w i th  Exco,  wh ich  means no bus iness  to  be  

d iscussed,  to  unders tand who is  who in  the  organ isa t ion .   

R igh t  towards the  end o f  tha t  sess ion  one member  o f  Exco  

sa id ,  s i r,  Commiss ioner  we wou ld  l i ke  to  approve an  

advanced payment  o f  more  than 100 mi l l ion  to  a  company 

tha t  i s  go ing  to  s ta r t  work  in  2014.  

That  i s  f lou t ing  governance pr inc ip le .   You do no t  

pay th ree  years  i n  advance fo r  work  tha t  i s  ye t  to  be  done 

and I  asked po l i te ly,  what  i s  i t  tha t  mer i t s  such payment  in  

advance?  What  i f  th is  company goes be l l y  up?  S i r,  20 

because we have  had a  d iscuss ion  w i th  th is  company fo r  

d iscounts ,  i f  we do not  take  them now,  they w i l l  go  away.  I t  

i s  p reposterous and tha t  was re fused and re jec ted .   

So i f  th is  t ype o f  a t t i tude is  no t  advanced to  say 

governance p r inc ip les  and processes must  be  fo l lowed 
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then you a re  land ing  in to  an  o rgan isa t ion  where  th ings are  

no t  done p roper l y  and I  was suppor ted  by  the  aud i to r,  the  

head o f  aud i t ,  tha t  i t  cannot  be  done.   

So to  say,  in tegr i t y  and governance,  and then I  ran  

th is  o rgan isa t ion  as  my own,  th is  repor t  fo r  fa i l s  to  

unders tand the  fundamenta l s  o f  what  management  i s  a l l  

about .   I  do  no t  take  dec is ion  un i la te ra l l y  on  my own.   

There  was a  co l lec t i ve  here ,  dec i s ions were  made,  debates  

were  made were  en tered in to .   So  as  I  sa id ,  I  do  no t  take  

th is  repor t  as  ser ious,  i t  was a  repor t  tha t  was prepared in  10 

order  to  ta rn ish  my organ isa t ion .  I t  says ,  he  ar r i ved w i thout  

in tegr i t y,  how cou ld  he  dete rmine tha t  I  had no in teg r i t y?   

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Thank you.   

MR MOYANE:    And he sa id ,  I  d i smant led  the  e lements  o f  

governance one by  one and th is  was more  than the  mere  

management ,  i t  was sys tem cont ro l  o f  SARS as i f  i t  was h is  

to  have.   Cha i r  I  can conf i rm here  w i thout  cont rad ic t ion ,  I  

ran  a  consu l ta t i ve  organ isa t ion  where  in  every th ing  tha t  

was d iscussed,  i t  was put  be fore  a  team for  d iscuss ion  and 

approva l .   20 

So I  never  took a  d ic ta tor ia l  pos i t ion .   A l l  those who  

tes t i f ied  here ,  they shou ld  be  ab le  to  ta lk  the  t ru th  and not  

cas t  d ispers ions.   So I  re fu te  th is  t ype o f  repor t  and  

there fo re  tha t  i s  as  I  sa id  I  d id  no t  take  th is  repor t  as  

ser ious because  i t  was mere  rubbers tamping a  dec is ion  
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taken in  o rder  to  ta rn ish  my image tha t  I  wa lked w i thout  

in tegr i t y,  I  had wa lked w i thout  -   Cha i r,  I  submi t  tha t  th is  

s ta tement ,  any person who reads i t  w i l l  see  tha t  i t  i s  

un founded.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    R igh t ,  we w i l l  ge t  on  to  some o f  the 

de ta i l  la te r.   Then cou ld  I  a lso  asked you to  look  a t  page  

47…[ in tervene]  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Oh,  i s  th i s  a  conven ien t  t ime Mr  

Frank l in?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Yes,  thank you.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  take  a  break,  i t  i s  quar te r  past ,  

we w i l l  resume a t  ha l f  past  11 ,  we ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes Mr Frankl in .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Thank you Chai r.   I  understand f rom 

my fe l low evidence leader Mr Chaskalson that  there is  

someth ing that  he wishes to  put  on record  at  the  

commission and may I  s tand down whi le  that  happens? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes that  is  f ine.   Mr Chaskalson.   20 

Somebody must  sani t i se the podium.   Where is  the  person 

who normal ly  does that  –  he is  not  here.  Somebody wi l l  

come to sani t ise i t  just  now.   Ja,  ja ,  okay.   Thank you.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:  Thank you Chai r.   Chai r  there has 

been coverage in  the media overn ight  o f  the set t lement  
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reached by Transnet  and McKinsey fo l lowing McKinsey’s  

commitment  at  th is  commission to  repay Transnet  and SAA 

al l  o f  the fees i t  earned at  those SOE’s in  cont racts where i t  

worked a longside Regiments Capi ta l .  

 Now on Monday the secretary o f  the commission 

received a le t te r  f rom McKinsey ’s legal  representat ives 

Norton Rose Fulbr ight .   I  d id  not  re fer  to  i t  on Monday or  

indeed yesterday because the set t lement  had not  yet  made 

publ i c  but  wi th  your  leave Chai r  I  would l ike to  refer  to  i t  

now.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes you may do so.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:  And Nor ton Rose wr i te  –wrote to  

the secretary  

“Dear S i rs ”  

And i t  was wr i t ten  on Monday.  

“Dur ing today’s  v iva  voce evidence by Mr  

Paul  Holden to the commission he refer red  

to  tab le 73 of  h is  s tatement  and amounts 

paid by Eskom,  Transnet  and SAA to 

McKinsey.   The evidence leader  Mr  20 

Chaskalson SC drew to the at tent ion  of  the  

commission – drew the at tent ion of  the  

commission to  the fact  that  McKinsey had 

repaid the amounts in  quest ion to  Eskom 

and had undertaken to pay the other  
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amounts to  Transnet  and SAA.   Mr Holden 

was asked whether  he had any knowledge of  

whether  any other  ent i ty  had l ikewise made 

such commitments.   We are p leased now to  

advise the commission and ask you to  pass 

the in fo rmat ion onto the evidence leader Mr 

Chaskalson that  Transnet  and McKinsey 

have in  fact  entered in to an  amicable  

set t lement  agreement  in  terms of  which 

McKinsey wi l l  be  repaying to  Transnet  an  10 

amount  of  R870 mi l l ion wi th in  the  next  few 

days.  This amount  is  fu l l y  inc lus ive of  a l l  

in terest . ”  

Then yesterday Chai r  Transnet  and McKinsey issued a jo in t  

press statement  which reads as fo l lows:   I t  is  date stamped 

25 May 2021.  

“The Transnet  SOC Limi ted and McKinsey 

and Company announced that  they have 

f ina l i sed the set t lement  of  the fees 

McKinsey commit ted to  return to  Transnet  at  20 

the Judic ia l  Commission of  Inqui ry  in  

December 2020.   The fu l l  and f ina l  

set t lement  of  R870 mi l l ion inc ludes the fees 

paid to  McKinsey in  respect  o f  the pro ject  

taken – undertaken wi th  Regiments Capi ta l  
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p lus in terest . ”  

So Chai r  by the end of  th is  week McKinsey wi l l  have 

repaid to  Eskom and Transnet  a l l  o f  the fees that  they 

earned in  cont racts ta in ted  by state capture wi th  in terest .   

These are the fees in  re la t ion  to  cont racts where they 

worked a longside Regiments at  Transnet  and a longside 

Tr i l l ian at  Eskom.  

 McKinsey has done that  Chai r  as  the i r  s tatements  

conf i rm because that  i s  what  a responsib le corporate  c i t izen 

should do – oh a  responsib le – responsib le counsel  should  10 

swi tch h is  phone off  when he makes a statement  l i ke  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:  But  the point  that  I  would 

emphasise Chai r  is  that  i f  one goes to  tab le 73 of  Mr 

Holden ’s repor t  the amounts that  McKinsey has repaid are 

less than 3% of  the to ta l  amounts that  are l is ted on tab le 73  

and the companies l i s ted on tab le 73 inc lude – wel l  they 

inc lude some Gupta Enterpr ise companies f rom which we 

cannot  expect  vo luntary repayment  but  they inc lude a ser ies 

of  South Af r i can and mul t inat ional  companies who are  20 

responsib le fo r  vast  sums of  money on cont racts  that  were 

l inked to  state capture.    

 And Chai r  those companies have now got  Mr  

Holden ’s  repor t  and McKinsey has shown what  a 

responsib le corporate c i t izen does in  these c i rcumstances.   
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I  –  I  am looking forward to  seeing what  those other  

companies do.  

 Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We issued a media statement  some t ime 

last  year  which was to  the effect  that  a t  that  s tage as a  

resul t  o f  d iscussions that  had been held between McKinsey 

and the commission’s legal  team you were leading that  work  

st ream McKinsey had commit ted i tse l f  to  a I  th ink  i t  was 

R650 mi l l i on I  am not  sure but  that  was not  the f ina l  amount  

because they were st i l l  to  be – they were st i l l  go ing  to  look 10 

at  issues of  in terest  and so on.    

 I  guess that  th is  amount  of  R870 mi l l ion i s  now 

inc lus ive of  the – of  in terest  and whatever  other  monies 

they had not  been f ina l ised wi th  them.   Is  that  r ight?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:  Yes Chai r  in  par t i cu la r  the press  

statement  and the McKinsey le t ter  both make i t  c lear  that  i t  

inc ludes in terest .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes.   Wel l  once again I  th ink  that  

even though i t  i s  not  the commission’s mandate to  have 

these amounts recovered obviously that  is  what  everybody 20 

in  South Af r ica would l i ke  to  happen but  I  th ink  that  when 

some people c r i t ic i se th is  commission fo r  the costs that  

have been incurred through i ts  work they remember  that  a t  

least  here is  th is  one occasion  where  as a resul t  o f  

d iscussions between a uni t  o f  the commission and McKinsey 
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a  substant ia l  amount  of  money has been – or  wi l l  be  repaid 

wi th in  a few days as a resul t  o f  the i r  commitment  made to  

the commission at  the t ime.  

 So th is  is  R870 mi l l ion – i t  might  be a smal l  

percentage of  the  ent i re  amount  bu t  never theless i t  is  qu i te  

someth ing.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:  Thank you Chai r  and I  would hope 

that  the other  companies on that  l is t  are tak ing not ice and 

that  the R870 mi l l ion may grow.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no I  would encourage the  other  10 

companies on that  l is t  who a lso benef i t ted f rom cont racts 

that  have been ta in ted to  do the same.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:  Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.     Mr Frankl in .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes we may cont inue.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Thank you.   Mr Moyane before the  

break you wi l l  recal l  that  I  had taken you to  var ious f ind ings 

in  the Nugent  Commission Report  and you have d isagreed 

wi th  the conclusions that  were set  out  there.   Correct .  20 

MR MOYANE:   Yes I  d id .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   And I  unders tood in  the course  of  your  

opening statement  for  you to  say that  you were most  

unhappy and aggr ieved that  you were removed as 

Commissioner  by President  Ramaphosa,  is  that  cor rect .  
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MR MOYANE:   That  is  correct .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   And you sa id that  no per formance 

issues were ra ised wi th  you,  correc t .  

MR MOYANE:   That  is  correct .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   You do understand that  the President  

was act ing on a recommendat ion o f  the Nugent  Commission 

to  remove you.   D id you know that?  

MR MOYANE:   I  note what  you are saying.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   And that  br ings me to a top ic  which I  

would l ike to  deal  wi th  b r ie f l y  in  re la t ion to  your  lack of  10 

par t ic ipat ion  in  that  commission.  You know that  the 

commission held  hear ings in  2018 and f ina l l y  i ssued i ts  

repor t  on the 11 t h  o f  December 2018 and as is  recorded in  

there i t  heard ev idence f rom some 64 wi tnesses most  of  

them as I  understand i t  SARS employees or  former  

employees.   You would accept  that  that  is  correct .  

MR MOYANE:   No I  wi l l  not  say  i t  is  correct .   I  do not  know 

how many people par t i c ipated but  yes there were  people  

who par t ic ipated.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Yes but  i f  the commission i tse l f  20 

repor ts  that  there were 64 wi tnesses you do not  d ispute  

that .  

MR MOYANE:   Wel l  i t  has no  impact  on me.   I  have no 

in terest  in  that .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   That  is  not  what  I  asked you.   I f  the 
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commission records in  i t s  repor t  that  i t  heard ev idence f rom 

64 wi tnesses do you accept  that  o r  not?  

MR MOYANE:   Why should I  accept  S i r?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   And why should you not?  

MR MOYANE:   Chai r  I  th ink I  am – I  need protect ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  … 

MR MOYANE:   Why should I  accept  someth ing that  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  us put  i t  th is  way.  

MR MOYANE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you in tend making an issue of  the 10 

numbers or  not?  

MR MOYANE:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No.  Okay a l l  r ight .  

MR MOYANE:   That  is  what  I  sa id in  the beginning S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes no that  is  f ine.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   A l l  r ight  in  your  rep ly ing aff idavi t  in  

the appl i cat ion to  cross-examine Min is te r  Gordhan I  can 

take you to  the actual  page i f  you would l ike i t  but  i t  is  not  

necessary unless you wish  me to.   What  you say in  

paragraph 43 and I  wi l l  g ive you the reference and we can 20 

come back i f  you would l ike to  see i t .   I t  is  page TSM702 in  

Appl icat ion Bundle N3.   What  you say there you say:  

“Thi rd ly  I  was den ied the r ight . ”  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink he would l i ke to  see i t .  

MR MOYANE:   Yes le t  me see i t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MOYANE:   Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   P lease g ive Mr Moyane.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Moyane somebody wi l l  ass is t  you Mr  

Moyane.    

MR MOYANE:   Bundle 3.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Somebody wi l l  come and assis t  you.   Just  

make sure you do not  unduly increase the number  of  f i les 

that  a re there because he has got  many a l ready.   So use 

the ones that  he has got  there.  Okay a l l  r ight .  10 

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Just  to  or ien tate you Mr Moyane.  

MR MOYANE:   Yes S i r.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   A t  page 692 that  i s  the  star t  o f  your  

rep ly ing aff idavi t  in  the appl i cat ion to  cross-examine 

Min is te r  Gordhan.   And I  am referr ing you to  paragraph 43 

on page 702.   Do you have that?  

MR MOYANE:   I  have that  S i r.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Yes you were deal ing wi th  under your  

heading Misconceived Rel iance on I r re levant  Opin ions of  

the SARS Commission.   And in  para 43 you sa id:  20 

“Thi rd ly  I  was denied the  r ight  o f  

par t ic ipat ion in  the SARS Commission and 

subsequent  to  my lodgement  of  lega l  

ob ject ions to  i ts  processes I  was legal l y  

precluded f rom such par t i c ipat ion. ”  
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 I  just  –  s topping  there.   Is  that  correct?  Do you 

accept  that  you were inv i ted to  test i fy  but  you chose not  to?  

MR MOYANE:   Chai r  I  th ink i f  we read th is  correct ly.  

“Thi rd ly  I  denied – I  was denied the r ight  o f  

par t ic ipat ion. ”  

 And that  should – i f  that  i s  understood I  was not  

g iven an opportun i ty.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Just  le t  me ask you again.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Do you accept  that  the  Nugent  10 

Commission inv i ted you on more than on occasion.  

MR MOYANE:   No the… 

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Can you just  wai t  unt i l  I  … 

MR MOYANE:   The Nugent  Commission d id not  inv i te  me.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   P lease wai t  unt i l  I  f in ish my quest ion.  

MR MOYANE:   Okay my apolog ies – my apolog ies.   I  

w i thdraw.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Do you accept  that  the  Nugent  

Commission inv i ted you to  test i fy  before i t  and that  you 

decl ined to  do so.  20 

MR MOYANE:   May I  answer?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes you may answer yes.  

MR MOYANE:   Once again Chai rperson I  put  i t  on  record I  

deny that  I  was inv i ted.  
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CHAIRPERSON:     Hm.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   A l l  r ight  and… 

MR MOYANE:   I  d id  not  receive any inv i ta t ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You know whether  your  lawyers received 

any inv i ta t ion.   Do you know whether  your  lawyers received 

any inv i ta t ion f rom the – f rom that  commission? 

MR MOYANE:   Wel l  Chai r  on – on the record I  would not  

know now but  i f  that  quest ion could be ra ised wi th  them but  

in  the event  they d id they would have in fo rmed me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

MR MOYANE:   Because when we went  wi th  Advocate Dal i  

Mpofu,  Er ic  Mabuza and I  th ink Ms – Advocate Seboko.   We 

went  there – there was inv i ta t ion on a par t icu lar  mat ter  so I  

want  to  put  i t  on record that  a  fo rmal  inv i ta t ion to  

par t ic ipate in  the  whole inqui ry  I  am not  aware of  –  I  have 

never  received i t .   Should have been d i rected to  me a lso  

because I  was an employee of  SARS.   I  was at  the cent re of  

what  was being invest igated.   A t  the t ime I  had not  lost  –  I  

was on suspension so I  just  want  to  cor… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay so – so the posi t ion as I  understand 20 

i t  and you must  te l l  me i f  my unders tanding is  correct  is  that  

you are accept  that  there was an inv i ta t ion that  was g iven 

to  you e i ther  d i rect ly  or  to  your  legal  team to come and deal  

wi th  a speci f i c  issue at  that  commission.   But  you say you  

never  received any inv i ta t ion  to  par t i c ipate  in  the 
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commission as a whole,  is  that  cor rect?  

MR MOYANE:   That  is  correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   But  you say you are not  aware  

whether  your  at torneys or  your  lawyers received any such 

genera l  inv i ta t ion  but  you would have expected tha t  i f  they  

had received i t  they would have to ld  you and they d id not  

te l l  you.  

MR MOYANE:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Sor ry.  

ADV SEBOKO:   ( Inaudib le)  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  cannot  hear  you I  th ink speak c loser  to  

the mic Ja.  

ADV SEBOKO:   I  beg your  pardon for  in ter rupt ing you,  my 

learned f r iend and the wi tness.   I f  I  just  – i f  I  may just  

speak f rom memory f rom that  Nugent  Commission.   I  th ink  

what  had happened is  because i t  was running at  the same 

t ime as the d isc ip l inary hear ing Mr Moyane at tended the 

at torneys were themselves in  – I  suspect  the at torneys 

wrote a le t te r  to  the commission and asked the commission  

to  hold the processes of  Mr Moyane 00:17:49 at  that  20 

moment  the fee l ing of  the legal  representat ion was that  a  

commission was canvassing the same issues as the 

d isc ip l inary commit tee.   In  response… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry.   I  th ink i t  i s  because the mic 

not  c lose to  you I  hear  some of  the th ings you say I  do not  
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hear  others.   Oh okay I  th ink now i t  is  go ing to  be  bet te r.   

P lease star t  a f resh.  

ADV SEKOKO:   Okay.   I  beg your  pardon that  I  in ter rupted.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja p lease star ted af resh ja .  

ADV SEKOKO:   On the  issue tha t  Mr Moyane is  t ry ing to  

remember I  just  need to t ry  and assis t  f rom a point  o f  

memory.   Chai rman would be aware now f rom the repor ts  

that  the – Mr Moyane at  the same t ime was at tending a 

d isc ip l inary hear ing and at  the same t ime the Nugent  

Commission was a lso running.   I  th ink the at to rneys then 10 

wrote to  the Nugent  Commission  and asked the  Nugent  

Commission  to  suspend the i r  work in  respect  o f  Mr  Moyane 

because the fee l ing at  the t ime was that  the  commission  

was t ravers ing the  same issues as  the commission.   In  

response to that  le t ter  I  th ink then the inv i ta t ion came.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The genera l  inv i ta t ion.  

ADV SEKOKO:    Cor rect .   I  do speak under correct ion.   I  do 

not  have those papers ( inaudib le) .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr Frankl in .   P lease swi tch  off  the 

– that  mic – ja .   20 

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Yes thank you Chai r.   Mr Moyane I  am 

surpr ised to  hear  what  you say.   I  would l ike to  take  you to  

the Nugent  Commission Report  p lease and I  would  ask you 

to  look at  TSM page 465.   I  understand that  the f i le  before  

you… 
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CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe – maybe le t  me put  th is  to  Mr  

Moyane and maybe that  i s  what  you are going  to  Mr  

Frankl in .   You – d id you understand what  your  counsel  was 

saying?  She was saying there was a genera l  inv i ta t ion that  

was sent  to  your  lawyers by the commission but  the legal  –  

your  legal  team took a cer ta in  approach to i t  namely to 

request  that  because there  was a d isc ip l inary hear ing tak ing 

p lace at  the same t ime the commission should not  deal  wi th  

the same issues.   I  th ink that  i s  what  she was saying.   You 

understood that?  10 

MR MOYANE:   Apologies Chai r  –  yes I  understood that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay a l l  r ight .   Mr Frankl in .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   A l l  r ight .   Thank you.   So you do 

accept  that  you were inv i ted to  a t tend but  you decl ined to  

do so on a par t i cu lar  basis.  

MR MOYANE:   I f  I  go wi th  what  my counsel  is  saying I  want  

to  concur  wi th  what  she sa id.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Good.   Could I  ask you then to  look at  

the par t  o f  the Nugent  Report  tha t  I  re fer red to  under the  

heading Response to the  Commission  of  the  Former  20 

Commissioner  of  SARS.   Do you have that?  

MR MOYANE:   On which? 

CHAIRPERSON:   In  which bundle i s  that?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   I t  is  in  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Is  that  the Bain S tatement?  
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ADV FRANKLIN SC:   No i t  is  the – i t  is  one of  the 

appl i cat ion bundle N3.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh SARS Bundle 3? 

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   No i t  is  the  Appl icat ion Bundle N3.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.   Oh I  have got  i t  ja .  

MR MOYANE:   Is  i t  page 425? 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  have got  i t  ja .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Yes i t  is  –  you have that  Mr Moyane? 

MR MOYANE:   Yes which page is  that?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   So paragraph 45 … 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   What  page? 

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   And you wi l l  see on page 465.   Okay.   

Thank you.   Righ t  and what  is  recorded by the commission 

is  th is  in  paragraph 45:  

“The fo rmer Commissioner  of  SARS Mr Tom 

Moyane kept  away f rom the commission f rom 

incept ion appear ing on one occasion only 

and then only to  d isparage an a t tempt  to  

dera i l  the inqui ry  which has cont inued 

re lent less ly  s ince  then.   I t  is  c lear  that  Mr  20 

Moyane does not  have and never  had – has 

had any in tent ion of  account ing  for  what  

occur red dur ing  h is  tenure  at  SARS or  of  

conf ront ing the ev idence the commission 

has received. ”  
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And then 46:  

“Mr Moyane was per t inent ly  not i f ied each 

t ime publ i c  hear ings were held but  ne i ther  

he nor  any representat ive on h is  behal f  was 

ever  present  except  on the occasion I  have 

ment ioned.   Indeed on that  occasion he 

protested at  ev idence being heard in  h is  

absence but  then le f t  the  hear ing before the  

next  wi tness was ca l led.   He was per t inent ly  

asked whether  he wished to respond to  10 

evidence that  had been g iven in  publ ic  much 

of  which was damning of  h is  management  of  

SARS but  he decl ined.   Pr io r  to  the  

submission  of  the in te r im repor t  he was 

afforded the  opportuni ty  to  make 

submissions on  why i t  should not  be  

recommended that  he be removed f rom 

off ice which he spurned instead he remained 

in  the shadows def iant ly  spewing invect ive  

at  the commission through h is  own mouth 20 

and through tha t  o f  h is  at torney.   His  

conduct  th roughout  the inqui ry  for t i f ies our  

v iew that  he is  and was not  f i t  to  be 

Commissioner  of  SARS.   The 

correspondence between the commission 
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and Mr Moyane’s  at torney in  that  regard is  

appendix 2. ”  

 So were you aware of  that  par t i cu lar  sect ion  of  the  

repor t?  

MR MOYANE:   Chai rperson wi th  your  permiss ion and wi th  

due respect  the Chai rperson d id ask me a few minutes ago 

as to  whether  I  concur  wi th  my legal  counsel  expla ined to  

yoursel f  here.   That  there were two th ings running  

concur rent ly.   And therefore the a l legat ions that  I  spurned,  I  

re jected,  I  re fused,  does not  have mer i t  because i t  is  c lear ly  10 

stated in  what  was being sa id here and I  remember very  

wel l  Chai rperson subject  to  correct ion that  some of  these 

th ings were taken p lace when I  was appear ing to  Advocate  

Car r im am I  r ight?  I t  was Advocate Car r im.   

CHAIRPERSON:   The Chai rperson of  the d isc ip l inary 

inqui ry.  

MR MOYANE:   Ja  the Chai rperson of  the  d isc ip l inary  inqui ry  

yes.  Now to say that  I  was s i t t ing in  the shadows def iance,  

spewing in fect ive  – invect ive at  the commission.   I  want  to  

say i t  is  for  the  f i rs t  t ime I  am speaking here.   For  the last  20 

three years Tom Moyane has been s i lent .   I  have never  

issued a press statement .   Never  have I  addressed any 

media.   So th is  s tatement  has no mer i t  whatsoever.    

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   You wi l l  see that  the  Nugent  

Commission refer red to  an appendix 2 and that  you wi l l  f ind 
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a lso in  the bundles before you.  Chai r  i t  is  Appl icat ion 

Bundle N3 I  th ink i t  is  N 3(c)  a t  page TSM1740 to 1777.  

1777.   Do you have that?  

MR MOYANE:   Chai r  i f  you wi l l  repeat  the TSM numbers  

S i r?  I  have appendix 2.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Thank you.  

MR MOYANE:   Yes I  have that  appendix.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink i t  is  2  I  have got .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Thank you.   Mr Moyane that  is  a  

bundle of  cor respondence between the commission and your  10 

at torneys Mabuza At torneys.   You can page through i t  to  

see that .   I  am not  go ing to  waste  t ime by going through a l l  

o f  these le t te rs but  I  what  I  want  to  put  to  you that  i t  is  qu i te  

apparent  f rom these le t ters that  you were g iven speci f ic  and 

when I  say you I  mean through your  at to rneys speci f ic  

personal  inv i ta t ions to  at tend and test i f y  a t  the commission.   

Would you accept  that?  

MR MOYANE:   I  am looking at  the  documents S i r.   I f  I  may 

ask what  comment  do you want  me to make S i r?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Yes I  unders tood you to  accept  on the  20 

basis of  what  your  counsel  put  that  you were inv i ted to  

test i fy.  

MR MOYANE:   I  see the correspondence.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Yes.  

MR MOYANE:   Yes.  



26 MAY 2021 – DAY 403 
 

Page 81 of 221 
 

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   You were a lso  g iven the t ranscr ip t  o f  

the hear ing f rom t ime to t ime and asked to respond and i f  

you want  to  look  to  speci f ic  documents look at  page 1753 

for  instance.   You see that  le t ter?  

MR MOYANE:   Yes I  see the le t te r.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   The f i rs t  paragraph.  

“ I  wr i te  to  enqui re whether  your  c l ient  wishes to  respond to 

the ev idence g iven at  the commiss ion’s publ i c  hear ings.   A 

t ranscr ip t  o f  which is  a t tached for  your  convenience or  

wished to present  ev idence on any other  mat te rs re levant  to  10 

the inqui r ies.   Should he wish to  do so he is  ent i t led to 

make ar rangements to  meet  wi th  counsel  for  the  

commission …” 

CHAIRPERSON:   He is  inv i ted.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Sor ry i t  shou ld be wished.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is  th is  ent i t led ( ind is t inct ) .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   I  am sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Inv i ted.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    

“Should he wish  to  do so he is  inv i ted to  20 

make arrangements to  meet  wi th  counsel  fo r  

the commission  to  enable counsel  to  assess 

the evidence he wishes to  present  to  ident i fy  

in  what  respect  and to  what  extent  there is  a  

basis for  the ev idence and to secure  
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documents that  might  be re levant  to  the  

ev idence. ”  

 So that  is  se l f -explanatory.   That  is  an inv i ta t ion and 

a lso to  test i fy  and a lso an inv i ta t ion to  respond to the 

ev idence which had been g iven thus fa r.  Not  so?  Do you 

agree? 

MR MOYANE:   I  note what  is  conta ined in  the document .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Yes but  do you agree wi th  my 

quest ion? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  repeat  the quest ion Mr Frankl in?  10 

MR MOYANE:   What  i s  the quest ion S i r?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   You agree that  that  is  an inv i ta t ion to  

you to  test i fy  and to  make comments on or  respond to the 

ev idence which had been g iven thus fa r  and you were g iven 

a t ranscr ip t  o f  the  ev idence for  that  purpose.    

MR MOYANE:   Yes I  –  I  take cognisance of  that .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   R ight .   You d id not  take up e i ther  

inv i ta t ion d id you?  You nei ther  test i f ied nor  responded to  

the ev idence that  had been g iven up to  that  po int .   Cor rect .  

MR MOYANE:   Cor rect  but  I  th ink there was an explanat ion  20 

as  to  why we could not  a t tend and why we had so  many 

th ings that  we had to at tend to  as a team.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   And then I  want  to  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry was that  explanat ion that  there 

was a d isc ip l inary  process going on at  the same t ime.  
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MR MOYANE:   Correct  S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Do you have a recol lect ion o f  –  f rom 

when to  when the d isc ip l inary hear ing  went  o r  you – in  

terms of  months not  necessar i ly  the  dates or  the month.  

MR MOYANE:   I  would l ike to  defer  th is  to  counsel  because 

I  do not  want  to  m is lead the Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   No,  no that  is  f ine.  

MR MOYANE:   I  w i l l  be able to  come back to  you on that  as  

to  when.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay,  okay.  10 

MR MOYANE:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is  f ine.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Yes then i f  I  could refer  you to  a 

fur ther  le t ter  and may (speaking over  one another) .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe but  a  – I  am sorry Mr Frankl in .   But  

I  can ask th is  quest ion.   You d id say ear l ie r  on that  i f  your  

lawyers  had rece ived an inv i ta t ion ,  you are  sure  they wou ld  

have to ld  you.   Now tha t  you have seen the  co r respondents  

address by  Judge Nugent  to  your  then a t to rney,  does tha t  

jog  your  memory  tha t  maybe they d id  te l l  you  about  i t  o r  i s  20 

your  reco l lec t ion  tha t  they d id  no t  te l l  you  about  i t?  

MR MOYANE :    No,  my memory  is  now drawn to  the  fac t  

tha t  they d id  te l l  me and we were  busy w i th  someth ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MOYANE :    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Frank l in .    

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Thank you .   And do you reca l l  as  

we l l  tha t  the  Commiss ion  wro te  to  you  on the  

7 t h  o f  September  208 and I  am no t  re fe r r ing  to  page 1756  

to  9?  I t  wro te  to  you to  say tha t :  

“The Commiss ion  is  requ i red  to  submi t  an  

in te r im repor t  to  the  press  by  no  la te r  than the  

end o f  September  2018.  

You w i l l  be  aware  f rom the  t ransc r ip ts  tha t  had  

been fu rn i shed to  you o f  the  ev idence tha t  has  10 

been g iven thus fa r  in  pub l i c  hear ings and o f  

documenta ry  ev idence in  the  pub l i c  domain  the  

repor t  f rom KPMG commiss ioned by  your  c l ien t  

and the  reco rd  o f  cour t  p roceed ings in i t ia ted 

by  your  c l ien t .  

Your  c l ien t  has been adv i sed on more  than one  

occas ion  to  respond to  the  ev idence but  has 

fa i led  to  respond to  those inv i ta t ions .  

The commiss ion  is  cons ider ing  repor t ing  to  the 

Pres ident  tha t  the  ev idence d isc losed as  the  20 

fac ts  summar i sed  be low,  wh ich  have not  been 

cont rad i c ted  by  any submiss ions  rece ived or  

by  cont rary  ev idence. . . ”  

 And then there  fo l lows a  summary o f  tha t  

ev idence.   And on the  las t  paragraph o f  page 1759,  Judge  
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Nugent  says to  your  a t to rneys:  

“Shou ld  your  c l ien t  w ish  to  make submiss ions  

on  why the  commiss ion  shou ld  no t  repor t  to  

the  Pres ident  on  the  te rms summar ised above,  

he  shou ld  do  so  in  wr i t ing  by  no  la te r  than 

21 September  2018,  so  tha t  h is  submiss ions 

may be cons ide red before  the  commiss ion  

reaches i t s  conc lus ions. . . ”  

 So you see you were  inv i ted  spec i f i ca l l y  to  

comment  on  the  commiss ion ’s  p roposed f ind ings.   You see  10 

tha t?  

MR MOYANE :    Yes,  I  do .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And you d id  no t  take  up tha t  

inv i ta t ion  e i the r,  cor rec t?  

MR MOYANE :    I  th ink  th is  quest i on  has been answered in  

the  prev ious admiss ion ,  as  I  sa id .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Ja ,  jus t  answer  the  quest ion .   You 

d id  ho t  take  up tha t  inv i ta t ion ,  d id  you? 

MR MOYANE :    We d id  no t ,  yes .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And then,  do  you know o f  tha t  –  your  20 

counse l  appeared and I  th ink  you were  the re  on  the  

29 t h  o f  June 2018 .   You were  g iven an oppor tun i ty  to  make 

ob jec t ions to  the  inqu i ry  and tha t  i s  what  your  counse l  d id  

on  your  beha l f .   Do you reca l l  tha t?  

MR MOYANE :    On the  29 t h  o f  June? 
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ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes,  the  da te  i s  no t  impor tan t  bu t  

tha t  i s  the  da te ,  the  29 t h  o f  June 2018.   I  am sure  you 

cannot  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MOYANE :    And my counse l  re jec ted  i t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  the  two o f  you.   Wel l ,  maybe not  

the  two o f  you.   But  he  is  say ing ,  on  tha t  da te  you and your  

counse l  appeared befo re  the  commiss ion  –  tha t  

commiss ion .   He is  ask ing  whether  you remembered  tha t  to  

ra ise  ob jec t ions to  the  commiss ion? 

MR MOYANE :    Bu t  I  cannot  reca l l ,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    You cannot  reca l l .   Okay.   But  you do 

reca l l  be ing  there  w i th  your  counse l  as  the  proceed ings o f  

the  commiss ion  on some occas ion? 

MR MOYANE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   You reca l l  what  the  purpose was o f  

your  p resence on  tha t  day?  

MR MOYANE :    Cha i r,  i t  i s  th ree  years  down the  l ine .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Or  you cannot  remember?  

MR MOYANE :    Three years  down the  l ine .   I  canno t  reca l l  

tha t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  tha t  is  f ine .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Wel l ,  le t  me remind you.   The 

commiss ion  issued a  ru l ing  in  re la t ion  to  the  ob jec t ions  

wh ich  you ra i sed .   I t  i s  da ted  the  2n d  o f  Ju ly  2018  and i t  

appears  a t  page  TSM-436,  s t i l l  in  the  App l ica t ion  Bund le  
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M3,  Annexure  BG-2.    

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  a  d i f fe ren t  bund le?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    I t  i s  in  my second f i le ,  Cha i r.   I  am 

not  su re  i f  i t  i s  in  the  same f i le  fo r  you.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  what  i s  i t ,  then maybe I  w i l l  know? 

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    I t  i s  Annexure  PZ-2  to  Mr  Gordhan ’s  

a f f idav i t  and i t  i s  page TSM-436.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Have you found i t?  

MR MOYANE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   Wel l ,  I  w i l l  do  w i thout .   10 

Hopefu l l y,  I  can  fo l low.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay cont inue.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Thank you .   Cha i r,  tha t  i s  a  ru l ing  

wh ich  the  commiss ion  made on the  2n d  o f  Ju ly,  as  you can  

see f rom page 447.   And what  the  commiss ion  d id  was to  

re fuse a l l  o f  the  ru l ings  and re l ie f  tha t  you sought .   And to  

es tab l i sh  what  i t  i s  tha t  you sought ,  p lease look a t  

parag raph 13.   You have tha t  on  page 439? 

MR MOYANE :    H ’m.   Yes.  20 

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And what  i s  recorded is  th is :  

“Before  tu rn ing  to  the  submiss ions tha t  were  

made,  i t  i s  conven ien t  to  dea l  w i t h  the  ru l ings  

tha t  were  sought .  

I  was asked to  make f i ve  ru l ings  tha t  were  
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expressed as  fo l l ows. . . ”  

 And there  are  the  var ious ru l ings .   The f i rs t  o f  

wh ich  is  a  d iscont inuat ion  o f  th is  commiss ion .   

A l te rna t ive ly,  a  s tay  o f  i t s  p roceed ings pend ing  the  

ou tcome o f  a  d isc ip l inary  inqu i ry.   And then there  were  

var ious o the rs  wh ich  you can read th rough i f  you w ish .    

MR MOYANE :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Does tha t  job  your  memory?  

MR MOYANE :    Yes,  i t  does.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    So  the  ob jec t ions you ra ised were  10 

d ismissed on the  2 n d  o f  Ju ly  bu t  you s t i l l  d id  no t  appear  a t  

the  commiss ion  thereaf te r.   We know tha t .   Cor rec t?  

MR MOYANE :    Cor rec t .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And then i f  I  cou ld  re fer  you to  the  

las t  le t te r  tha t  I  w ish  to  re fer  to .   And tha t  i s  a t  page 173 –  

sor ry,  1772 dated the  12 t h  o f  November  2018  s t i l l  i n  

Append ix  2 .  

MR MOYANE :    Ja .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    A l r igh t .    

MR MOYANE :    Paragraph?  20 

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Which  bund le  i s  tha t?   I s  i t  s t i l l  one o f  

the  app l i ca t ion  f i les?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes,  i t  i s .   I t  i s  on  the  app l i ca t ion  

bund le  and . . . [ in te rvenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON :    We need to  have,  a l l  th ree  o f  us  –  we l l ,  

o f  course ,  counse l  as  we l l ,  who are  present  and o ther  

peop le .   A t  leas t  the  th ree  o f  us  must  have the  same 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .bund le ,  so  tha t  i t  i s  eas ie r  when you  

say bund le  so  and so .   I  th ink  the  app l i ca t ion  f i les  a re  the  

ones seem not  to  be  numbered or  g iven a  par t i cu la r  le t te rs  

to  ident i f y  them.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes . . . [ in te rvenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Cha i r,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .   I  am sor ry.   

We have es tab l i shed dur ing  the  course  o f  th is  tes t imony 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes/  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    . . . tha t  there  seems to  be  a  

d issonance.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    The page numbers  are  the  same.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Bu t  the  f i le  numbers  a re  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe fo r  conven ience what  we  shou ld  

do  is .   We can do one o f  two th ings.   We can take  a  shor t  

ad journment  and you –  when I  come back you are  ab le  to  

say le t  us  mark  tha t  one,  th is  -  le t  us  mark  tha t  one there ,  
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so  tha t  we jus t  need to  say bund le  whatever.   Then we a l l  

can  f ind  i t  eas i l y.   Or  i f  i t  i s  conven ien t  to  you,  you can  

postpone ask ing  quest ions re la t ing  to  th is  un t i l  a f te r  lunch 

and dur ing  the  lunch break tha t  can be sor ted  ou t .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes,  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am easy wh ichever  you pre fe r.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   I  th ink  i t  wou ld  

pre fe rab le  to  do  i t  dur ing  the  lunch ad journment  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  oaky.  10 

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    . . . so  tha t  there  is  t ime.   I  w i l l  s imp ly  

ask  one in  re la t ion  to  one more  l e t te r  wh ich  I  unders tand  

the  w i tness has.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Which  is  a t  page 1772 and i t  runs to  

page 1777.   You have tha t ,  Mr  Moyane 

MR MOYANE :    Yes,  I  have.    

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Dated the  12 t h  o f  November  2018 

and th i s  i s  a  fu r ther  le t te r  f rom the  commiss ion  to  you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  by  chance  I  have i t  in  f ron t  o f  me 20 

too .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Oh,  g rea t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And th is  i s  another  inv i ta t ion  to  you,  

Mr  Moyane,  to  cons ide r  the  po tent ia l  f ind ings wh ich  are  
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summar ised in  the  le t te r  and to  respond to  them and to  say 

why those f ind ings and recommendat ions shou ld  no t  be  

made.   You see r igh t  a t  the  end o f  the  le t te r  i t  i s  sa id :  

“Your  c l ien t  i s  inv i ted  to  fu rn ish  wr i t ten  

submiss ions to  the  commiss ion  as  to  why the  

above f ind ings and recommenda t ions shou ld  

no t  be  made.  

Shou ld  he  w ish  to  fu rn ish  submiss ions,  he  

shou ld  do  so  no  la te r  than 23  November  

2018. . . ”  10 

 Do you see tha t?  

MR MOYANE :    Yes,  I  do .    

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And you wou ld  accept  tha t  you d id  

no t  take  up tha t  inv i ta t ion  e i ther?  

MR MOYANE :    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    So ,  Mr  Moyane,  the  pos i t ion  we have 

then is  tha t  a  spec ia l  commiss ion  o f  inqu i ry  was se t  up  in  

o rder  to  invest iga te  SARS but  i t  had to  p roceed to  i ssue i t s  

f ina l  repor t  w i thout  the  benef i t  o f  the  tes t imony  o f  the 

s i t t ing  commiss ioner.   Cor rec t?  20 

MR MOYANE :    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And I  th ink  the  quest ion  I  have and 

perhaps the  Commiss ion  have and  perhaps the  pub l i c  may 

have is .   Why d id  you not  s imp ly  te l l  your  s to ry?  

MR MOYANE :    Why d id  I  te l l  my s to ry?  
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ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes,  why d id  you not  go  be fore  the  

Nugent  Commiss ion  and re fu te  the  tes t imony tha t  had been 

g iven by  the  64  w i tnesses who had been,  most  o f  them,  

h igh l y  c r i t i ca l  o f  you?  Why d id  you not  go  and te l l  Judge  

Nugent  tha t  what  they were  say ing  about  you is  un t rue? 

MR MOYANE :    S imply  pu t  and unequ ivoca l l y  so .   I t  was 

very  c lea r  f rom our  perspect ive  tha t  there  were  two  runn ing  

para l le l  and I  needed to  c lear  my  name f rom a  d isc ip l ina ry  

perspect ive  so  tha t  when I  go  to  the  Nugent  Commiss ion  

we had a  very  c lear l y  de f ined p la t fo rm upon wh ich  we can  10 

argue mat te rs .   And I  th ink  my counse l  d id  wr i te  a  le t te r  to  

say tha t  the  issues tha t  they wan ted to  be  c la r i f ied  in  the  

le t te rs  tha t  were  sent  be tween the  two ins t i tu t ions .  

 We are  now ta lk ing  about  the  water  under  the  

br idge but  ja ,  a  dec i s ion  had been taken.   That  inqu i ry  took  

p lace in  the  background o f  the  fac t  tha t  as  much as  i t  took  

a  dec is ion  tha t  the  Pres ident  must  make a  dec i s ion ,  my  

fa te  had been dec ided on the  18 t h  o f  March 2108.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Wel l ,  Mr  Moyane,  tha t  i s  an  

ex t raord ina ry  s ta tement  to  make,  w i th  respect .   A re  you  20 

say ing  the  who le  commiss ion  was a  sham? 

MR MOYANE :    I  am not  pu t t ing  words i n  your  mouth .   I  –  i t  

i s  –  you may tu rn  i t  the  way you want ,  s i r.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    No,  I  am ask ing  you.  

MR MOYANE :    I  never  sa id  so .  
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ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Wel l ,  why wou ld  you not  then  

present  you rse l f  as  the  s i t t ing  commiss ioner  and g ive  the  

commiss ion  the  benef i t  o f  your  tes t imony in  re la t ion  to  the  

events  tha t  they  were  invest iga t ing .   You were  the  pr ime 

wi tness,  sure ly.  

MR MOYANE :    My open ing  s ta tement  d id  ind ica te ,  Cha i r.   I  

th ink  I  need to  re i te ra te .   But  i t  was imposs ib le  fo r  us  to  be  

ab le  to  dea l  w i th  these mat te rs .   Two para l le l  p rocesses  

tak ing  p lace.   And a lso  there  were  issues tha t  we were  no t  

happy w i th  and those mat te rs  were  no t  addressed and 10 

g iven a t ten t ion  to .   We d id  say tha t  there  was conf l i c t  o f  

in te res t  by  one o f  the  members .   I  th ink  i t  i s  Katz(?)  and 

o ther  members  o f  the  team.   So we wanted them to  recuse.   

And those mat te rs  were  no t  a t tended to .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes bu t  the  commiss ion  heard  your  

ob jec t ions and ru led  aga ins t  you.   Once i t  had ru led  

aga ins t  you,  why  then d id  you not  te l l  your  s to ry?   You 

rea l i sed tha t  the  commiss ion  was not  go ing  to  upho ld  your  

ob jec t ions.   Were  you not  very  concerned to  te l l  the  t ru th  

so  tha t  the  Commiss ion  wou ld  no t  u l t imate ly  make 20 

misgu ided f ind ings?  

MR MOYANE :    I  do  no t  want  to  ask  you a  quest ion  s i r  bu t  

i t  i s  a  rhe tor i c  quest ion .   Wi th  your  permiss ion ,  

Cha i rperson?  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  
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MR MOYANE :    What  t ru th  was the  commiss ion  seek ing?   

The mat te r  o f  the  fac t  tha t  I  ran  tha t  o rgan isa t ion  to  the  

best  o f  my ab i l i t y.   The s i tua t ion  changed dramat ica l l y  

when the re  was  a  new min is te r  who came in to  the  

organ isa t ion .   That  i s  a l l  what  happened.   I s  tha t ,  there  

was noth ing  tha t  I  h id .   There  was  noth ing  tha t  was  i l l ega l  

tha t  I  commi t ted  in  tha t  o rgan isa t ion .   What  t ru th?   There  

was noth ing  I  was h id ing .   Every th ing  I  d id  was  above  

board .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Bu t  tha t  i s  no t  what  the  w i tnesses  10 

sa id  and you were  to ld  what  the  w i tnesses sa id  and you 

were  g iven the  t ransc r ip ts  o f  what  the  w i tnesses sa id  bu t  

you cho ice  no t  to  re fu te  i t .   That  i s  what  I  am exp lor ing .   

That  i s  what  the  Commiss ion  wants  to  unders tand.   That  i s  

what  the  pub l i c  wants  to  unders tand.   Why d id  you not  use  

the  oppor tun i ty  to  te l l  the  t ru th?    

CHAIRPERSON :    In  o ther  words,  Mr  Moyane.   Mr  Frank l in  

i s  say ing .   Once you saw the  t ranscr ip ts  o f  what  the  

w i tnesses were  say ing ,  i f  you  took the  v iew tha t  those 

w i tnesses were  be ing  unt ru th fu l  about  you in  what  they 20 

were  say ing ,  one wou ld  have expected tha t  you wou ld  want  

to  go  to  tha t  commiss ioner  and te l l  the  commiss ioner :   Th is  

i s  no t  t rue .   Here  is  the  cor rec t  p ic tu re .   Here  is  what  

happened.    

 And you put  you r  s ide  o f  the  s to ry  be fore  the  
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commiss ion  reaches i t s  f ind ings.   He is  say ing ,  why  d id  you 

not  choose to  do  tha t  because then the  commiss ion  wou ld  

have had the  benef i t  o f  your  s ide  o f  the  s to ry  and  then i t  

wou ld  be  –  i t  wou ld  have been  in  a  be t te r  pos i t ion  to  

dec ide  what  was t rue  and what  was not  t rue .    

COUNSEL :    Mr  Cha i rman.   I  beg your  pa rdon,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

COUNSEL :    Be fore  the  w i tness  answers .   My learned 

f r iend ’s  ear l ie r  quest ion  was tha t  64  w i tnesses tes t i f ied  a t  

the  commiss ion .   And I  th ink  as  we  proceed,  the  impress ion  10 

is  then made tha t  a l l  64  w i tnesses shou ld  have –  or  may  

have imp l ica ted  Mr  Moyane.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

COUNSEL :    I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  i s  t rue .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

COUNSEL :    So  i f  the  quest ion  is  asked.   Can we jus t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  some . . . [ in te rvenes]  

COUNSEL :    Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Mr  Moyane,  you 20 

heard  my . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MOYANE :    I  hea rd  your  l ine  o f  –  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MOYANE :    And I  thank you fo r  e luc ida t ing  th i s  mat te r.   

But  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to ,  a t  th is  po in t ,  to  reserve  my  
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comment  on  th is  mat te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR MOYANE :    And the  Commiss ion  may take a  pos i t ion  on  

i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Okay,  Mr  Frank l in .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Mr  Moyane,  reserve  i t  un t i l  when?  

You are  tes t i f y ing  the  Commiss ion  now.   The Commiss ion  

has asked you a  quest ion .   Do you not  want  to  answer  i t  

now? 

MR MOYANE :    No,  I  do  no t  want  to  answer  i t .  10 

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Bu t  I  am ask ing  you to  answer  i t .  

MR MOYANE :    I  am say ing ,  I  am not  answer ing ,  s i r.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Wel l ,  i t  i s  no t  rea l l y  fo r  you to  

dec ide .  

MR MOYANE :    I  have no comment .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    So  you . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MOYANE :    I  have no comment .   I  th ink . . .   I t  is  a  l i t t le  

b i t  un fa i r.   I  have  no comment .    

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    R igh t .   The . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  I  th ink  tha t  i s  good enough.  20 

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because i t  i s  been c la r i f ied  exact ly  what  

your  quest ion  was and i t  ca l led  fo r  an  exp lanat ion  why he 

d id  no t  go  to  the  commiss ion  and put  h is  s ide  o f  the  s to ry.   

He does not  have  a  comment .  
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ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    You d id  ear l ie r  in  response to  the  

Cha i r  dea l  w i th  the  quest ion  o f  your  in ten t ion  to  rev iew the  

Nugent  Commiss ion  repor t  and can you conf i rm tha t  you  

sa id  a t  a  po in t  in  a  t ime tha t  you in tended to  rev iew and  

se t  i t  as ide  or  b r ing  an  app l i ca t ion  to  cour t  to  rev iew the  

Nugent  Commiss ion  repor t  and se t  as ide?  

MR MOYANE :    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And –  bu t  you d id  no t  eve r  p roceed  10 

w i th  tha t?  

MR MOYANE :    Wel l ,  i t  i s  no t  l i ke  i t  m igh t  no t  take  p lace.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Okay.  

MR MOYANE :    I t  does not ,  necessar i l y,  mean tha t  we 

prec lude tha t  oppor tun i ty  to  take  p lace.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    You have  not  persuade a  rev iew 

app l i ca t ion ,  cor rec t?  

MR MOYANE :    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    A l r igh t .   Cou ld  I  then ask  you to  go  

back to  your  w i tness s ta tement?   [Speaker  moves away  20 

f rom speaker ]  . . .where  to  f ind  tha t  now wi th  a l l  the  f i les  

a round you but  i t  i s  SARS Bund le  03 .    

MR MOYANE :    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    You have tha t?  

MR MOYANE :    I  have i t ,  s i r.  
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ADV FRANKLIN SC :    One o f  the  top ics  you dea l  w i th  i s  

your  appo in tment  as  commiss ioner.   And cou ld  I  ask  you to  

p lease tu rn  to  your  s ta tement ,  a f f idav i t  a t  parag raph 66 

s ta r t ing  a t  SARS 03-031?  

MR MOYANE :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry.   P lease repeat  the  page.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    I t  i s  SARS Bund le  03 .   I t  is  page  

031.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Page 31?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Ja .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay tha t  w i l l  be  page 31.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Do you have tha t  Mr  Moyane? 

MR MOYANE :    Which  –  yes,  I  –  she d id  ind ica te  wh ich  

one.   Which  par t?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Paragraph 66.  

MR MOYANE :    Yes,  66  I  have.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Good.   So tha t  i s  f rom your  

s ta tement .   And I  jus t  want  to  go  th rough cer ta in  par ts  o f  

parag raph 66,  p lease.   Here  you  se t  ou t  your  ve rs ion  o f  

events  regard ing  how you were  appo in ted  as  SARS 20 

Commiss ioner.   And you say you want  to  do  tha t  to  pu t  a t  

res t  the  absence  o f  any poss ib le  s ta te  capture  mot ives  on  

my beha l f .   Cor rec t?  

MR MOYANE :    Which  l ine  are  you re fer r i ng  to  so  tha t  I  can  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  
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ADV FRANKLIN SC :    So  a t  paragraph 66,  the  open ing  

words.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Where  i t  says :   “ I  never the less  w ish . . . ”?   

I s  tha t  where  you  are ,  Mr  Frank l in?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   R igh t  a t  the  top  o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOYANE :    Ja ,  I  see i t  now,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

MR MOYANE :    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    R igh t .   I  wanted to  jus t  go  th rough 10 

the  chrono logy,  p lease,  o f  cer ta in  o f  these events .   F i rs t l y,  

you sa id :  

“Somet ime,  p robab ly  in  the  second ha l f  o f  

2013,  the  pos i t ion  o f  SARS Commiss ioner  was  

adver t i sed in  the  mass med ia . . . ”  

 Cor rec t ,  i s  i t  no t?  

MR MOYANE :    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Then you say:  

“ In  o r  about  ea r ly  September  2013,  I  submi t ted  

a  fo rmal  app l i ca t ion .  20 

I  d id  no t  do  so  a t  the  ins t iga t ion . . . ”  

 Sor ry.  

“ . . . the  suggest ion  or  ins t iga t ion  o f  any person.  

By then,  I  was a l ready a  ve teran c iv i l  servant  

hav ing  he ld  severa l  key  pos i t ions  in  the  C iv i l  
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Serv i ce . . . ”  

 Can you conf i rm tha t  as  we l l?  

MR MOYANE :    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Then you say in  66 .3 :  

“A t  some po in t  in  the  very  ear l y  par t  o f  2013,  

the  Pres ident  in fo rmed me. . . ”  

 I f  I  can  jus t  s top  there .   I s  tha t  fo rmer  Pres ident  

Zuma? 

MR MOYANE :    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes.  10 

“ . . . the  Pres iden t  in fo rmed me in  s t r i c t  

conf idence tha t  he  in tended to  appo in t  me to  

the  pos i t ion  o f  SARS Commiss ioner  fo r  wh ich  I  

had app l ied .  

He exp la ined tha t  h is  in ten t ion  shou ld  be  kept  

under  wraps as  he  on ly  in tended to  fo rmal i se  i t  

i f  he  was s t i l l  i n  o ff i ce  a f te r  the  genera l  

e lec t ions wh ich  was schedu led  to  take  p lace in  

May o f  2014. . . ”  

 I s  tha t  cor rec t?  20 

MR MOYANE :    Cor rec t .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And then po in t  4 :  

“ I  fu l l y  unders tood tha t  the  dec i s ion  was 

obv ious ly  on  the  cond i t ion  upon the  happen ing  

o f  th ree  ind iv idua l  o r  const i tu t iona l  events ,  
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namely :  

(1 )  That  the  ru l ing  ANC wou ld  w in  an  out r igh t  

ma jor i t y  in  the  2014 E lec t ions.   (Th is  was 

not  comple te  due  to  d ramat ic  changes in  

the  po l i t i ca l  landscape a t  tha t  t ime. )  

(2 )  I f  the  ANC was successfu l ,  as  genera l l y  

expected,  tha t  i t  wou ld  f i l l  the  s i t t ing 

pres ident  as  i t s  cand ida te  in  Par l iament .   

(Th is  was a lmost  guaranteed fo l low ing a  

na tura l  ca tas t rophe. )  10 

(3)  The ANC cand ida te  wou ld  be  go on 

su f f i c ien t  vo tes  in  Par l iament  to  be  the  

next  p res ident .   (Th is  was dependent  on  

the  f i rs t  i ssue i .e .  the  ou tcome o f  the  

e lec t ions. ) . . . ”  

 And then 5 :  

“ Indeed I  kept  the  in fo rmat ion  to  myse l f  and 

on ly  shared i t  w i th  my w i fe  whom I  t rus ted  

imp l ic i t l y. . . ”  

 I  wou ld  l i ke  to  jus t  pause the re  i f  I  may and jus t  20 

ask  you to  conf i rm tha t  I  unders tand on your  vers ion  and. . .   

So you and Pres ident  Zuma knew in  ve ry  ea r ly  2013 tha t  

you,  Mr  Moyane,  wou ld  be  appo in ted  commiss ioner  

p rov ided the  cond i t ions  se t  ou t  in  para  66 .4  were  compl ied  

w i th .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  
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MR MOYANE :    Yes,  taken in to  e f fec t  –  in to  account  tha t  

P res ident  Zuma accounts  the  head o f  SARS.   [Speaker  

unc lea r ]    

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  repeat ,  p lease.    

MR MOYANE :    Tak ing  in to  account  tha t  he  was the  one 

who was go ing  to  appo in t  the  commiss ioner.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  he  was the  au thor i t y.  

MR MOYANE :    Yes,  he  had the  au thor i t y  to  do  so .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MOYANE :    Yes.  10 

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes,  bu t  o therw ise  you conf i rm the  

cor rec tness o f  what  I  have put  here? 

MR MOYANE :    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    So  the  two o f  you knew many months  

in  advance o f  the  count ry  tha t  you wou ld  be  appo in ted  as  

commiss ioner  so  long as  the  ANC won the  e lec t ion  and 

Mr  Zuma got  a  second te rm,  cor rec t?  

MR MOYANE :    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And you p lanned accord ing ly,  as  I  

unders tand your  s ta tement ,  and  le t  me re fer  you to  20 

paragraph 66.9  on  page 33.   A l r igh t .   You ta lk  about  a  low-

key prepara t ion  and the  l i ke .   And then you sa id :  

“ I t  was i n  th is  contex t  tha t  the  p resenta t ions  

re fer red  to  and a t tached by  Mr  Wi l l iams in  h is  

a f f idav i t  were  made. . . ”  
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 So  am I  co r rec t  to  say tha t  once you and the  

fo rmer  Pres ident  had th is  d iscuss ion ,  you e f fec t i ve ly  

p lanned w i th  your  appo in tment  in  m ind?  I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MOYANE :    Yes.   But  le t  us  go  back a  b i t .   Bes ides tha t  

I  have a l ready app l ied  fo r  th is  pos i t ion .   So when th is  was 

brought  to  my a t ten t ion ,  then I  had to  th ink  on  my fee t  as  

to  how I  wou ld  be  ab le  to  a t tend to  th is  par t i cu la r  pos i t ion  

and fami l ia r i se  myse l f  to  the  fu l l  ex ten t  o f  what  the  

oppor tun i t ies  are  go ing  to  be  and in  re la t ion  to  the 

organ isa t ion  I  w i l l  be  dep loyed to .    10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  go ing  back  to  parag raph 66.   There  

seems to  be  a  l i t t le  b i t  o f  some incons is tency be tween – or  

in  parag raph 66.3 .   I  th ink  what  you have sa id  i s  tha t  i t  was 

in  the  ear ly  –  ve ry  ear l y  par t  o f  2013 tha t  the  Pres ident  

in fo rmed you tha t  he  in tended to  appo in t  you as  SARS 

Commiss ioner.   Is  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MOYANE :    I t  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  in  66 .1 ,  you say:  

“Somet ime,  p robab ly  in  the  second ha l f  o f  

2013,  the  pos i t ion  o f  SARS Commiss ioner  was  20 

adver t i sed in  the  mass med ia . . . ”  

 And then in  66 .3  you say the  Pres ident  to ld  you 

th is  tha t  he  in tended to  appo in t  you.   You say to  appo in t  

you fo r  the  pos i t ion  as  SARS Commiss ioner  fo r  wh ich  you 

had app l ied .   I  take  i t  tha t  there  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]  
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MR MOYANE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MOYANE :    Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Not  app l ied  when he approved you.  

MR MOYANE :    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   You app l ied  la te r?  

MR MOYANE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   Thank you.   Mr  Frank l in .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Jus t  to  ge t  tha t  sequence.   A re  you 

say ing  tha t  the  Pres ident  to ld  you th i s  and then you 10 

app l ied  or  the  o ther  way a round? 

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  he  is  say ing  he  was approached by  

the  Pres ident  in  the  very  ear l y  par t  o f  2013 when he 

in fo rmed h im  tha t  he  in tended to  appo in t  h im as SARS 

Commiss ioner  bu t  the  adver t i sement  o f  the  pos i t ion  

happened the reaf te r,  p robab ly  in  t he  second ha l f  o f  2013 

and then he app l ied .   I s  tha t  cor rec t ,  Mr  Moyane? 

MR MOYANE :    No,  le t  me cor rec t ,  S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay,  okay.  

MR MOYANE :    Mr  Myburgh(?)  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MOYANE :    Yes.  And what  happened i s  tha t  the  f i rs t  

par t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MOYANE :    I  had app l ied  in  the  ear l y  pa r t  –  second  
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ha l f  o f  2013.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MOYANE :    Le t  me say,  I  have  a l ready le f t  Cor rec t iona l  

Serv i ces .   That  was around September  the  13 t h  when I  

app l ied  –  submi t ted .   The Pres ident  to ld  me a f te r.   I t  was 

jus t  co inc idence.   I  have a l ready app l ied .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MOYANE :    Unbeknown to  me tha t  th is  wou ld  happen 

by  the  Pres ident .   I  had a l ready  app l ied .   The post  was 

app l ied .   And i f  you go to  the  records  o f  SARS,  i t  was 10 

c los ing  around the  12 t h  o r  13 t h  o f  September,  a round there .   

I  had a l ready app l ied  fo r  the  pos i t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MOYANE :    So  the  s ix  po in t  –  66 .3  i s  no t  p roper ly  

c ra f ted .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    A l r igh t .   So w i th  tha t  cor rec t ion ,  as  I  

unders tand your  ev idence then,  i t  was –  am I  cor rec t ,  

shor t l y  a f te r  you had app l ied  tha t  you had th is  d i scuss ion  

w i th  the  Pres iden t?  20 

MR MOYANE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The on ly  th ing ,  o f  course ,  w i th  tha t  i s  

tha t  the  f i rs t  l i ne  o f  66 .3  appears  t o  be  qu i te  c lea r  tha t  you 

say i t  was in  the  ve ry  ear l y  pa r t  o f  2013.   Can you see  

tha t?  
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MR MOYANE :    That  i s  why I  am say ing  there  is  an  er ror.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MOYANE :    I t  shou ld  be  the  la te r  pa r t  o f  2013.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MOYANE :    A f te r.   I t  was a f te r  September.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MOYANE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Frank l in .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    A l r igh t .   Thank you.   Perhaps jus t  to  

g ive  some more  cer ta in ty  to  the  chrono logy.   Min is te r  10 

Gordhan made a  w i tness s ta tement  and i t  i s  in  Bund le  N1 

and i t  i s  a t  pa rag raph 33,  page 14 .   I  jus t  take  you  to  tha t  

p lease.  

MR MOYANE:    Which  page?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    14 .   Do you have parag raph  33,  Mr  

Moyane?  

MR MOYANE:    Yes,  I  do  have,  S i r .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Thank you.   And you can read tha t  

fo r  you rse l f  bu t  there  the  m in is te r  says tha t  Mr  Magashu le  

res igned as  Commiss ioner  on  the  12  Ju ly  2013.   Mr  P i l lay  20 

then took ove r  in  an  ac t ing  pos i t ion ,  I  am jus t  summar is ing ,  

and then the  pos i t ion  o f  Commiss ioner  was adver t i sed in  

la te  2013 and the  m in is t ry  rece ived –  I  th ink  i t  says  p lus  or  

m inus 120 app l i cants ,  cor rec t?  

MR MOYANE:    Yes.  
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ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And do  you accept  tha t  tha t  i s  

cor rec t?  

MR MOYANE:    What  i s  cor rec t ,  S i r?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    What  he  says the re .  

MR MOYANE:    Wel l ,  tha t  i s  what  he  says,  tha t  the  m in is t ry  

rece ived 120 app l i ca t ions.    

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes,  tha t  Mr  Magashu le  res igned on  

a  par t i cu la r  da te ,  Mr  P i l lay  took over ,  pos i t ion  was  

adver t i sed in  la te  2013 and  the  m in is t ry  rece ived  

approx imate l y  120 app l i cants .   You accept  tha t?  10 

MR MOYANE:    Yes,  I  th ink  m ine was amongst  them.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    A l r igh t .   So the  pos i t ion  is  tha t  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  you  ta l k  in  your  a f f idav i t  –  m ight  

no t  mat te r ,  you ta lk  in  you r  a f f idav i t  about  the 

adver t i sement  hav ing  been probab ly  in  the  second ha l f  o f  

the  year  2013.   Mr  Gordhan  seems to  ta lk  about  

app l i ca t ions hav ing  been rece ived a l ready wh i le  he  was  

Min is te r  o f  F inance and he wou ld  have ceased to  be 

Min is te r  o f  F inance in  –  or  he  wou ld  have ceased on ly  in  20 

2014,  May.  

MR MOYANE:    Cor rec t ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR MOYANE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Okay,  no ,  I  see tha t  he  ac tua l l y  
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says  a lso  the  adver t i sement  o f  the  post  was in  the  la t te r  

ha l f  o f  2013.   Ja ,  okay.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes and i f  the  Cha i r  o r  the  w i tness 

w ishes to  look  a t  i t ,  the  adver t i sement  i s  an  annex  4 ,  page 

77 o f  tha t  same bund le  and i t  has  a  c los ing  da te  o f  13 

September  2013.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Does tha t  sound r igh t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  the  las t  day tha t  you are  ta lk ing  

about .  10 

MR MOYANE:    That  i s  the  day I  submi t ted ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Wel l ,  except  tha t  i f  tha t  was the  las t  

day to  submi t  app l i ca t ions,  then i t  cannot  be  – okay,  I  may 

have I  m isunders tood you.   So you say the  Pres ident  spoke 

to  you a f te r  you had submi t ted  your  app l i ca t ion?  

MR MOYANE:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR MOYANE:    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    R igh t ,  so ,  Mr  Moyane,  am I  cor rec t  

a t  th is  po in t  in  t ime when you app l ied  in  2013 you  had no 20 

exper ience in  runn ing  a  revenue serv i ce  or  any exper ience 

in  mat te rs  o f  taxa t ion ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MOYANE:    You say d id  I  have  exper ience in  runn ing  a  

revenue serv i ce?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes.  
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MR MOYANE:    No,  I  never  had exper ience o f  runn ing  a  

revenue serv i ce .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    A l r igh t .   The Pres ident  –  le t  me jus t  

take  you ra ther  –  yes,  a t  the  end o f  pa ragraph 66.8  on  

page 33 you sa id :  

“L ike  some o f  p rev ious appo in tees inc lud ing  Mr  

Gordhan and a l t hough I  fe l t  we l l -qua l i f ied  fo r  the  

pos i t ion  I  d id  no t  have any exper ience in  taxa t ion  

bu t  I  was a  genera l i s t  manager  o r  sen io r  execut ive  

in  the  pub l i c  sec tor . ”  10 

Cor rec t?  

MR MOYANE:    Which  page is  tha t ,  S i r ,  my apo log ies?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Sor ry,  tha t  i s  page 32 to  33  o f  you r  

w i tness s ta tement .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  guess to  be  more  prec ise ,  Mr  Frank l in ,  

i s  32  and 33 o f  the  bund le .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because 32 and  33 o f  the  s ta tement  w i l l  

be  o ther  30s.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes,  Cha i r  i s  qu i te  cor rec t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Do you have tha t?    

MR MOYANE:    Refer  me to  wh ich  –  I  have found i t  now.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    I t  i s  a t  the  top  o f  page 33  o f  the 

bund le .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    The b lack  numbers ,  32  and 33  o f  the  

bund le  tha t  had got  your  w i tness s ta tement .   You have got  

i t?  

MR MOYANE:    My apo log ies ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes,  I  jus t  d i rec t  your  a t ten t ion  to  

tha t  because you say there  you d id  no t  have any  

exper ience in  taxa t ion  bu t  you were  a  genera l i s t  manager  

o r  sen ior  execut ive  in  the  pub l i c  sec tor.   You were  up  

aga ins t  120-odd app l i cants .   Do not  know who they were  10 

but  I  p resume there  were  some very  deserv ing  cand ida tes .   

Do you know why  the  Pres ident  chose you?  

MR MOYANE:    F i rs t l y,  I  am an economis t  in  whatever  

pos i t ion  tha t  I  he ld  tha t  had aspects  o f  economics ,  I  pu t  my  

mind an my a t ten t ion  to  what  was requ i red  o f  tha t  

respons ib i l i t y  so  I  d id  see any d i f f i cu l t y  bu t  I  wou ld  land in  

the  process and a lso  fami l ia r i se  myse l f  w i th  the  

env i ronment .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l  you have jus t  sa id  you  are  an  

economis t ,  maybe in  the  meant ime to  cover  what  your  20 

qua l i f i ca t ions were  or  a re?  

MR MOYANE:    Yes,  I  am an economis t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MOYANE:    I  d id  my jun io r  degree,  I  d id  no t  comple te  

my s tud ies  in  1976 because o f  the  po l i t i ca l  upheava ls  a t  
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the  Un ivers i t y  o f  Tur f loop.   Then I  le f t  the  count ry  in  

November  1976.   I  then was accepted in  Mozambique.    

I  was requested then by  the  Mozambican  

government  and sen ior  pa r ty  o f f i c ia ls  a t  the  reques t  o f  the  

A f r i can Nat iona l  Congress to  be  seconded to  the  la rgest  

pou l t r y  fa rm in  Mozambique and run  tha t  dur ing  the  d i f f i cu l t  

t imes o f  Mozambique g iven  the  fac t  tha t  when  

independence was granted Mozambique had c lose  to  60 ,  

70% of  i l l i t e racy  and they had a  very  low leve l  o f  qua l i f ied  

and exper ienced peop le ,  no t  tha t  I  was among the  head o f  10 

–  I  advanced in  te rms o f  I  d id  no t  know the  job  bu t  there  

was th is  unders tand ing  tha t  tha t  you unders tand the  who le  

se t  o f  economics  and a l l  o f  i t ,  you  wou ld  ass i s t  because we 

have peop le  on  the  ground.   But  I  made i t  ve ry  c lear  tha t  

my ass is tance to  the  Mozambican government  wou ld  be  

l im i ted  because I  am a  member  o f  the  A f r i can Nat iona l  

Congress,  as  long as  they want  to  be  ab le  to  ass i s t  I  w i l l  

do  so  bu t  my pr imary  ob jec t ion  is  to  s tudy.   And I  agreed 

w i th  the  Min i s te r  o f  Agr icu l tu re  and Rura l  Deve lopment  in  

Mozambique a t  the  end o f  1977 I  w i l l  go  back to  un i vers i t y.   20 

I  s ta r ted  f rom sc ra tch ,  I  d id  my economics  in  Mozambique,  

I  comple ted  my  bache lor ’s  degrees in  economics  in  

Mozambique,  I  was then aga in  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Was the  B .Com? 

MR MOYANE:    B .Com,  yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MOYANE:    B .Com Economics .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MOYANE:    Then I  was then aga in  requested to  be  

t ransfer red  and work  w i th  the  Mozambican government  as  

the  head o f  the  cashew nut  sector  wh ich  was the  

corne rs tone o f  the  economy because Mozambique a t  the  

t ime was a  wor ld  leader  in  cashew product ion  to  secure  

tha t  sec to r  tha t  was devasta ted  by  the  war.   I  worked –  by  

1985 I  was made head,  as  a  fo re igner,  head  o f  the 10 

depar tment  tha t  dea l t  w i th  res t ruc tur ing  o f  the  cashew nut  

sec tor  suppor ted  by  the  Wor ld  Bank and the  A f r i can 

Deve lopment  Bank.   I  t ransformed togethe r  w i th  a  team 

in to  a  we l l - runn ing  ins t i tu t ion  in  Mozambique and in  1991,  

jus t  be fo re  we  came back I  was seconded  to  the  

government  o f  the  Government  o f  Gu inea-B issau,  a t tached  

the  Min is t r y  o f  Rura l  Deve lopment  a lso  to  dea l  w i th  the  

cha l lenges tha t  they had.  

 When I  comple ted  tha t  I  came back,  so  I  had a  

number  o f  pos i t ions  tha t  I  worked in .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MOYANE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Frank l in .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes,  thank you.   I  rea l l y  jus t  wanted 

to  unders tand  fo r  the  Commiss ion ’ s  benef i t  what  
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par t i cu la r l y  qua l i f ied  you fo r  the  post  o f  Commiss ioner  o f  

SARS.   I  unders tand your  background as  an  economis t  and 

the  var ious pos i t ions  tha t  you had but  do  you know why  

Pres ident  Zuma thought  you were  the  person fo r  the  job? 

MR MOYANE:    I  m igh t  no t  have been ab le  to  unders tand  

what  was in  h is  m ind but  ins t i tu t ions  tha t  I  led  in  whatever  

capac i ty ,  I  led  them in  good s tead .  

 Second ly ,  I  want  to  pu t  on  record  I  went  to  s tudy a t  

London Schoo l  o f  Economics  and  I  d id  my in te rmed ia te  

m icro-economics  cer t i f i ca te  and I  d id  fu r ther  s tud ies  in  10 

South  A f r i ca  as  fa r  as  un ivers i t y .   So I  th ink  in  h is  m ind the  

fac t  tha t  I  was ab le  to  meander  th rough the  va r ious sectors  

o f  ins t i tu t ions  in  South  A f r i ca  I  have a  capac i ty ,  I  ran  the 

Government  Pr in t ing  Works  as  a  CEO,  I  am the  one who 

produced the  f i rs t  top  passpor t  in  South  A f r i ca ,  passpor t  

tha t  a l l  o f  us  have here .   I  went  to  Cor rec t iona l  Serv i ces ,  

t ransformed and  then I  th ink  my t rack  reco rd  speaks  

vo lumes about  me,  I  cannot  say  what  I  d id  bu t  I  th ink  the  

capac i ty  to  land and be ab le  to  be  par t  o f  the  team to  do 

what  was requ i red  in  tha t  sec to r .  20 

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    R igh t ,  th is  a f f idav i t  wh ich  was f i led 

on  the  21  March o f  th is  yea r ,  as  fa r  as  I  have been  ab le  to  

see,  th is  i s  the  f i rs t  t ime you have sa id  pub l i c ly ,  p lease  

cor rec t  me i f  I  am wrong,  tha t  the  Pres ident  to ld  you in  

advance tha t  he  in tended to  appo in t  you so  long as  these 
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cond i t ions  in  paragraph 66.4  were  compl ied  w i th .   When  

was tha t  –  o r  was tha t  ever  made pub l i c  be fore  th i s  

a f f idav i t?  

MR MOYANE:    Come aga in ,  I  am aware  [ ind is t inc t  –  

d ropp ing  vo ice ] .   What  i s  the  quest ion  aga in ,  S i r?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    You had sa id  in  th is  a f f idav i t  tha t  the  

Pres ident  to ld  you in  s t r i c t  conf idence tha t  he  in tended to  

appo in t  you i n  a  pos i t ion  o f  SARS Commiss ioner  fo r  wh ich  

you had app l ied ,  cor rec t?  

MR MOYANE:    Yes.  10 

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    That  reve la t ion ,  was tha t  made  

pub l i c  a t  any s tage before  th is  a f f idav i t  in  2021?  I  am jus t  

no t  aware  o f  i t ,  you  might  be .    

MR MOYANE:    Pub l i c  by  the  Pres ident?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Or  you.  

MR MOYANE:    No,  i t  was not  made pub l i c  by  the  

Pres ident .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  me ask th is  quest ion .   When Mr  

Gordhan gave ev idence before  the  Commiss ion ,  I  th ink  i t  

must  have been h is  f i rs t  appearance,  and dea l t  w i th  h is  20 

te rm o f  o f f i ce  as  Min is te r  o f  F inance,  he  sa id  tha t  he  had 

in i t ia ted  the  process tha t  shou ld  lead to  the  appo in tment  o f  

a  new Commiss ioner,  the  adver t i sement .   And,  o f  course ,  

we jus t  looked  a t  the  pa ragraph where  i t  sa id  120 

app l i ca t ions were  rece ived.   H is  ev idence was to  the  e f fec t  
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tha t  when he spoke to  the  Pres ident  about  the  p rocess the  

Pres ident  sa id  someth ing  to  the  e f fec t  tha t  –  I  do  no t  want  

to  pu t  words in to  Mr  Gordhan ’s  mouth  –  bu t  my impress ion  

tha t  he ,  the  P res ident ,  was not  in te res ted  i n  the  process o f  

adver t i sement  because he wanted to  exerc ise  h is  au thor i t y  

to  jus t  appo in t  whoever  he  cons idered to  be  the  person he 

shou ld  appo in t .   My impress ion  f rom Mr  Gordhan ’s  

ev idence was tha t  the  Pres ident  wou ld  no t  have used any  

o f  tha t  p rocess o r  those names and so  on .   Now i f  tha t  i s  

so  then i t  may  we l l  be  –  I  am wonder ing  about  your  10 

app l i ca t ion  bu t  i t  may we l l  be  tha t  the  Pres ident  had 

ident i f ied  the  pe rson tha t  he  thought  was su i tab le ,  wh ich  

happened to  be  you,  and he was to  appo in t  tha t  person and  

not  necessar i l y  ge t  invo lved in  the  process o f  cons ide r ing  

o ther  cand ida tes .   A re  you ab le  to  say anyth ing  about  th is?  

MR MOYANE:    Cha i r,  the  quest ion  is  very  d i f f i cu l t  bu t  I  

w i l l  t ry  to  g ive  a  sense.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  you might  no t  be  ab le  …[ in tervenes]  

MR MOYANE:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Bas ica l l y  what  I  am ask ing  is  20 

whethe r  to  your  knowledge you  were  the  resu l t  o f  a  

compet i t i ve  process?  In  o ther  words,  whether  the  

Pres ident  se lec ted  you among  o thers  tha t  he  had 

cons idered.   Now you may or  may  not  know the  answer  to  

tha t  quest ion .  
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MR MOYANE:    Yes,  I  th ink  you jus t  –  we l l ,  the  words in to  

my mouth  cor rec t l y,  so  I  wou ld  no t  know as to  whethe r  

there  was a  number  o f  peop le  tha t  he  was cons ider ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MOYANE:    And in  the  process app l ied  h is  m ind tha t  

th is  i s  the  person  tha t  I  want .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MOYANE:    Bu t  second ly,  Cha i r,  we do not  know as to  

when the  d i scuss ion  be tween the  Pres ident  and Mr  

Gordhan took p lace.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MOYANE:    Cons ider ing ,  o f  course ,  a  po in t  tha t  you  

are  ra is ing  tha t  i t  was about  120,  very  compet i t i ve .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MOYANE:    So  we do not  know the  t imef rame.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MOYANE:    Cer ta in l y  tha t ,  to  me,  was not  an  issue tha t  

was d iscussed be tween me and the  Pres ident .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MOYANE:    H is  ra t iona le  and  the  th ink ing  res ides w i th  20 

h im.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MOYANE:    I  th ink  he  cou ld  answer  i t  i f  he  was to  be  

coming here ,  come here  and say what  was the  ra t iona le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  tha t  i f  fa i r  enough.   What  you do 
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know is  tha t  you had app l ied  fo r  the  pos i t ion  as  we l l .  

MR MOYANE:    That  i s  hundred pe rcent  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Frank l in?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Thank you ,  Cha i r.   Then i f  I  cou ld  

cont inue w i th  the  chrono logy w i th  re ference to  paragraph  

66 o f  your  a f f idav i t ,  p lease  look  a t  parag raph 66.6 ,  you 

sa id  tha t  you kep t  the  in fo rmat ion  on ly  to  yourse l f  and your  

w i fe  and then you  say:  

“Dur ing  a  fo l low-up v i s i t  to  the  Pres ident  to  d iscuss  

the  mat te r  I  happened to  f ind  h im in  a  meet ing  w i th  10 

the  Cha i rman and  CEO of  Te lkom in  the  presence o f  

the  manag ing  d i rec to r  o f  Ba in  who in t roduced 

h imse l f  as  a  Mr  Massone. ”  

Jus t  paus ing  there ,  a re  you ab le  to  pu t  a  da te  to  tha t  

meet ing?  

MR MOYANE:    I  cannot  pu t  a  da te  and a  month ,  I  th ink  i t  

was 2014,  cou ld  be ,  because bear  in  m ind the  app l i ca t ion  

was in  September,  so  i t  was beg inn ing  o f  2014 or  so ,  so  I  

cannot  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wou ld  i t  have been a f te r  you had  20 

submi t ted  your  app l i ca t ion?  

MR MOYANE:    A f te r  I  had submi t ted  my app l i ca t ion ,  S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And do you know whether  i t  wou ld  have  

been a f te r  the  Pres ident  had conf ided in  you? 

MR MOYANE:    Yes,  i t  was a f te r  the  Pres ident  had 
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con f ided w i th  me,  yes,  tha t  i s  why I  was go ing  to  see  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MOYANE:    He ca l led  me,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    A l r igh t ,  as  we sha l l  see la te r,  

acco rd ing  to  Ba in  the  two o f  you  met ,  tha t  i s  you  and Mr  

Massone,  somet ime in  October  o f  2013.   Would  tha t  sound  

around the  r igh t  t ime?  

MR MOYANE:    Where  is  tha t…? 

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    I  w i l l  come to  tha t  bu t  I  am jus t  10 

te l l ing  you the  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  

MR MOYANE:    I  cannot  reca l l  the  da te  and month .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    You are  no t  sure .  

MR MOYANE:    Yes,  ja .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    A l r igh t .   As  regards Ba in ,  you reca l l  

Mr  Massone?  Do  you remember  Mr  Massone? 

MR MOYANE:    Yes,  I  know h im,  yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    You had ex tens i ve  dea l ings w i th  h im 

and he was the  lead person fo r  Ba in  in  South  A f r i ca  dur ing  

the  t ime tha t  you in te rac ted  w i th  h im a t  SARS,  i s  tha t  20 

cor rec t?  

MR MOYANE:    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And he gave ev idence  on one 

occas ion  a t  the  Nugent  Commiss ion  bu t  no t  aga in ,  so  he  

d id  tes t i f y  a t  the  Nugent  Commiss ion .   You know tha t?  
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MR MOYANE:    I  wou ld  assume tha t  he  d id ,  yes ,  he  

cer ta in ly  d id  tes t i f y .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    R igh t .   A t  a  po in t  in  t ime you to ld  

Ba in  as  we l l  tha t  you had been earmarked by  Pres ident  

Zuma a t  the  t ime fo r  the  post  o f  Commiss ioner  o f  SARS 

sub jec t  to  the  e lec t ion  v ic to ry  and Mr  Zuma ge t t ing  a  

second te rm.   Can you conf i rm tha t?  

MR MOYANE:    Not  to  Ba in ,  to  Mr  Massone.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    A l r igh t ,  sor ry ,  to  a  spec i f i c  

ind iv idua l ,  Mr  Massone.  10 

MR MOYANE:    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    A l r igh t .   So le t  us  jus t  look p lease a t  

SARS bund le  01 ,  tha t  i s  the  bund le  wh ich  conta ins  the  

w i tness s ta tement  o f  Mr  Wi l l iams together  w i th  i t s  

annexures.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Have you ment ioned the  page,  Mr  

Frank l in?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    No,  no t  ye t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  d i rec t  you p lease  20 

to  annexure  AW67 page 420.   I  am sor ry  to  do  tha t  to  you,  

i t  i s  in  fac t  no t  the  r igh t  one,  p lease look a t  page 470.   I t  i s  

annexure  AW6 to  Mr  Wi l l iams’  a f f idav i t .   Do you see tha t?  

MR MOYANE:    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    That  i s  an  emai l  f rom Mr  Massone to 
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h is  co l league Mr  Franzen.   Do you remember  Mr  Franzen  

f rom Ba in?  

MR MOYANE:    Page 471?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    No,  470.   There  is  a  re fe rence to  a  

Mr  Franzen,  Fabr ice  Franzen.  

MR MOYANE:    A re  we s t i l l  on  the  same WW1A,  AW471?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    A re  you look ing  a t  the  top  l e f t  hand  

page?  

MR MOYANE:    Oh,  top  le f t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    SARS bund le  1 .  10 

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Do you have i t?  

MR MOYANE:    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    There  a re  four  separa te  emai ls ,  

p lease look a t  the  las t  one,  Mr  Franzen says  to  Mr  

Mazzone:  

 C iao ,  jus t  wanted  to  check how your  “b ig  meet ing ”  

went  yes terday?  Take care . ”  

And then the  response f rom Mr  Mazzone is :  

“Thank you,  Fabr i ce ,  i t  went  ve ry  we l l ,  SARS is  a  go  

r igh t  a f te r  the  e lec t ions. ”  20 

So jus t  paus ing  there ,  you wou ld  accept  tha t  a t  leas t  by  

th is  da te ,  tha t  i s  the  4  Apr i l  o f  2014,  Ba in  were  aware  tha t  

they were  go ing  to  be  appo in ted  to  SARS.   Would  you  

agree?  

MR MOYANE:    I  am not  sure  i s  t o  where  the  in fe rence is  



26 MAY 2021 – DAY 403 
 

Page 121 of 221 
 

because he says:  

“C iao ,  jus t  wanted to  check on  your  “b ig  meet ing ”  

went  yes terday?  Take care . ”  

Where  the  appo in tment ,  as  peop le  who are  go ing  to  ass i s t  

us ,  I  do  no t  see i t  here ,  where  is  i t  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Wel l ,  do  you have any idea what  he  

means when he says:  

“SARS is  a  go  r igh t  a f te r  the  e lec t ions?”  

MR MOYANE:    I  do  no t  know.   I  do  no t  know what  was in  

h is  m ind.   Yes,  I  can see where  i t  is ,  yes .  10 

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    A l r igh t ,  wou ld  you accept  on  the  

bas is  o f  the  tes t imony tha t  you have g iven thus fa r  about  

Mr  Zuma earmark ing  you fo r  the  pos i t ion  and you then  

meet ing  w i th  Ba in  and te l l ing  Ba in  tha t  news,  wou ld  you 

accept  tha t  you,  Pres ident  Zuma and Ba in  a l l  knew many 

months  in  advance o f  the  res t  o f  the  count ry  tha t  you were  

go ing  to  be  appo in ted  as  Commiss ioner  as  long as  the  ANC 

won the  e lec t ion?  

MR MOYANE:    Wel l ,  co r rec t ion ,  no t  P res ident  Zuma,  

myse l f  and Ba in .  20 

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Mr  Massone .  

MR MOYANE:    Yes.   So Mr  Massone a t  tha t  t ime he knew 

because I  spoke to  h im in  s t r i c t  conf idence so  i t  i s  no t  the  

who le  o f  South  A f r i ca  knew.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes,  so  i t  was on ly  in  fac t  Mr  and 
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Mrs  Moyane,  Pres ident  Zuma and Massone who knew th is ,  

i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MOYANE:    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Thank you .   I s  tha t  a  conven ien t  

t ime?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  us  take  the  lunch ad journment ,  i t  i s  

about  one minute  to  one.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We wi l l  resume a t  two o ’c lock .   We 

ad journ .  10 

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t ’s  p roceed.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Thank you  Cha i r.   Befo re  l unch Mr  

Moyane I  had been dea l ing  w i th  the  fac t  tha t  p r io r  to  the  

announcements  to  the  count ry  o f  your  appo in tment  as  

Commiss ioner  o f  SARS you were  aware ,  and fo rmer  

Pres ident  Zuma was aware  and Mr  Massone o f  Ba in  was 

aware  tha t  you were  earmarked fo r  the  pos i t ion ,  do  you  

reca l l  tha t?  20 

MR MOYANE:    Yes I  do .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    I  have asked fo r  two f i les  to  be  

p laced befo re  you,  I  w i l l  be  re fe r r ing  to  them most  o f ten  

and so  cou ld  you look f i rs t l y  a t  your  w i tness a f f idav i t  a t  

Bund le  03 ,  and in  par t i cu la r  page 32.   And here  I  am 
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con t inu ing  w i th  the  chrono logy tha t  you had se t  ou t  in  your  

account  in  paragraph 66 so  hav ing  desc r ibed how the  

Pres ident  in fo rmed you tha t  he  in tended to  appo in t  you and  

tha t  you kept  th is  in fo rmat ion  on ly  to  yourse l f  and your  

w i fe  you then in  paragraph 66.6  to  8  say the  fo l low ing:  

“Dur ing  a  fo l low-up v i s i t  to  the  Pres ident  to  d iscuss  

the  mat te r  I  happened to  f ind  h im in  a  meet ing  w i th  

the  Cha i rman and  CEO of  Te lkom in  the  presence o f  

the  Manag ing  D i rec tor  o f  Ba in  who in t roduced  

h imse l f  as  a  Mr  Massone. ”  10 

Just  paus ing  the re ,  I  unders tand  your  vers ion  to  be  tha t  

th is  was jus t  a  chance meet ing ,  i t  wasn ’ t  an  a r ranged 

meet ing  be tween you and Mr  Massone? 

MR MOYANE:    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    There  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  you re fer  to  the  Cha i rman,  i s  

he  o f  Te lkom,  was tha t  one and the  same person or  there  

were  two peop le ,  one be ing  Cha i rman and one be ing  CEO.   

MR MOYANE:    Two peop le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And who were  they a t  the  t ime? 20 

MR MOYANE:   Can I  ment ion  the  names? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MOYANE:   Okay,  Mr  Jabu Mabusa and the  cur ren t  

CEO of  Te lkom is  . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  S ipho Maseku?  
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MR MOYANE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  thank you.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Thank you,  then 66.7 :  

“he ,  tha t  i s  Mr  Massone I  take  i t ,  in fo rmed me tha t  

he  was ass is t ing  Te lkom wi th  s t ra tegy w i th  g reat  

resu l ts .    I  took  h is  bus iness card  or  we exchanged 

te lephone numbers .   A l l  th is  happened in  the  

wa i t ing  area where  I  was awai t ing  my tu rn  to  go  

ins ide . ”  

Then 66.8 :  10 

“On a  subsequent  da te  and a f te r  do ing  my own 

research  on h i s  company I  contac ted  the  gent leman  

and in fo rmed h im conf ident ia l l y  tha t  I  was  

earmarked to  po ten t ia l l y  take  up  the  pos i t ion  o f  

SARS Commiss ioner  i f  the  Pres ident  was to  se rve  a  

second te rm as exp la ined above. ”  

Jus t  s topp ing  i f  I  cou ld .   Your  vers ion  is  tha t  th is  was jus t  a  

chance meet ing  w i th  Mr  Massone ,  I  jus t  want  to  take  you  

p lease to  what  Mr  Massone sa id  about  th i s  and wou ld  you  

p lease tu rn  to  Annexure  AW50,  th is  you w i l l  f ind  on  the  20 

o ther  f i l e  I  asked  you to  have handy,  tha t  i s  a t  Bund le  01  

and p lease to  page 276.   Do you have tha t?  

MR MOYANE:    H ’m.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    That  i s  an  a f f idav i t  tha t  was  

submi t ted  by  Mr  Massone to  the  Nugent  Commiss ion  and I  
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want  to  po in t  ou t  paragraph 7  on  page 277 where  Mr  

Massone says:  

“a f te r  consu l ta t ion  o f  my reco rds and to  the  best  o f  

my reco l lec t ion  I  have had the  meet ings o r  

encounters  w i th  Mr  Moyane as  se t  ou t  be low.   I  was 

in t roduced to  Tom Moyane by  Duma Ndlovu,  I  was  

to ld  by  Nd lovu tha t  Moyane had  approached h im  

and asked h im fo r  an  in t roduct ion  to  Ba in  because  

he had heard  Ba in ’s  successfu l  work  a t  Te lkom and  

w ished to  unders tand more  about  how Ba in  worked. ”  10 

He says,  Mr  Massone,  tha t  the  two o f  you were  in t roduced  

by  Mr  Duma Nd lovu.   Do you have any reco l lec t ion  o f  tha t?  

MR MOYANE:    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MOYANE:    Cor rec t  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  go  c loser  to  the  m ic .  

MR MOYANE:   Sorry,  cor rec t .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    A l r igh t  thank you.   As  fa r  as  when 

tha t  happened we d iscussed tha t  a  l i t t le  ear l ie r  and I  th ink  

you were  no t  en t i re l y  su re  o f  when you were  f i rs t  20 

in t roduced and I  wanted to  jus t  suggest  to  you based upon  

what  Ba in  have sa id  tha t  i t  was dur ing  or  about  October  

2013,  and why  I  say  tha t  i s  because o f  the  press  

s ta tements  tha t  I  took  you to  ear l ie r  a t  AW45,  s t i l l  i n  the  

SARS 01,  page 252.    Page 252 ,  bund le  01 .   I t ’s  1 ,  no t  
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sure  wh ich  one you are  in .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  you might  w ish  to  pu l l  the  m ic  

c loser  to  you once you are  done w i th  the  f i les  Mr  Moyane 

so  tha t  you r  answers  w i l l  be  reco rded.    I f  you  pu l l  i t  –  I  

th ink  i t  does move but  I  don ’ t  know how much.  

 Ja ,  okay.  

MR MOYANE:    Which  page.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    252,  tha t  i s  the  beg inn ing  page o f  a  

p ress  s ta tement  wh ich  Ba in  i ssued and I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  

you to  page 253  on the  le f t  hand  s ide ,  253,  do  you have  10 

tha t .  

MR MOYANE:    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:     The second pa ragraph what  Ba in  

says pub l ica l l y  i s :  

“ In  October  2013  Mr  Massone was a lso  in t roduced  

to  Mr  Tom Moyane who la te r  became the  

Commiss ioner  o f  SARS by Mr  Duma Ndlovu,  an  

ex te rna l  adv i so r  to  Ba in  a t  tha t  t ime.   I t  wou ld  

appear  tha t  Massone unders tood  Mr  Moyane was  

the  Pres ident ’s  in tended appo in tee  to  be  SARS 20 

Commiss ioner  we l l  be fore  i t  happened. ”  

Now jus t  –  I  re fe r  you to  the  da te ,  October  13 ,  does tha t  

sound about  r igh t  in  the  chrono logy?  

MR MOYANE:    I  can ’ t  reca l l  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]   

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    A l r igh t ,  bu t  i t  doesn ’ t  sound out  o f  
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p lace  does i t?  

MR MOYANE:     I  don ’ t  know,  as  I  say  I  cannot  reca l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  your  reco l lec t ion  tha t  you met  Mr  

Massone before  the  end o f  2013  or  i s  i t  tha t  i t  was in  

2014?  

MR MOYANE:   I t  was in  October  when I  was work ing  a t  

SETA,  so  I  can ’ t  reca l l ,  I  was work ing  a t  SETA,  I  was  

seconded a t  SETA,  I  can ’ t  reca l l  conc lus ive ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

MR MOYANE:   Because Min i s te r  S isu le  brough t  me to  10 

[aud io  fau l t y ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    A l r igh t ,  so  are  you say ing  you are  

no t  par t i cu la r l y  sure  about  tha t?   Mr  Moyane? 

MR MOYANE:    Yes,  I  sa id  I  canno t  reca l l  s i r.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    A l r igh t .  

MR MOYANE:    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Cou ld  I  then re fer  you to  another  

document  p lease . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOYANE:    Pardon  20 

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    AW,  the  same bund le ,  I  w i l l  te l l  you 

when to  change thank you.   I t  i s  AW67 page 420.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Page?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    420 Cha i r.   Th is  i s  anothe r  Annexure  

to  Mr  Wi l l iams  s ta tement  and  i t  i s  a  par tner  se l f -
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assessment  by  Mr  Massone dated 6 t h  o f  December  2013  

and th is  i s  a  document  wh ich  was  g iven to  Mr  Wi l l iams as  

par t  o f  h is  inves t iga t ion .   Cou ld  I  ask  you to  look  a t  the 

second paragraph,  you are  we lcome to  read the  f i rs t  i f  you  

w ish ,  bu t  th is  i s  Mr  Massone te l l ing  h is  super io rs  as  I  

unders tand i t  what  he  has been do ing  in  South  A f r i ca ,  and  

he says:  

“as  a  ha lo  e f fec t  o f  the  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  S ipho and  

the  ro le  we p layed in  the  Phoen ix  Pro jec t . ”  

Can I  s top  there ,  do  you know what  the  Phoen ix  Pro jec t  10 

was?  

MR MOYANE:    No I  don ’ t  know what  the  Phoen ix  Pro jec t  i s  

a l l  about  s i r.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    We have been invo lved in  p repar ing  

a  h igh  leve l  ins ide /ou t  s t ra teg ic  tu rna round document  on  

the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  Mr  Frank l in  ou ts ide / in ,  you 

sa id  ins ide /ou t .   Whatever  –  what  d i f fe rence i t  makes I  

don ’ t  know.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Outs ide / in  s t ra teg ic  tu rnaround 20 

document  on  SARS,  the  person we prepared the  document  

w i th  and who p i t ched i t  to  the  S A Pres ident  i s  most  l ike ly  

to  be  appo in ted  as  the  Commiss ioner  in  the  next  few 

weeks/months  and Ba in  w i l l  be  ass is t ing  h im shou ld  he  get  

the  job .  
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 SARS is  one o f  the  la rgest  and  h igh ly  es t imated  

government  agency and a  la rge  Ba in  c l ien t  in  the  prev ious 

d ispensat ion ,  back i n  the  90 ’s .   So th is  i s  jus t  aga in  i f  I  

cou ld  the  da te  i s  6  December  2013,  i t  wou ld  appear  f rom 

what  Mr  Massone  is  wr i t ing  here  tha t  the  two o f  you were  

we l l  known to  each o ther  by  –  a t  leas t  by  December  2013,  

wou ld  you agree?  

MR MOYANE:    Cha i r  w i th  due  respect  I  can ’ t  reca l l  

conc lus i ve ly,  bu t  a l l  I  can  say is  conf i rm tha t  Mr  Massone  

and Duma were  peop le  who . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  so  I  am not  sure  10 

how I  fea ture  there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  wou ld  you take  any i ssue w i th  

h is  reco l lec t ion  o f  what  –  when you met .  

MR MOYANE:   When he speaks  about  a  ha lo  e f fec t  and 

pro jec t  Phoen ix  I  am jus t  speak ing  under  oa th ,  I  don ’ t  know 

what  Pro jec t  Phoen ix  i s  a l l  about  and i f  I  knew I  wou ld  

conf i rm and co l l abora te  w i th  you here  on  th is  mat te r  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  a l r igh t .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    A l r igh t ,  he  then ta lks  about  20 

prepar ing  a  document  w i th  you and you p i t ch ing  i t  to  the  

SA Pres ident ,  we  w i l l  ge t  on to  those presenta t ions in  due  

course ,  bu t  can  you conf i rm tha t  was the  . . . [ Ind is t inc t ]  

SARS 100 days document ,  wou ld  you agree?  

MR MOYANE:    Where  is  the  SARS 100 days?  
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ADV FRANKLIN SC:    No i t  doesn ’ t  say  tha t ,  he  says we 

have been invo lved in  p repar ing  a  h igh  leve l  ou ts ide / in  

s t ra teg ic  tu rnaround document  on  SARS,  persona l ly  

p repared the  document  w i th  and who p i t ched i t  to  the  SA 

Pres ident  i s  mos t  l i ke ly  to  be  appo in ted  as  Commiss ioner  

in  the  next  few weeks o r  months .  

 So tha t  must  be  re fer r ing  to  you,  do  you accep t  

tha t?  

MR MOYANE:    Yes they may be re fer r ing  to  me but  I  m igh t  

no t  have been par t  o f  tha t  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  what  they were  10 

prepar ing  tha t  document  fo r,  I  don ’ t  know.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    So  you don ’ t  know prec ise ly  wh ich  

one . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

MR MOYANE:    I  don ’ t  know Pro jec t  Phoen ix  because i f  

there  was a  pro jec t  ca l led  Pro jec t  Phoen ix  I  wou ldn ’ t  know.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  Pro jec t  Phoen ix  re la tes  to  

p robab ly  Te lkom i f  I  am not  m is taken based on  what  –  

because he says to  –  he  re fers  to  S ipho whom I  take  to  be  

Mr  S ipho Masego  because  he  has  re fer red  to  h im,  i s  tha t  

your  unders tand ing  as  we l l  Mr  Frank l in?  20 

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Yes i t  goes  a  l i t t le  w ider  than tha t ,  I  

th ink  i t  i s  a l l  S ta te  owned ent i t ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh i t  m igh t  be  many more ,  okay,  okay.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    But  in  any  event  as  I  unders tand i t  

Mr  Moyane you can ’ t  reca l l  p rec ise ly  when you f i rs t  met  bu t  
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you  accept  tha t  the  meet ing  took p lace v ia  the  in t roduct ion  

o f  Mr  Duma Nd lovu.    I  want  to  jus t  re fe r  you to  a  cont rac t  

p lease a t  AW18,  page 176.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That ’s  176 o f  the  same bund le .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  SARS Bund le  1 .    I t  i s  –  i t  he lps  

to  ment ion  the  bund les  when we are  us ing  many bund les  so  

tha t  we know which  one we are  in  a t  any par t i cu la r  t ime.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Yes,  so  i t  i s  jus t  Bund le  1 ,  page 176.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  you sa id  the  page is  176  10 

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’ ve  go t  i t .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:     Now tha t  i s  agreement  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Have you got  i t  Mr  Monyane?  

MR MOYANE:    Yes I  th ink  I  have got  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    A t  page 176 o f  SARS Bund le  1 .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    R igh t  and i f  you look p lease  a t  the 

head ing ,  Bus iness Deve lopment  and S takeho lder  

Management  Con t rac t  and then the  open ing  words a re :  20 

“Th is  document  de f ines the  contex t ,  the  content  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  governance,  t im ing  and f inanc ia l  te rms  

o f  the  co l labora t ion  be tween Ba in  and Company 

South  A f r i ca  Inc  and Ambro r i te  L im i ted  in  a 

bus iness deve lopment  and s takeho lder  management  
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mandate . ”  

Now are  you fami l ia r  w i th  the  company Ambro r i te?  

MR MOYANE:    None a t  a l l .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    D id  you  know Mr  Duma Ndlovu  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOYANE:   Yes I  sa id  tha t .    

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    You d id .   And in  what  contex t  d id  

you know h im? 

MR MOYANE:   He is  a  mus ic ian ,  he  is  a  p laywr igh t  and we 

went  to  schoo l  together,  he  was a  c lassmate  o f  my younger  10 

bro the r.   

ADV FRANKLIN SC:     So  what  you say he  is  a  mus ic ian  

and a  p laywr igh t?  

MR MOYANE:    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    R igh t ,  now once Mr  Nd lovu had 

in t roduced you to  Mr  Massone am I  cor rec t  tha t  there  were  

then regu la r  meet ings be tween you  and Mr  Massone  and in  

a t  leas t  some o f  those meet ings you d i scussed  

presenta t ions wh ich  had been compi led  i n  re la t ion  to  

SARS,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  20 

MR MOYANE:    Ja ,  bu t  I  won ’ t  unders tand where  does  

Ambror i te  company come in  here  w i th  myse l f  on  th is  

mat te r.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Yes we l l  as  we unders tand  i t  tha t  

was a  cont rac t  tha t  was conc luded between Ba in  and  
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Ambror i te  and the  po in t  o f  i t  was  in  para  1 ,  do  you see 

tha t?  

MR MOYANE:   Yes . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  mumbles]   

ADV FRANKLIN SC:     And you can read pa ra  2  as  we l l  i f  

you  w ish ,  bu t  i t  appears  tha t  Ba in  cont rac ted  w i th  

Ambror i te  in  o rde r  to  ident i f y  government  and s ta te -owned 

enterpr i se  sectors  a  s t ra teg i c  p r io r i t y  and to  in t roduce 

peop le  to  them,  i t  was the i r  purpose and then para  3  se ts 

ou t  the  content  and ob jec t i ve  o f  the  cont rac t ,  and fo r  

ins tance –  there  are  many d i f fe ren t  ob jec t i ves  bu t  look  a t  10 

the  bo t tom o f  the  page,  a t  177,  fac i l i ta te  the  in t roduc t ion  or  

d i rec t l y  in t roduce  Ba in  par tners  to  those key leaders  and 

dec is ion  makers .   Do you see tha t?   

MR MOYANE:    . . . [ Ind is t inc t  –  mumbles]   yes .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    So are  you  surpr i sed tha t  Mr  Duma 

Nd lovu,  who you knew as a  mus ic ian  and a  p laywr igh t  was  

engaged by  th is  in te rna t iona l  consu l t ing  f i rm to  in t roduce  

them to  key leaders  in  bus iness?  

MR MOYANE:    I  wasn ’ t  aware  tha t  Duma Nd lovu was 

invo lved in  consu l tan ts ,  a l l  I  knew about  h im he is  a  20 

p laywr igh t  and somebody who was in  the  en ter ta inment  

secto r,  so  th is  pa r t  comes as  a  su rpr ise  to  me,  I  don ’ t  know 

about  i t .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    A l r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  one second.    I  jus t  want  to  f ind  ou t  
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f rom the  t ranscr ibers  whether  they can hear  Mr  Moyane 

c lea r ly  fo r  pu rposes o f  t ransc r ip t?    I s  there  somebody who  

can g ive  me an  ind ica t ion  there?   Looks l i ke  there  is  

nobody.  

MR MOYANE:    I  w i l l  t ry  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Yes Cha i r  I  am to ld  by  Ms S i themba 

o f  the  Commiss ion  tha t  she is  hav ing  d i f f i cu l t y  fo r  ins tance 

hear ing  f rom her  vantage po in t ,  so  Mr  Moyane you need to 

speak up p lease.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  th ink  in i t ia l l y  when you s ta r t  

ta lk ing  one can hear  bu t  towards  the  end your  lower  your  

vo i ce  so  you swa l low the  words.    I  a lso  see tha t  we seem 

not  to  have cer ta in  admin  s ta f f  tha t  normal l y  perhaps when  

there  are  these  cha l lenges but  le t ’s  cont inue,  maybe 

somebody w i l l  come in .    Okay.    

 Try  Mr  Moyane to  speak up,  I  know tha t  when you 

have to  read a  document  tha t  i s  no t  on  the  desk you are  

fu r ther  f rom the  mic ,  jus t  t ry  and speak up,  okay.    Le t  us  

cont inue.  20 

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Yes thank you,  Mr  Moyane had sa id  

tha t  he  was surp r ised to  see tha t  Mr  Nd lovu was invo lved 

in  a  cont rac t  o f  th is   na ture .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    R igh t  I  then  put  to  you tha t  once you  
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had met  Mr  Massone you had a  number  o f  meet ings w i th  

h im f i rs t l y  and I  must  a lso  ask  you w i th  o thers  a t  Ba in  and  

you together  compi led  var ious presenta t ions and had  

meet ings about  those presenta t ions in  re la t ion  to  SARS,  i s  

tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MOYANE:    Cor rec t .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Now I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  you to  

cer ta in  o f  these  presenta t ions and ask  you to  ident i f y  

whethe r  you are  fami l ia r  w i th  them and f i rs t ly  I  want  to  

po in t  ou t  to  you  in  paragraph 66.9  page 3-33 o f  you r  10 

a f f idav i t ,  so  tha t  i s  in  SARS Bund le  3  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOYANE:    Which  page?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    33 ,  th i r t y  th ree ,  paragraph 66.9  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wi l l  you  be go ing  back to  h i s  a f f idav i t?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Yes,  jus t  momentar i l y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay tha t ’s  f ine ,  33  page –  pa ragraph 

66.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    You sa id :  

“ Indeed we embarked on the  agreed low-key  20 

prepara t ion  and coach ing  cover ing  genera l  CEO and 

leadersh ip  t ra in ing  bu t  a lso  obv ious l y  ta rge ted  

towards my fo r thcoming potent ia l  post ing  a t  SARS.   

In  the  process I  rece ived and a lso  genera ted  a  lo t  

o f  researched in fo rmat ion .   I t  was in  th is  contex t  
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tha t  the  presenta t ion  [S ]  re fe r red  to  and a t tached by  

Mr  Wi l l iams in  h i s  a f f idav i t  were  made. ”  

A l r igh t ,  do  you have any reco l lec t ion  o f  how f requent ly  you  

met  w i th  Massone and anyone e l se  f rom Ba in  be fore  you 

p ick  up  the  pos i t i on  as  Commiss ioner?  

MR MOYANE:   Yes no t  Mr  Massone I  th ink  w i th  Mr  

Franzen,  . . . [ Ind is t inc t ]  Franzen.   

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Yes.   And  how f requent ly  d id  you 

meet ,  was th is  a  regu lar  th ing?  

MR MOYANE:     Perhaps once or  tw ice  in  a  month .  10 

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Once or  tw ice  in  a  month ,  f rom when 

you f i rs t  met  h im ,  we a re  no t  sure  when tha t  i s ,  un t i l  you  

were  appo in ted  in  September  o f  2014,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MOYANE:    Yes,  I  don ’ t  know when we s tar ted  bu t  I  met  

h im . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    A l r igh t ,  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  i s  your  reco l lec t ion  tha t  f rom 

whatever  t ime i t  was when you met  h im fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime 

f rom the  r igh t  th rough to  your  appo in tment  you were  

meet ing  h im maybe once or  tw ice  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

MR MOYANE:    Yes,  once a  month .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Once a  month .  

MR MOYANE:     Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    And in  tha t  parag raph tha t  I  took  you  

to  you say i t  was in  th is  contex t  tha t  the  presenta t ions 
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re fe r red  to  and a t tached by  Mr  Wi l l iams in  h is  a f f idav i t  

were  made.   I  want  to  take  you to  those p resenta t ions  

because I  take  i t  tha t  you looked a t  them when you  

compi led  your  w i tness s ta tement .   I  am go ing  to  go  th rough  

a  l i s t  o f  them p lease and unfo r tunate ly  you are  now back in  

Bund le  01 .   The f i rs t  one is  AW55 page 318.  

MR MOYANE:    155?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    AW,  tha t ’s  the  annexure   number  and 

the  page number  i s  01  page 318.   Do you have tha t?  

MR MOYANE:    H ’m.  10 

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    And tha t  i s  ca l led  F izeke lo  

Reshap ing  South  A f r i can Economy dated 11 t h  o f  August  

2012,  i s  tha t  a  p resenta t ion  wh ich  you d iscussed w i th  

e i ther  Ba in  o r  then Pres ident  Zuma? 

MR MOYANE:    I  don ’ t  know s i r  because i t  speaks  about  

d i f fe ren t  o rgan isa t ions,  there  i s  no  SARS here ,  and i t  i s  

da ted  the  11 t h  o f  August  2012 and when you look a t  i t ,  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  i t  speaks about  the  ICT landscape.   I  wou ld  

no t  have –  yes I  wou ld  no t  have d i scussed ICT mat te rs .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    A l r igh t ,  then the  second one  is  AW56 20 

page 323.    That  i s  headed P ro jec t  Phoen ix  Reshap ing  

South  A f r i can Economy dated 23 August  2012,  aga in  are  

you fami l ia r  w i th  tha t ,  d id  you  see i t  a t  the  t ime and  

d iscuss i t  w i th  Ba in?  

MR MOYANE:    No,  no .   Perhaps I  need to  d raw your  
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a t ten t ion  to  tha t  d iagram Expo . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  re  S t ra teg ic  

P i l la rs  fo r  South  A f r i can Economy,  you wou ld  see tha t  i t  i s  

rea l l y  about  b roadband so  i t  wou ld  have – i t  wou ld  re la te  to  

Te lkom.    

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Yes.  

MR MOYANE:    So  I  had noth ing  to  do  w i th  Te lkom.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    I  jus t  wan t  to  take  you th rough i t  

because you d idn ’ t  in  your  s ta tement ,  you re fer red  to  

p resenta t ions w i thout  res t r i c t ing  them so I  jus t  wanted to  

make sure .  10 

MR MOYANE:    No co r rec t .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    A l r igh t  le t ’s  –  le t  me then take  you  

to  AW91 wh ich  is  a t  page 484,  1484,  bu t  tha t  i s  a  document  

headed SARS 2 .0  Sunday 13 October  2013,  I  take  i t  th is  

one you are  fami l ia r  w i th?  

MR MOYANE:    I  no te .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    R igh t  then p lease look a t  AW92,  

SARS01 page 491.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  be fore  you move away f rom Page  

484 Mr  Frank l in ,  Mr  Moyane i f  tha t  da te  a t  page 484 fo r  20 

tha t  document ,  tha t  i s  wr i t ten  SARS 2 .0  Sunday 13 October  

2013,  i f  tha t  da te  re f lec ts  the  da te  when the  document  was 

wr i t ten  wou ld  you accept  that  i t  is  l i ke ly  that  by that  date  

you would have been – you would have met  wi th  Mr 

Massone and you would have star ted to  have your  
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in teract ions wi th  h im.  

MR MOYANE:   I t  would be Chai r  because I  would l ike to  

deny and… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MOYANE:   Push everyth ing on the s ide.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja but  … 

MR MOYANE:   As we speak I  wi l l  be able to  p ick up and 

once and the t ra jectory.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  no,  no I  –  I  understand that  you – 

some of  the  th ings you cannot  remember  but  you do not  10 

necessar i ly  d ispute but  you just  cannot  remember.   Okay a l l  

r ight  Mr Frankl in .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Thank you.   So that  was the f i rs t  one.   

The second one is  that  i t  is  annexure AW92 and i t  a t  SARS 

01 page 492.   That  i s  ca l led TM Fi rs t  100 days May 26 t h  

2014.   That  one I  take i t  you are fami l iar  wi th  as wel l?  

MR MOYANE:   Yes th is  one I  am fami l iar  wi th .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   And do you – do you agree that  e i ther  

th is  SARS 2.0 and or  TM Fi rs t  100 Days was presented by  

you to  President  Zuma? 20 

MR MOYANE:   No I  d id  not  present  anyth ing to  President  

Zuma.  I t  was a d iscussion between mysel f  and Mr Massone.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   A l l  r ight  we wi l l  come back to  that .   

Then the next  one that  I  want  to  ident i fy  i s  AW100 and that  

is  a t  page SARS 01 page 534.   That  is  dated August  2014 
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and is  t i t led SARS 2.1 – What  has to  be done.   Once again 

is  that  one that  you fami l ia r  wi th?  

MR MOYANE:   Sorry which one?  534? 

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes page 534.  

MR MOYANE:   I  have someth ing d i f ferent  here.    

CHAIRPERSON:   You do not  have SARS 2.0 What  has to  be 

done.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Are you look ing at  the top le f t?  

MR MOYANE:   Oh.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Have you found i t?  

MR MOYANE:   My apologies Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Thank you.  So just  to  be c lear.  

MR MOYANE:   May I  just  –  ja .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   SARS 01 page 534 ent i t led – the  

document  is  ent i t led Present  – I  am sor ry SARS 2.0  – What  

has to  be done August  2014.   Is  that  s imi lar ly  a  

presentat ion wi th  which you are fami l iar?  

MR MOYANE:   Yes.   Yes.  20 

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   And then the last  one I  want  to  refer  

you to  i s  AW97 which is  a t  SARS 01 page 513.    

CHAIRPERSON:   513.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Cor rect .    

MR MOYANE:   Yes.  
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ADV FRANKLIN SC:   That  is  headed Review of  SARS 

Operat ing Model  and St ructure.    

MR MOYANE:   Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   August  2014.   Is  that  a lso a 

presentat ion wi th  which you are fami l iar?  

MR MOYANE:    Yes I  am.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Can I  take you back to  page 534 Mr  

Moyane? 

MR MOYANE:   534.  

CHAIRPERSON:   534 the one we were looking at  a  few 10 

minutes ago.   The one that  is  wr i t ten SARS 2.0 What  has to  

be done.    

MR MOYANE:   I  am on there Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You are there okay a l l  r ight .   I f  you are 

fami l ia r  wi th  th is  one i t  would seem that  in  August  2014 

Bain  have been a l ready work ing on some documents  

re la t ing to  SARS in August  2014 would you agree? 

MR MOYANE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   And bear ing in  mind – oh the  

adver t i sement  was 2013 not  2014.  20 

MR MOYANE:   Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  the appointment  was 2014.  

MR MOYANE:   September.  

CHAIRPERSON:   September so i t  took about  a year  

adver t i sement  before the appointment  was made.  
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MR MOYANE:   That  is  correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay no,  no then I  understand.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Just  –  just  to  c la r i fy  Chai r.   The f i rs t  f  

the SARS presentat ions which I  ident i f ied for  the wi tness is  

dated 13 October 2013.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes.   Ja.   I  remember that .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   So I  th ink you accepted ear l ier  Mr  

Moyane that  once you had been in t roduced to Bain that  you 

and Mr Massone and perhaps Mr Franzen commenced 

preparat ion fo r  you being appointed  to  SARS.   Correc t .  10 

MR MOYANE:   Cor rect  I  th ink i t  is  important  a lso to  in form 

the Chai r  that  when I  was in formed by the President  –  

former President  I  therefore sta r t ing doing my own research 

because in  the event  o r  that  th is  happens should not  f ind 

me want ing and therefore … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Which you 00:06:27 l i ke you d id no t  know.  

MR MOYANE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MOYANE:   And I  took th is  ser iously but  i t  was subject  to  

th is  ( inaudib le ) .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Your  appointment .  

MR MOYANE:   Yes i t  was subject  to .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MOYANE:   And I  need to emphasise here – I  should – 

there is  one where in i t  speaks about  operat ing mode l .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOYANE:   The operat ing model .   I  had gone to the 

SARS websi te  and I  read the annual  per formance p lan of  

2013 – 2014/2015 and there on page 27 i t  says:  

“SARS had commit ted to  cabinet  o r  to  

government  that  operat ing model  that  they 

were using would have to  be changed by  

2015. ”  

 So I  was just  look ing as to  what  operat ing model  was 

i t  so I  was reading.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOYANE:   So I  am just  g iv ing you context  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOYANE:   So that  these d iscussions were not  

d iscussions that  were tak ing p lace in  a vacuum. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   They were preparatory to  you tak ing  

over  as Commissioner.  

MR MOYANE:   In  the event  yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   R ight .   And you have sa id  in  your  20 

wi tness statement  at  paragraph 66.8 SARS 03 page 32.   

MR MOYANE:   SARS? 

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   03 page 32.    

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is  Bundle 3.  

MR MOYANE:   Which bundle would  th is  be? 
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CHAIRPERSON:   Bundle 3  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Bundle 3.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MOYANE:   Page.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Page 32.    

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Do you have i t?  

MR MOYANE:   Yes S i r.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   S tar t ing on  the f i f th  l ine you were  

deal ing here wi th  your  in te ract ions wi th  Mr Massone and 

you say:  10 

“He – that  is  Massone – in  turn in formed me 

about  a program of  CEO coaching in  which I  

expressed an in te rest  to  undergo as I  was in  

any event  do ing extensive research on the 

work ings of  SARS l ike some of  the previous 

appointees inc lud ing Mr Gordhan and 

a l though I  fe l t  we l l  qual i f ied for  the posi t ion 

I  d id  not  have any exper ience in  taxat ion but  

was a genera l is t  manager o r  senior  

execut ive in  the publ i c  sector. ”  20 

And 66.9.  

“ Indeed we embarked on the agreed low key 

preparat ion and coaching cover ing genera l  

CEO or  leadership t ra in ing but  a lso  

obviously targeted towards my fo r thcoming 
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potent ia l  post ing at  SARS.   In  the process I  

received and a lso generated a lo t  o f  

research in format ion.   I t  was in  th is  context  

that  the presentat ions refer red  to  and 

at tached by Mr Wi l l iams in  h is  aff idavi t  were  

made. ”  

 Now could I  just  ask you there.   I  have taken you to  

the var ious SARS presentat ions.   We wi l l  get  to  them now.   

But  they are very deta i led documents.   Would you agree 

wi th  me that  they go beyond mere CEO coaching  or  an  10 

at tempt  to  assis t  you wi th  your  posi t ion and they conta in  

deta i led p lans for  SARS in the event  that  you were to  take  

up the posi t ion? 

MR MOYANE:   I  would not  understand why he say they want  

deta i l .   When you do a research you go deep in to the  

analys is  of  what  you want  to  achieve.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   No I  sa id they were deta i led – I  am 

sorry.   Were deta i led.  

MR MOYANE:   Pardon.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   I  sa id they were deta i led.  20 

MR MOYANE:   I  could not  hear  p roper ly.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh he is  – he says he d id not  say they 

were not  deta i led he sa id they were  deta i led.  

MR MOYANE:   Yes.  
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ADV FRANKLIN SC:   So you would agree that  they were –  

they conta ined the product  o f  your  input  and Bain ’s  input  in  

re la t ion to  a p lan  for  you in  the event  that  you were  to  take  

over  as Commissioner.   You agree.  

MR MOYANE:   Correct  subject  to  once ( inaudib le ) .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Yes.   And le t  me take you p lease to  

the document  wh ich I  ident i f ied ear l ier  and that  i s  the TM 

Fi rs t  100 Days.   That  i s  AW92 page 01-491.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  Bundle 1 and what  i s  the page 

number?  10 

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Yes and the page number i s  492.   

Right  th is  i s  headed F i rs t  100 Days that  i s  se l f -explanatory 

and on the le f t  hand s ide in  the middle of  the page 

Proposed New Vis ion and Ambi t ion fo r  SARS a New 

Transformat ion Agenda must  be set  up.  And then over  the  

page on page 493 in  the middle of  the page Key Immediate  

Act ions for  Discussion.    

1 .  Keep the bal l  ro l l ing.  

2 .  Gain the h igh ground.  

MR MOYANE:   Sorry S i r.   I  do not  want  to  lose you.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   D id you say 93.  

MR MOYANE:   D id you say 493? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes on the ( ta lk ing over  one another)  

MR MOYANE:   493 for  me is  Annexure AW94.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh that  should no t  be l ike that .    
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MR MOYANE:   Could you k ind ly help me when you say 493 

b lack or  403 red.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Yes as I  –  as I  ind icated to  you Mr 

Moyane I  wi l l  a lways refer  to  the b lack numbers in  top le f t .  

MR MOYANE:   Okay 493 yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  we may have confused you Mr  

Moyane because I  th ink there was a bundle that  a t  least  in  

a cer ta in  sect ion  only had red numbers and we used red 

numbers then.   So – but  most  of  the t ime i t  wi l l  be b lack 

numbers when i t  is  d i f fe rent  he says – g ives you the page 10 

number but  i f  i t  is  a  red number he wi l l  announce.   Have 

you found the page? 

MR MOYANE:   I  d id .   I  am on the page S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   R ight  so I  had ident i f ied for  you what  

was wr i t ten on page 493 in  the m iddle of  the page on the 

le f t  hand s ide.   Key Immediate Act ions fo r  Discussion.  

1 .  Keep the bal l  ro l l ing.  

2 .  Gain the h igh ground.  

3.  Taking cont ro l .  20 

You see that .  

MR MOYANE:   Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   And can I  just  take you to  para 3 Take 

cont ro l .   There are number of  bu l le t  po ints there and you 

say in  the th i rd  bul le t  po int  ra ther  smal l .  
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“An test ing BH and assessing per formance 

of  competence of  COO parameter. ”  

You see that .  

MR MOYANE:   Yes I  have.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   You would –  BH refers to  Bar ry Hore 

is  that  correct?  He was the COO at  the t ime.  

MR MOYANE:   Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   And then you say:  

“Launch forensic invest igat ion”  

And then you say:  10 

“Create one leadership sp ine,  qu ick ly  co lour  

code the exec and management  team – top  

100 and reshuff le . ”  

Then you say:  

“Assess key ro les  where i t  is  in t roduced new 

people. ”  

Then you say:  

“Set  up t ransformat ion program off ice. ”  

Then you say:  

“Apply a new system.”  20 

Now at  th is  s tage am I  correct  you had not  o f  course  done – 

you had not  been in to SARS.   You had not  been able to  do 

an independent  rev iew of  the SARS s i tuat ion.   Cor rect .  

MR MOYANE:   Correct .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   And nor  had Bain.  Correct .  
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MR MOYANE:   Come again.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Nor  had Bain done that  exerc ise.  

MR MOYANE:   I  do not  know but  I  would assume so.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   You assume they would not .   You were  

d iscussing wi th  them.  

MR MOYANE:   Wel l  I  do not  know they might  have done 

the i r  –  I  mean b ig companies have systems as to  how they 

conducted the i r  analys is  of  var ious companies.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   But  as far  as you knew they had not  

yet  been le t  in to SARS they had not  yet  been appointed.  10 

MR MOYANE:   Correct .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   And then you say on the second par t  

o f  the page a lso in  the middle  

“Bui ld  a heal thy sponsorship sp ine to  

accelerate change and ident i fy  ind iv iduals to  

neut ra l i se. ”  

So just  pausing there you contemplated in  th is  p lan that  

there would be – am I  cor rect  –  a dramat ic  change to SARS 

i f  and when you got  there? 

MR MOYANE:   Ja  I  took advantage of  the fact  that  the APP 20 

spoke of  a  re -organisat ion of  SARS so which  means 

Par l iament  in  i ts  wisdom was aware of  cer ta in  shor t fa l ls  that  

were happening wi th in  that  envi ronment .   So i f  I  may refer  

to  you Chai r  i t  is  APP of  2014/2015 i f  you may a l low me to  

read i t  for… 
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CHAIRPERSON:   APP stands for?  

MR MOYANE:   Annual  Per fo rmance P lan.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Sor ry  what  – what  document  are you 

reading f rom bundle?  

MR MOYANE:   No I  am just  g iv ing example.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh ja .  

MR MOYANE:   I t  is  a  document  that  is  o ff ic ia l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but… 

MR MOYANE:   I t  is  a  reference.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you got  a  copy 

MR MOYANE:   Yes I  can 

CHAIRPERSON:   You have got  a  copy.  

MR MOYANE:   I  have i t  on my phone.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is  … 

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Yes but  we need to – i f  i t  is  not  in  the 

bundles then… 

MR MOYANE:   That  is  f ine point  taken.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   I f  you want  to .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  –  but  you can ar range for  us to  20 

get  i t  –  copies.  

MR MOYANE:   I  w i l l  get  i t  copied for  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   But  you wanted to  make a  cer ta in  

point .   Do you want  to  make that  po int?  

MR MOYANE:   Ja  I  am making that  po int .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Make that  po int .  

MR MOYANE:   That  i t  does ind icate that  SARS was 

obl igated.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MOYANE:   In  any fo rm that  by 2015 March.  

CHAIRPERSON:   ja .  

MR MOYANE:   I t  should have a new operat ing mode l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOYANE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   And you say that  was the  Annual  10 

Performance P lan  of  SARS as in  2014? 

MR MOYANE:   2015.  

CHAIRPERSON:   2015.  

MR MOYANE:   2014/2015.  

CHAIRPERSON:   2014/2015.  

MR MOYANE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   A l l  r ight .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Yes wel l  that  document  has not  

featured yet  so I  am not  – not  sure of  i t  Mr Moyane but  i f  

you wish to  produce i t  p lease do so.   I  was refer r ing you to 20 

the middle of  the page on page 493  

“Bui ld  a heal thy sponsorship sp ine to  

accelerate change and ident i fy  ind iv iduals to  

neut ra l i se. ”  

I  th ink you accepted that  the p lan envisages a fa r  reaching  
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change,  was that  correct?  

MR MOYANE:   Wel l  an operat ing model  by  nature 

presupposes that  there wi l l  be fundamenta l  changes in  the 

organisat ion.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   R ight  and then you say  

“ Ident i fy  ind iv idua ls to  neut ra l i se. ”  

What  do you – what  d id  you mean by the neut ra l i se? 

MR MOYANE:   Wel l  the te rm is  un for tunate ly  used there  i t  

should not  have been in  that  contex t .   

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Wel l  what  does… 10 

MR MOYANE:   To accelerate change in  order  to  – to  

consol idate st ructures of  the organisat ion.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Yes but  th is  was – th is  appears in  the  

p lan and the word neut ra l i se was inc luded and I  am just  

t ry ing to  f ind out  why that  word was used in  th is  p lan.  

MR MOYANE:   I  th ink i f  I  had my notes wi th  me on th is  

mat te r  I  would have wr i t ten on th is  –  on the document  but  

th is  might  not  be – because th is  is  the document  presented 

i t  does not  necessar i l y  mean that  you accept  everyth ing that  

is  there.   There are changes that  happen in  the d iscussion  20 

you make your  no tes and the d iscussion takes p lace.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry Mr Frankl in .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Sure.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh now I  see.   Yes now I  see where you 

are.   I  –  I  have lost  you so I  have seen now.   Okay.   
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Cont inue.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   A l l  r ight  and then you sa id ear l ier  that  

the word neut ra l i se I  th ink you sa id was unfor tunate ,  is  that  

correct?  

MR MOYANE:   Ja  that  is  correct .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   And why do you say that  or  what  

connotat ions about  i t  are unfor tunate? 

MR MOYANE:   Perhaps the context  in  which i t  has been 

used here.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Yes but  what  is  the meaning that  you 10 

f ind unfor tunate? 

MR MOYANE:   Wel l  I  d id  expla in that  i t  should not  have 

been th is .   My wr i t ing would be to  ident i fy  measures to  put  

a  st rat i f ied measures in  the organisat ion not  neut ra l ise.   

Neut ra l i se i s  crea t ing a very what  you ca l l  a  conf rontat ional  

removing people  and creat ing an organisat ion  that  i s  

unstable.   Mine was to  bui ld  not  to  come in to st r i fe .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   I  see.   Then at  the bot tom r ight  hand 

corner  you have got  three bul le t  po ints.  

“ Ident i fy  posi t i ve change sponsors bot tom up. ”   20 

Second one is :  

“Leverage external  in f luences. ”  

And th i rd ly :  

“ Ident i fy  ind iv iduals that  could  hamper  

change : -  watch outs – to  neut ra l i se. ”  
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Now you wi l l  agree wi th  me tha t  that  last  bu l le t  po int  

suggests that  i t  was par t  o f  your  p lan to  ident i fy  ind iv iduals 

at  SARS who might  hamper the changes you wish to  

in t roduce and there were people who you would label  watch 

outs and they were people that  you would wish  to  

neut ra l i se.   Would you agree that  that  is  what  appears in  

the wr i t ing? 

MR MOYANE:   No.    

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Wel l  what… 

MR MOYANE:   What  appears there  is  not  what  in  rea l i ty  in  10 

l i fe  happens.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Yes but  that  is  a  d i f ferent  po in t .  

MR MOYANE:   Ja  I  am saying… 

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   What  I  am asking you.  

MR MOYANE:   I t  is  a  presentat ion.   I t  is  a  presentat ion that  

is  not  what  I  envisaged going to  that  organisat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink Mr Frankl in ’s  quest ion Mr Moyane 

is  more about  what  meaning one gets when just  one reads 

what  i s  wr i t ten.  

MR MOYANE:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I r respect ive of  whether  that  is  what  was 

in tended or  not .   I f  you v iew the quest ion in  that  l ight  what  

– what  would you say.   Would you agree? 

MR MOYANE:   But  in  any organisat ion Chai r  change br ings 

uncer ta in ty.   There wi l l  be res is tance to  change.   Noth ing  
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happens in  a changeless envi ronment  and therefore  in  the  

context  o f  that  I  was aware in  my mind there wi l l  be those 

who would be saying they do not  want  th is  – i t  is  a  natura l  

react ion.   But  I  am saying in  that  context  you need a lso to  

have a st rategy to  br ing them in not  to  leave them outs ide.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOYANE:   So the word neut ra l i se i s  not .  

CHAIRPERSON:   ja .  

MR MOYANE:   As I  am saying  here change is  a l i t t le  

d i f f icu l t ,  man,  human beings by the i r  nature.    10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MOYANE:   Are not  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   D id these – do you understand what  

neut ra l i se to  inc lude remove or  someth ing l i ke that?  

MR MOYANE:   No,  no.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You do not  understand i t  that  way? 

MR MOYANE:   No.   You do not  go  to  an organisat ion Chai r  

to  remove people.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOYANE:   You f i rs t  make an assessment .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOYANE:   I  had no author i t y  a t  a l l  g iven that  because I  

do not  have that  00:22:45 as to  who is  there or  does what .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.    

MR MOYANE:   Mine is  to  say yes there wi l l  be changes that  
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have to  take p lace.  There wi l l  be res is tance.   There  wi l l  be 

those who are amenable to  change and a l l  those factors wi l l  

have to  be taken in to account .   Those who wi l l  be s low,  

those who wi l l  be  res is tant  and you need to have a process 

because some them might  be key in  the organisat ion but  

they might  see change as a th reat .   You need to  f ind a 

st rategy to  br ing them in.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.   What  would you say to  an 

in terpretat ion tha t  says neut ra l i se would inc lude that  i f  

cer ta in  people are not  go ing a long wi th  the change that  is  10 

proposed but  they are powerfu l  o r  in f luent ia l  you need to 

reduce the i r  in f luence.    

MR MOYANE:   Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Would you say that  that  i s  a  fa i r  meaning 

to  g ive or  would you say not?  

MR MOYANE:    No Chai r  I  th ink we wi l l  be pract ica l  on th is  

mat te r  fo r  the purpose of  th is  o rganisat ion – there are 

people who when I  was there they d id not  see some of  the 

changes as pract ica l  and they vo iced the i r  mis – mis – the i r  

apprehension about  i t .   And you have to f ind a measure to  20 

understand why and how do you take them along.   I t  does 

not  happen overn ight  and that  is  a  process which you have 

to engage on on an ongoing basis.   Because I  might  be 

wrong they might  be r ight  therefore you cannot  have your  

v iews superseding any other  v iews in  the organisat ion.   We 
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have that  and i t  happens in  organisat ion of  a l l  sor ts .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr Frankl in .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Thank you.   Mr Moyane there are two 

d i f ferent  po ints that  I  want  to  c la r i fy  then.   I  have d i rected 

your  at tent ion to  the bot tom r ight  hand corner  of  page SARS 

01 493 the last  bu l le t  po int .   Ident i fy  ind iv iduals.   You know 

that?  You have seen i t .  

MR MOYANE:   Yes.    

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   And you sa id no that  is  not  what  you 

in tended and tha t  is  not  what  ac tual l y  happened,  is  that  10 

correct?  

MR MOYANE:   Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   I  am asking  you however to  read the 

words and assis t  in  understanding what  is  wr i t ten here 

whether  you in tended i t  or  not  but  do you accept  that  as i t  

is  wr i t ten there what  i t  conveys is  that  you would  ident i fy  

people – ind iv iduals who might  hamper change – they would 

be regarded as watch outs and you would then have to 

neut ra l i se them.   Is  that  correct?   That  i s  what  i s  wr i t ten  

here.   We wi l l  get  onto what  you d id.  20 

MR MOYANE:   Ja I  –  I  do unders tand.   I  am not  sure who 

prepared th is  document  but  you must  00:25:44 that  Mr  

Massone is  not  an Engl ish speaking he is  an I ta l ian so  

context  and the manner in  which – he might  have been in  

Engl ish but  a t  t imes when you do a  presentat ion he could  
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have in  h is  thought  process th is  i s  what  they in tend.   But  in 

my d iscussion there was never  a t ime where in there was to  

neut ra l i se anyone.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   But  can you get  back to  my quest ion.   

Do you agree wi th  the in te rpretat ion I  have g iven whether  i t  

was… 

MR MOYANE:   No I  do not  agree.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Wrongly inc luded.  

MR MOYANE:   I  do  not  agree wi th  your  in terpretat ion that  

there was an in tent ion to  neut ra l i se anyone.   I  do not  agree 10 

wi th  you.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Wel l  I  am sor ry the word is  used to 

neut ra l i se.  

MR MOYANE:   Yes I  am saying.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   I  am asking you  

MR MOYANE:   Sorry.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   I  am asking  you to f ix  on  the words 

and help us wi th  what  i t  means in  th is  p resentat ion.   I  know 

your  ev idence is  that  that  is  not  what  you in tended.   I  am 

asking you s imply  to  accept .  20 

MR MOYANE:   I  do not  accept  – I  do not  accept  that  there  

was any in tent ion  to  neut ra l i se.  That  is  what  is  wr i t ten here  

but  there was never  any in tent ion to  neut ra l i se anybody.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on Mr Moyane.   Let  us accept  for  

present  purposes that  in  your  own mind you d id no t  in tend 
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that  th is  should mean th is  and Mr  Massone in  h is  own mind 

a lso d id not  in tend what  you d id not  in tend.   What  Mr 

Frankl in  i s  s imply asking is  but  not  knowing what  was 

in tended by Mr Moyane or  Mr Massone when you read th is  

what  does i t  te l l  you – what  is  the meaning you get?   I t  may 

be that  when you say to  Mr Moyane but  how could you say 

th is?  Mr Moyane might  say but  I  –  that  is  not  what  I  

in tended i t  is  just  an unfor tunate word but  I  understand 

when somebody reads i t  and th inks i t  means th is .   You 

understand what  I  am saying? 10 

MR MOYANE:   I  do understand Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOYANE:   I t  g ives a very bad connotat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Connotat ion.  

MR MOYANE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink Mr Frankl in  i s  looking fo r  that  –  

that  connotat ion  on your  understanding to  say the  

connotat ion i t  g ives the bad connotat ion is  the fo l lowing.   

Do you want  to  address that?  

MR MOYANE:   Yes I  am saying in  the manner i t  is  wr i t ten.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOYANE:   The connotat ion is  very wrong.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOYANE:    And unacceptable.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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MR MOYANE:   Because in  a normal  course of  any event  any 

leader worth h is  sa l t  would  not  get  in to a s i tuat ion where  he 

neut ra l i se especia l ly  consider ing  the fact  that  you are  

coming to  a new organisat ion.  

 Secondly even i f  they are there for  some t ime you do 

not  neut ra l ise people you have a d iscussion  – an 

engagement  wi th  them.   So I  am saying I  d id  say Chai r  that  

i t  is  unfor tunate the usage of  the language in  the te rms.   So 

I  am not  t ry ing to  mal ign.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

MR MOYANE:   I  am just  t ry ing to  expla in that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no,  no.  

MR MOYANE:   In  my mind.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOYANE:   Personal ly  I  would not .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOYANE:   And I  th ink possib ly  even when Mr Massone 

wrote  th is  tak ing in to account  I  am just  –  i t  is  a  

hypothet ica l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  20 

MR MOYANE:   Being I ta l ian he in  I ta l ian could have been – 

because i f  you say in  (speaking I ta l ian)  i t  might  not  mean 

neut ra l i se in  the same way as in  Engl ish.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Frankl in .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Thank you Mr Moyane I  th ink that  you 
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agree wi th  the proposi t ion I  put  u l t imate ly  as to  what  the 

words would mean in  the i r  o rd inary context  and I  

understand you to  say that  that  was not  what  you in tended.   

I  do not  have any SARS Fi rs t  100 Day P lan where that  

word ing was changed.   Are you aware of  any p lan in  which  

that  word ing was changed? 

MR MOYANE:   Unless you d i rect  me to i t  S i r  I  am s i t t ing  

here wi th  documents.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Yes.  

MR MOYANE:   But  cer ta in ly  that  would have not  have been 10 

the measure of  t ransforming an organisat ion us ing such 

terms as neut ra l i sat ion of  people.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   My quest ion  is  are you as the person 

who was par ty  to  th is  p lan.  

MR MOYANE:   Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Aware of  any amendment  to  the p lan  

where these words were deleted? 

MR MOYANE:    These were work ing documents  s i r,  and 

therefore they were not  par t  o f  the off ic ia l  implementat ion in  

the organisat ion ,  these were documents outs ide and 20 

therefore subject  for  a  d iscussion ,  and unless there is  a  

document  af te r  o r  post  my appoin tment  that  speaks about  

then you can measure me in  the context  o f  the words that  

had been used.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Yes,  but  my quest ion is  a  s imple one,  
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you were par ty  to  the  d iscussions wi th  Mr  Massone and Mr  

Franzen,  but  pr ior  to  you tak ing  up your  posi t ion,  I  am 

asking you are you aware of  any updates to  th is  p lan where  

these offending words were deleted .  

MR MOYANE:    None whatsoever  in  my t ime and nature,  I  

don’ t  remember seeing a document  o r  such documents,  

cannot  recal l  rea l l y.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:   Right ,  then could you . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sorry,  d id  you –  af ter  your  

appointment  d id  you have an off i c ia l  document  of  the f i rs t  10 

100 days that  ways that  was guid ing you . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR MOYANE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . .as to  what  to  t ry  and achieve? 

MR MOYANE:    Yes,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   I  know i t  is  in  these bundles  

. . . [ in tervenes]   

MR MOYANE:   I  am not  sure.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You have not  come across now? 

MR MOYANE:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  and are you able to  say whether  i t  20 

i ts  basis was th is  i t  came f rom these d iscussions and th is  

documents,  in  other  words i t  was prepared against  the  

background of  these d iscussions? 

MR MOYANE :    Wel l ,  the  document  se ts  a  v i s ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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MR MOYANE :    Once you a re  there ,  you are  ab le  to  

measure  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MOYANE :    . . . the  mood.   So the  document  m ight  no t  be  

m i r ro r  re f lec t  wha t  i s  happened –  tha t  i t  has  to  be  mod i f ied  

in  accordance to  the  cond i t ions  tha t  a re  ob jec t i ve  on  the  

ground.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MOYANE :    So  what  i t  d iscussed before  and what  you 

d iscussed when you are  . . . [ in te rvenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MOYANE :    . . .wou ld  no t  be  the  same because the  

env i ronment  i s  d i f fe ren t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Do you remember  whether  when 

you s ta r ted  on  your  f i rs t  day,  you  a l ready had tha t  o r  you  

deve loped i t  a f te r  you had . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MOYANE :    We deve loped i t  a f te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .  

MR MOYANE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.    20 

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And in  re fe r r ing  to  the  same page.   

Why was i t  necessary  to  tes t  Barry  Hore? [Speaker  no t  

c lea r ]  

MR MOYANE :    I  –  ce r ta in ly,  I  do  no t  know.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes bu t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Under  what  goes  tha t ,  Mr  Frank l in?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    I t  i s  on  page 491.   I  took  the  w i tness 

to  i t .   I t  i s  on  the  le f t -hand s ide  o f  the  page.   On the  lower  

s ide  o f  the  page under  the  head ing :   Tak ing  Cont ro l .    

CHAIRPERSON :    5491 is  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    493.  

CHAIRPERSON :    493?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You want  to  d i rec t  me whereabouts?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    The lower  par t  o f  the  page,  le f t -hand 10 

s ide .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Paragraph 3 :   Take Cont ro l .   I s  the  

th i rd  bu l le t  po in t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    There  are  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Does the  Cha i r  have i t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  have got  493.   That  i s  –  oh ,  Take 

Cont ro l ,  bu l le t  po in t  3?   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    That  i s  r igh t .   I t  i s  Take Cont ro l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  i s  i t  BH?  I s  i t  BH? 20 

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    That  i s  cor rec t .   I t  i s  the  th i rd  bu l le t  

po in t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay a l r igh t .   And tha t  BH you say  

s tands fo r?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Bar ry  Hore  
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CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  Bar ry  Hore?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    I t  i s  spe l t  H-o- r -e .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Who was the  then Ch ie f  Opera tor  

Off i ce r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay cont inue.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes.   Mr  Moyane,  why  in  your  

p lann ing ,  d id  you be l ieve  i t  was  necessary  to  tes t  Bar ry  

Hore?  

MR MOYANE :    There  was no in ten t ion  to  tes t  Mr  Bar ry  10 

Hore .   Th is  f ind ing(?)  o f  the  o rgan isa t ion  inched on the  IT 

component  because SARS by i t s  na ture  i s  IT in tens i ve .   So 

as  to  why i t  says  tes t .   They have  done the i r  assessment .   

They might  have know what  i s  happen ing  w i th in  the 

organ isa t ion .   There  was no mandate  whatsoever  to  tes t  

anyone.    

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Bu t  i t  i s  wr i t ten  there .   Tha t  i s  the  

po in t .  

MR MOYANE :    Yes,  I  am say ing ,  s i r.   I t  i s  wr i t ten .   We 

keep on go ing  to  th is  th ing  tha t  i t  is  wr i t ten .  20 

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes.  

MR MOYANE :    I  accept  bu t  there  was noth ing  to  ind ica te  

tha t  there  was a  need fo r  us  to  tes t  Mr  Bar ry  Hore  because 

i f  you are  go ing  to  the  hundred days –  to  go  SARS and ask  

fo r  the  documents ,  there  was noth ing  o f  tha t  na ture .    
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CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   D id  you ask  Mr  Massone why he  

put  in  “ tes t  Bar ry  Hore  here ”?  

MR MOYANE :    That  i s  the  r igh t  quest ion .   He says:   Th i s  

o rgan isa t ion  revo lves around th is  par t i cu la r  ind iv idua l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MOYANE :    And the re fore  the  o f  runn ing  th i s  mammoth  

organ isa t ion  i s  a round what  you ca l l  a  robustness o f  the  IT 

sys tem’s  ab i l i t y  to  in te rac t  and need to  face  w i th  

taxpayers .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  10 

MR MOYANE :    So  I  do  no t  reca l l  why th is  ind i v idua l  has to  

be  tes ted .   I t  was look ing  as  to  what  i s  i t  tha t  happens in  

tha t  env i ronment ,  how i t  i s  run ,  what  needs to  be  done.   

That  i s  the  in ten t  o f  what  happened because indeed  when I  

went  to  SARS,  I  d iscovered tha t  the  who le  organ isa t ion  

ro ta tes  on  a  ve ry  e f f i c ien t  IT sys tem.   So you cannot  go  

and t inker  w i th  someth ing  tha t  b r ings revenue  to  the  

count ry.    

 So the  contex t ,  perhaps,  i t  i s  m isp laced here .   

And I  want  to  pu t  i t  on  record .   Mr  Bar ry  Hore  le f t  on  h is  20 

own accord .   Hard ly  th ree  months  on  my post .   And I  can  

put  i t  on  record .   He came to  me and sa id :   Commiss ioner,  

now tha t  you have been appo in ted ,  i t  has  been my 

in ten t ion  to  leave the  o rgan isa t ion .   And I  had  a  long  

d iscuss ion  w i th  h im.    
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 Because I  though t  i t  very  s t range tha t  I  am new 

here .   Here  is  a  man who is  the  core  around wh ich  around 

th is  o rgan isa t ion  revo lves,  he  is  leav ing .   I  persuaded h im  

and he to ld  me tha t  he  has been here  fo r  a  long t ime and 

he wanted h is  own t ime.   No acr imon ious re la t ionsh ip .   He 

made the  ca l l (? )  here .   We never  had any f igh ts .    

 And there fo re ,  I  th ink  he  had a l ready –  he  sa id :   

I  had a l ready d iscussed th i s  w i th  the  ac t ing  commiss ioner  

then but  as  soon as  the  new commiss ioner  a r r i ves ,  I  w i l l  be  

leav ing .    10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Frank l in .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes.   You see,  Mr  Moyane,  tha t  i s ,  

w i th  respect ,  the  prob lem is  tha t  Mr  Bar ry  Hore  was 

neut ra l i sed ,  was he not?   He le f t  in  December  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MOYANE :    No,  bu t  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  

MR MOYANE :    I  d isagree . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  

MR MOYANE :    Bu t  no  . . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lear ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  h im f in ish .   Le t  h im f in ish .   Then you  

respond.    

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    He was  neut ra l i sed .   He le f t  in  

December  2014,  less  than th ree  months  a f te r  you had 



26 MAY 2021 – DAY 403 
 

Page 168 of 221 
 

taken up your  post .   The COO of  th is  o rgan isa t ion  who,  as  

I  unders tand i t ,  was a  lead ing  l igh t ,  le f t  w i th in  th ree 

months  o f  you a r r i v ing .   That ,  w i th  respect ,  appears  to  

re f lec t  exact ly  the  in ten t ion  tha t  i s  recorded on page 493  

on wh ich  you now wish  to  d is tance yourse l f  f rom.  

MR MOYANE :    I  take  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lear ]  

MR MOYANE :    . . .about  th is .   Ser ious homage and  I  fee l  

o f fended to  be  to ld  tha t  I  neut ra l i sed  h im.   He was  10 

marg ina l i sed.   I ,  ser ious ly,  Cha i r  take  except ion  to  th is  

s ta tement  because Barry  Hore  le f t  the  organ isa t ion  a t  h is  

own accord .   A re  you te l l ing  me tha t  when somebody when 

he jo ined the  organ isa t ion  leaves a  month  thereaf te r  i s  

p rec ise ly  because o f  your  na ture  and demeanour?   Peop le  

leave fo r  var ious reasons.   And I  want ,  there fore ,  to  

be l ieve  tha t  what  Bar ry  to ld  me was a  l ie .    

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes.  

MR MOYANE :    I  took  i t  on  good fa i th  tha t  th is  man is  

leav ing  because  he sa id  he  had  spoken to  the  prev ious  20 

commiss ioner.   And I  d id  –  on  record ,  Cha i r,  I  wen t  to  the  

Min is te r.   I  went  to  the  Min is te r  and then I  sa id :   Min is te r,  I  

have a  prob lem in  my hands he re .   You can te l l  Mr  Nene to  

come here .    

 I  sa id :   Min is te r,  there  is  a  ser ious prob lem here .   
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Bar ry  Hore  says to  me he is  leav ing .   How do I  address th is  

mat te r?   The  who le  in te l lec tua l  p roper ty  o f  th is  

o rgan isa t ion  ro ta tes  around h im.   So there  is  no  

success ion  p lann ing .   So,  s i r,  I  wou ld  l i ke  tha t  s ta tement  to  

be  re t rac ted .   I  d id  no t  marg ina l i se  h im.   He le f t  on  h is  own 

accord .   He wro te .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    You see,  there ,  the  d i f f i cu l t y  tha t  –  

i s  I  have w i th  respect  and wh ich  th is  Commiss ion  w i l l  have  

to  g rapp le  w i th  and cer ta in l y  the  d i f f i cu l t y  wh ich  the  Nugent  

Commiss ion  had was,  th is  was no t  an  iso la ted  depar tu re ,  10 

was i t?    

MR MOYANE :    What  do  you mean when you say  iso la ted  

depar tu re?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Wel l ,  le t  me jus t  take  th is  –  yes.   

Mr  Bar ry  Hore ,  the  Ch ie f  Opera t ing  Off i cer  res igned w i th in  

the  two to  th ree  months  you o f  you becoming 

Commiss ioner  in  December  o f  2013.   Cor rec t?  

MR MOYANE :    Cor rec t .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Mr  I van P i l lay,  the  ac t ing  

Commiss ioner,  res igned in  May o f  2015.   That  i s  w i th in  a  20 

few months o f  you tak ing  ove r.   Cor rec t?  

MR MOYANE :    Yes.   But  le t  us  no t  –  le t  us  go  back –  le t  

us  no t  s ide  takes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Le t  us  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MOYANE :    Why d id  they leave?  What  a re  the  
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reasons?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Jus t  s top  Mr  Moyane.   I  am go ing  to  

g ive  you the  peop le  and the  da tes .  

MR MOYANE :    Okay.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And then you can get  back to .   So 

tha t  i s  –  so  f rom Mr  Hare ,  Mr  Ivan P i l lay.   Th i rd ly,  Mr  Peter  

R icher  who was. . .   Sor ry,  Mr  P i l lay  was  ac t ing  

Commiss ioner.   I  to ld  you.   Mr  Peter  R icher  was the  Group  

Execut ive ,  S t ra teg ic  P lann ing  and  R isk ,  ac t ing  Ch ie f  

Off i ce r,  S t ra tegy Enab lement  and Communica t ions.   A ve ry  10 

long job  t i t le .   He le f t  in  May o f  2015.   Cor rec t?  

MR MOYANE :    I  am l i s ten ing .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Wel l ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MOYANE :    Yes,  they le f t .   I  cannot  remember  the  

da tes  and the  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    When Mr  Gene Rove l l i (? ) ,  Ch ie f  

Off i ce r,   Tax and Customs Enforcement  Invest iga t ions  

res igned in  May o f  2015.   You ag ree?  

MR MOYANE :    H ’m? 

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    I s  tha t  a  yes?  20 

MR MOYANE :    Yes,  I  agree.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Mr  Johann van Loggerenberg ,  Group  

Execut ive ,  Enforcement  Invest iga t ions a lso  le f t  in  February  

o f  2015.   Do you agree?  

MR MOYANE :    Yes.   February  2015?  I  am not  su re .   Ja ,  
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bu t  he  le f t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ear ly  2015?  

MR MOYANE :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Mr  Adr iaan Lackay who was the  

Spokesperson fo r  SARS,  res igned in  March o f  2015.  

MR MOYANE :    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Cor rec t?  

MR MOYANE :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    So Mr  Hare  was not  an  iso la ted  10 

case.   There  are  many o the rs  bu t  th is  i s  s ix  peop le  f rom 

the  top  eche lons o f  SARS who le f t  be fore  one year  was up 

o f  you r  tenure .   Do you accept  tha t  fac tua l l y?  

MR MOYANE :    H ’m.   Yes,  they le f t .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And tha t  i s  why I  p ress  you  on the  

content  o f  your  p lan  where  you sa id  you shou ld  take  

cont ro l  –  you cou ld  take  cont ro l  by  tes t ing  Bar ry  Hore .   

That  i s  one o f  the  th ings to  do  and tha t  you were  to  i dent i f y  

ind iv idua ls  tha t  cou ld  hamper  change and neut ra l i se  them.   

And i t  wou ld  appear  f rom the  fac t s  tha t  tha t  i s  what  you 20 

d id .   What  do  you  say to  tha t?  

MR MOYANE :    I  deny th is  w i th  a l l  the  contempt  tha t  goes 

w i th .   Perhaps we may need w i th  you Cha i rperson to  dea l  

w i th  ind iv idua l  case by  i t s  mer i t .    

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Bu t  i s  tha t  no t  ra ther  co inc identa l  
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tha t  s ix  sen io r  peop le  le f t?  

MR MOYANE :    Co inc idence shou ld  no t  bu t  le t  us  speak 

about  the  mer i t s  because he re  i t  is  semant ics .    

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    But  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MOYANE :    Because you a re  say ing  Bar ry  Hore  le f t  

because I  as  the  Commiss ioner  pushed h im as ide .   That  i s  

the  in fe rence tha t  you are  pu t t ing  i t  to  me.   I  am say ing  he  

le f t  and res igned,  c i t ing  persona l  mat te rs .   Who am I  

suppose to  say?  Am I  suppose to  say no?  He sa id  he  was  

leav ing .   He gave reasons.   And  I  went  to  the  Min is te r,  10 

Cha i r.   And I  sa id  yes –  I  am g iv ing  one.   Here ,  th is  person  

says he  is  leav ing .   He needs to  come back and says th is  

i s  what  I  d id  to  h im.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Do we,  by  any chance,  have any  

a f f idav i t  f rom Mr  Bar ry  Hore?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We do not .   Okay.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Thank you.   Cou ld  I  ask  you  to  look  

a t  AW-900 . . . [ in tervenes]  

MR MOYANE :    No,  le t  us  –  I  wou ld  l i ke  us  to  con t inue on 20 

th is .   Le t  us  no t  sk ip  th is .    

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    We . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MOYANE :    Le t  us  go  to  P i l lay.    

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Sor ry,  Mr  Moyane.   I  w i l l  ask  you the  

quest ions and I  . . . [ in te rvenes]  
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MR MOYANE :    Bu t  you are  cast ing  asser t ions  tha t  he  le f t  

because o f  me.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    I  am get t ing  to  –  I  am dea l i ng  w i th  i t  

and I  w i l l  g ive  you the  oppor tun i ty  to  say what  you want .   I  

am dea l ing  w i th  Mr  Bar ry  Hore .  

MR MOYANE :    Okay.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    P lease re fe r  to  AW-95.    

CHAIRPERSON :    And what  i s  the  page?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And tha t  i s  page –  SARS-01-507.   

There  are  th ree  br ie f  emai ls  there .   The f i rs t  –  the  second  10 

one in  the  m idd le  o f  the  page . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MOYANE :    Which  one?  AW. . . .?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    AW-95.  

MR MOYANE :    Okay.   Sor ry.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Page 507.    

MR MOYANE :    Ja?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    And in  the  m idd le  o f  the  page,  

Mr  Franzen emai ls  Mr  Massone on  the 

3 r d  o f  December  2014 and he says:   “Goodbye ,  Bar ry  

Hore . . . ”   Do you see tha t?  20 

MR MOYANE :    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    I  p resume tha t  i s  a  re ference to  h is  

depar tu re .   And then above tha t  i s  an  emai l  f rom 

Mr  Massone to  Mr  Franzen and he says the  fo l low ing”  

“Now I  am sca red  by  Tom.    
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Th is  guy was supposed to  be  un touchab le  and 

i t  took  Tom jus t  a  few weeks to  make h im  

res ign .  

Scary. . . ”  

 Do you see tha t?  

MR MOYANE :    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    So  I  do  no t  th ink  i t  requ i res  much  

in te rpre ta t ion ,  Mr  Moyane.   Mr  Massone,  w i th  whom you  

have been dea l ing  now fo r  many months ,  says o f  day o f  h is  

depar tu re :   Now I  am scared by  you,  Tom.   Do you  accept  10 

tha t  he  is  ta lk ing  about  you?  

MR MOYANE :    I  hea r  what  you are  say ing .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Do you accept  tha t  he  was  ta lk ing  

about  you?  

MR MOYANE :    Yes,  I  see tha t  he  i s  ta lk ing  about  me.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Th i s  guy. . .   You accept  tha t  he  is  

ta lk ing  about  Bar ry  Hore ,  cor rec t?  

MR MOYANE :    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Okay.  

“Th is  guy was supposed to  be  un touchab le  and 20 

i t  took  Tom jus t  a  few weeks to  make h im  

res ign .  

Scary. . . ”  

 So what  Mr  Massone w i th  whom you have been  

dea l ing  now fo r  months ,  meet ing  regu lar l y  and p lann ing .   
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H is  take  o f  Bar ry  Hore ’s  depar tu re  i s  anyth ing  bu t  ben ign .   

Would  you agree? 

MR MOYANE :    Bu t  what?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    He says i t  i s  very  s in is te r.   Would  

you agree?  

MR MOYANE :    He says i t  i s  s in is te r?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes.   In  o ther  words . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MOYANE :    That  Bar ry  Hore  is  leav ing?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes,  he  sees i t  as  you dr i v ing  h im  

out .  10 

MR MOYANE :    That  i s  your  in te rp re ta t ion ,  s i r.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Wel l ,  what  in te rpre ta t ion ,  o ther  than  

tha t ,  can you g i ve?  

MR MOYANE :    No.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    What  in te rpre ta t ion  can you g i ve  

o ther  than tha t?  

MR MOYANE :    I  cannot  th ink  on  h is  beha l f  what  

Mr  Massone was th ink ing  he re .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    I  cou ld  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MOYANE :    Because when Bar ry  Hore  was leav ing  i t  20 

was pub l i c  knowledge.   He was te l l ing  eve rybody tha t  he  

was leav ing .   So.   As  to  where  they p icked i t  up ,  tha t  i s  no t  

par t  o f  my -my . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes.  

MR MOYANE :    . . .my prob lem.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Wou ld  you agree,  Mr  Moyane,  tha t  th is  

emai l  f rom Mr  Massone to  Mr  Franzen re f lec ts  tha t  

Mr  Massone thought  tha t  you took h im out ,  tha t  i s  Bar ry  

Hore?  That  i s  what  he  thought .   You wou ld  accept  tha t ,  

tha t  i s  what  the  emai l  suggests?  

MR MOYANE :    On the  face  o f  i t ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MOYANE :    Yes,  on  the  face  o f  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MOYANE :    On the  face  o f  i t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   You a re  no t  necessar i l y  say ing  you 

agree tha t  tha t  i s  what  happened but  tha t  i s  what  he  seems 

to  have thought .  

MR MOYANE :    Bu t  anothe r  th ing ,  Cha i r,  i f  I  may 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MOYANE :    . . .perhaps maybe comment  here?  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MOYANE :    When peop le  make the i r  own assessment ,  

they assess everybody tha t  they know in  whatever  fo rm or  20 

shape and they  m ight  have the i r  own op in ion  on  the  

ind iv idua l .   As  to  whether  I  was  untouchab le ,  I  do  no t  

know.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR MOYANE :    A l l  I  know,  wh ich  I  can conf i rm here ,  tha t  
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he  was a  f i rm man what  he  wanted and he wanted to  be  

done.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MOYANE :    So  tha t  i s  a l l  I  can  take  about  h im.   He was 

whatever  he  wan ted.   Of  cou rse ,  I  wou ld  engage and we 

wou ld  have a  d iscuss ion  on  th is  mat te r  l i ke  any  o ther  

person.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Le t  me jus t  ment ion  to  you the  

impress ion  tha t  I  ge t  f rom th is  so  tha t  you can comment  on  

i t .   When one reads i t  togethe r  w i th  tha t  p lan  o f  hundred  10 

days tha t  we dea l t  w i th  ear l ie r.   You have tha t  pa r t  wh ich  

was say ing  tes t  Bar ry  Hore .   Test ing  Bar ry  Hore .   You 

remember  tha t  pa r t?  

MR MOYANE :    Yes,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  g ives  me the  impress ion ,  together  

w i th  what  you  sa id  about  h im,  tha t  he  was qu i te  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MOYANE :    Pass ionate ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Uhm . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MOYANE :    [ Ind is t inc t ]   [Speaker  unc lear ]    20 

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . impor tan t  on  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MOYANE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .on  SARS,  you know.   That  g i ves  me 

the  impress ion  tha t  the  p lan  had  some focus on h im,  the 

hundred days,  had some focus on h im.   Maybe tha t  was 
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inev i tab le  i f  he  was so  impor tan t  in  the  o rgan isa t ion  bu t  

had some focus on h im and contempla ted  tha t  he  needed  

to  be  tes ted  wha tever  tha t  tes t ing  meant  bu t  to  be  tes ted .   

But  tha t  Mr  Massone now th inks  tha t :   Shu,  Tom has -  I  

th ink  he  re fers  to  you –  i s  so  power fu l .   He –  i s  th is  –  th is  

i s  what  he  has done to  th is  man tha t  we thought  was 

untouchab le .   I  am say ing ,  tha t  i s  the  impress ion  I  am 

get t ing .   And I  jus t  want  to  g ive  you a  chance to  comment  

on  th is  impress ion .  

MR MOYANE :    Cha i r,  I  wou ld  no t  agree w i th  you but  the  10 

contex t  in to  wh ich  you are  pa in t ing  i t  . . . [ in te rvenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    You are  unders tand?  

MR MOYANE :    I  do  unders tand i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MOYANE :    Bu t  the  fac t  o f  the  mat te r  i s  tha t .   The  

organ isa t ion ,  as  I  sa id ,  h inged  on what  they ca l l  the  

modern isa t ion  o f  SARS.   That  was the  hear tbeat  o f  the  

organ isa t ion .   And tha t  you have your  sys tems in  p lace .   

What  do  you ca l l . . .?   You needed to  have peop le  who  

unders tand what  the  tax  organ isa t ion  funct ions w i th  20 

respect  to  e i ther  in te r face  w i th  va l id  s takeho lders .   That  i s  

where  the  hear t  o f  the  organ isa t ion  was.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.    

MR MOYANE :    And there fore ,  you needed to  be  ab le  to  

have someone l i ke  h im who unders tand th is .  



26 MAY 2021 – DAY 403 
 

Page 179 of 221 
 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MOYANE :    Someone who is  ab le  to  de fend the  

te r r i to ry.   Someone who says th is  i s  what  I  see happen ing  

in  o the r  ju r i sd ic t i ons  in  the  wor ld .   So,  c red i t  i s  g i ven to  

h im.   Cred i t  i s  due to  h im.   And nowhere  in  the  

organ isa t ion ,  in  my pronouncements ,  have I  sa id  th is  man 

was a  scum.   He  was th i s .   Th i s  mat te r  was cont inuous ly  

e leva ted to  a  leve l  tha t  we canno t  go  back lower  to  what  

the  s tandard  has been se t .    

 And indeed,  when th is  happened,  fo r  me i t  was a  10 

b ig  shock.   And I  want  to  emphas ise .   I t  was a  b ig  shock.   

He was not  a  man who ta lked a  lo t .   He was a  man who  

was do ing ,  who was prac t ica l .   He needed th ings to  be  

done.   He wou ld  ask  fo r  i t  and the  chance you d isag ree 

tha t  in  the  manner  in  wh ich  i t  i s  be ing  done i s  no t  r igh t .   

Le t  us  look a t  th is ,  le t  us  look a t  tha t .   But  to  engage.   So 

i f  there  was an agenda on my s ide ,  I  wou ld  no t  have taken  

th is  mat te r  to  the  Min i s te r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Frank l in .    

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes.   Mr  Moyane,  I  must  jus t  suggest  20 

to  you.   Read ing  these documents ,  tha t  i t  looks as  though 

th is  was the  execut ion  o f  a  p lan .   You tes ted  Bar ry  Hore  

and you neut ra l i sed  h im.    

MR MOYANE :    No,  you are  s t i l l  pu t t ing  th is  –  you are  

t ry ing  to  th row as much mud tha t  i t  s t i cks .   I  am say ing  to  
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you  I  d id  no t .   I  d id  no t ,  w i th  due  respect ,  make Mr  Bar ry  

Hore  to  leave.   Because the  way you a re  pu t t ing  i t  i s  tha t  I  

d id  f ina l l y  made th is  push tha t  he  must  go .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    That  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  was the  da te  o f  Mr  Bar ry  Hore ’s  

depar tu re  or  i s  there  a  par t i cu la r  da te  in  December  towards  

the  end?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes,  the  3 r d  o f  December.  

MR MOYANE :    3 r d  o f  December,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   3 r d  o f  December?  10 

MR MOYANE :    3 r d  o f  December.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay,  okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Mr  Moyane,  jus t  to  g ive  fu r ther  

contex t .   Am I  cor rec t  tha t  w i th in  two weeks o f  tak ing  over  

in  September  o f  2014,  you had d i sbanded SARS’s  Exco?  

MR MOYANE :    Cor rec t .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    That  i s  qu i te  a  dramat ic  move,  i s  i t  

no t?  

MR MOYANE :    Yes,  i t  i s .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    You fe l t  tha t  a f te r  two weeks tha t  20 

there  was a  proper  bas is  to  ge t  r id  o f  the ,  am I  cor rec t ,  

apar t  f rom the  board ,  the  most  sen ior  body,  dec i s ion  

mak ing  body?  

MR MOYANE :    No,  I  d id  no t  –  le t  us  ge t  –  le t  us  ro le  th is  

mov ie  a  l i t t le  b i t  back.   I  was appo in ted  on the  25 t h .   I  



26 MAY 2021 – DAY 403 
 

Page 181 of 221 
 

s ta r ted  my dut ies  on  Monday,  the  29 t h .   On Thursday or  

Fr iday o f  tha t  week,  I  th ink  i t  was the  4 t h  o r  the  3 r d  o f  

October,  there  was a  med ia  enqu i ry  tha t  came th rough Mr  

Lackay about  a  rogue un i t .   He cop ied  me and he sa id :   

S i r,  these a re  the  quest ions.   These are  the  p rob lems tha t  

we have tha t  comes f rom  the  Sunday Times.    

 I  was not  aware  bu t  I  d id ask  Mr  P i l lay  about  

th is .   Th is  th ing  was a t  the  back o f  my mind and th i s  was a  

b ig  th ing .   He was rea l l y  b ig  eyes.   Was worr ied  about  i t .   I  

sa id :   Wel l ,  I  do  no t  know.   You guys have been here  10 

longer.   These quest ions are  no t  coming up now.   I f  there  

is  a  way o f  answer ing  them,  go  ahead.   And I  d id .    

 And he went  together  w i th  another  gent leman,  

whose name I  w i l l  no t  ment ion  here  so  tha t  I  do  no t  

imp l ica te  anybody.   And I  sa id  dra f t  a  response because  

when media  asks quest ions they want  a  response.   He went  

as  the  Head o f  Communica t ion  and Media  to  d ra f t  a  

response and they came back and I  sa id :   Whatever  you  

put  fo rward ,  I  hope th is  covers  the  organ isa t ion  because  

these quest ions are  very,  very  prob lem(? ) .   I t  ended there .   20 

I  d id  no t  in te rvene.    

 Sunday,  the  5 t h ,  the  Sunday Time had an exposé 

about  a  rogue un i t .   Cha i r,  the  rogue un i t  d id  no t  s ta r t  w i th  

me.   Th i s  th ings  was be ing  invest iga ted  somet ime back.   

The wor ld  and South  A f r i cans are  made to  th ink  tha t  I  came 
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w i th  a  rogue un i t  nar ra t i ve .   I  gave Lackay the  la t i tude to  

respond in  a  manner  tha t  management  wou ld  have  l i ked  to  

respond to  th is  because he sa id  to  me:   We have rece ived  

s im i la r  quest ions be fore .    

 So they responded.   When I  saw th is ,  on  Sunday,  

tha t  very  Sunday,  I  requested Exco  members  to  come back.   

Le t  us  d i scuss th is  mat te r.   A l l  o f  them came.   I  asked,  

Cha i r :   Wou ld  you,  gent lemen and  the  lady,  exp la in  to  me?   

What  i s  th is?   There  were  murmurs  amongst  them.   Den ia l ,  

den ia l .   Th is  i s  an  a t tack  on  SARS,  on  th is ,  on  tha t .   And I  10 

sa id :   But  I  was  not  g iven –  I  was not  taken in to  your  

conf idence by  yourse lves.   I  hope and t rus t  tha t  th i s  mat te r  

ends here .   We le f t  tha t  mat te r.    

 The Min is te r  ca l led  and  sa id :   What  i s  

happen ing?  I  sa id :   Wel l ,  s i r,  I  do  no t  know.   I  was g iven  

the  assurance tha t  th is  i s  jus t  a l legat ions aga ins t  the 

organ isa t ion .    A week la te r,  aga in ,  quest ions were  

f i l te red(?) .   Through whom?  Mr  Lackay.   Guess  what?   

That  Sunday,  SARS pros t i tu tes  b lah-b lah -b lah .   I  was l i ved  

about  th is .    20 

 Tak ing  in to  account ,  Cha i r,  tha t  I  had ra i sed th is  

mat te r  w i th  the  M in is te r  a lso .   On tha t  Sunday the  Min is te r  

was in  Durban in  Nata l .   We agreed to  meet  a t  the  a i rpo r t  

to  d iscuss br ie f l y  on  th is  mat te r  because i t  i s  a  wor r isome 

mat te r.   SARS is  an  ins t i tu t ion  o f  tha t  has huge in tegr i t y  
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and. . .   I t s  reputa t ion  was be ing  d ragged by  th is  in fe rence  

or  tha t  p ress  tha t  i s  be ing  wr i t ten  about  i t .    

 And I  sa id  to  the  Min is te r :   How do we. . .?   He 

says:   I t  seems,  Commiss ioner,  tha t  you have no t  been 

g iven a  t rue  s to ry  about  th is  th ing ,  bear ing  in  m ind tha t  

there  i s  an  inves t iga t ion  tha t  i s  tak ing  p lace on the  mat te r  

tha t  i s  happen ing  in  the  organ isa t i on .   And I  sa id :   How do 

I  t rus t  peop le  who do not  te l l  me what  needs to  be  

d iscussed?   

 And I  sa id  to  h im:   Min is te r,  I  th ink  I  w i l l  need to  10 

go  and ta lk  Exo tha t  I  th ink  we do not  need to  have exco  

meet ings in  t he  manner  in  wh ich  we are .   For  the  moment ,  

we sha l l  s tand but  opera t ions w i l l  con t inue in  the  manner 

in  wh ich  they are .   I  never  took dec i s ions un i la te ra l  i f  i t  i s  

a  mat te r  tha t  has  to  do  w i th  en fo rcement .   I  wou ld  have a  

d iscuss ion  w i th  the  en forcement  au thor i t y.    

 I  communica ted  my d isp leasure ,  bu t  i t  was not  

permanent ly.   That  was in  November /October.   By  

December,  we had to  re ins t i tu ted  the  Exco.   So i t  was not  

done in  the  absence o f  tak ing  in to  account  tha t  we need  20 

leadersh ip  on  the  ground or  send ing  message,  l i ke  in ,  le t  

us  have a  d iscuss ion  here .   Le t  us  be  open w i th  one  

another  o f  what  i s  happen ing  in  the  organ isa t ion .    

 What  gave me a  sense tha t  peop le  are  te l l ing  me 

tha t  the  rogue un i t  mat te r  does no t  ex is t .   Forget  about  i t .   



26 MAY 2021 – DAY 403 
 

Page 184 of 221 
 

I  d id  no t  in i t ia te  i t .   And as  tes t imony wou ld  be  g i ven he re .   

Why d id  I  have two peop le  coming to  me in  2015 to  te l l  me  

about  the  rogue –  tha t  they were  par t  o f  the  rogue  un i t?   I  

saw the  equ ipment .    

 I  in te rac ted  w i th  them.   And I  th ink  I  shou ld  no t  

be  used as  a  scapegoat  fo r  the  bad th ings tha t  happened.   

We must  admi t  tha t  there  were  wrong th ings tha t  happened 

in  the  organ isa t ion .   I  d id  no t  ca l l  Mr  S ikhakhane to  the  

organ isa t ion  to  do  an  invest iga t ion  as  to  what  was  

happen ing .   I  d id  no t  ca l l  Advocate  M Khanyane,  the 10 

predecessor  to  Mr  S ikhakhane.    

 A l l  these invest i ga t ions were  tak ing  p lace w i th  

the  fu l l  coopera t ion  o f  the  M in is te r  and the  ac t ing  

Commiss ioner.   Cha i r,  I  am not  sure  as  to  where  th is  

d iscuss ion  is  go ing  bu t  I  guess i t  may g ive  you a  sense 

tha t  th is  o rgan isa t ion  is  no t  as  ho ly  as  i t  seems to  be .   

There  were  prob lems in  the  o rgan isa t ion .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Frank l in ,  cont inue.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC :    Yes,  thank you.   Mr  Moyane,  where  i t  

i s  go ing  is  tha t  the  fac ts  appear  to  suggest  tha t  you 20 

executed upon a  p lan  wh ich  we see in  wr i t ing  be fore  you  

even got  in to  SARS.   That  i s  what  I  am suggest ing  to  you.   

And what  to ,  p lease,  re fe r  you to .   I  took  you to  the  Nugent  

Commiss ion ’s  repor t .   That  i s  in  the  f i les  o f  –  the  bund les  

tha t  have been labe l led  fo r  a l l  o f  us  now Cha i r.   N3B o f  the  
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app l i ca t ion  bund le  has the  ment ioned Commiss ion  repor t  a t  

the  beg inn ing  o f  page 448.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You must  remember  a t  some s tage,  

Mr  Frank l in ,  tha t  Mr  Monyane wanted to  ta lk  about  the  

o ther  o f f i c ia l s .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Yes,  tha t  i s  what  I  am get t ing  on  to .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Do you see tha t ,  Mr  Monyane? 

CHAIRPERSON:    The bund le ,  i s  i t  N3B,  the  app l i ca t ion  

bund le?  10 

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    N3B.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    I t  s ta r ts  a t  448,  I  am re fer r ing  to  

page 522 to  542 .   There  is  a  chapter  devoted  to  the 

res ignat ion  o f  sen ior  employees.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  one second.   Yes,  Mr  Frank l in?   

Page 525?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Yes,  522.  

CHAIRPERSON:    522.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    542 And  so  Mr  Monyane,  th is  i s  20 

Nugent  Commiss ion ’s  ana lys is  o f  the  depar tment  o f  these  

s ix  peop le  tha t  I  named fo r  you and i t  a lso  dea ls  w i th  the  

d isbandment  o f  the  execut ive  and i t  se ts  ou t  here  the  

c i rcumstances wh ich  led  to  each person ’s  depar tment .   

Those are  f ind ings tha t  have been made by  the  Nugent  
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Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Frank l in ,  fo r  some reason  

I  do  no t  have pages 518 to  522.   I  have 517 and then the  

next  page i s  523 .   I  do  no t  know whethe r  they are  m ixed  

somewhere .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    I  am not  sure  i f  they  have been 

misp laced,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  maybe i f  you,  maybe i f  you read 

wh i le  somebody t r ies  to  ge t  me the  r igh t  pages,  you can  

cont inue and wh i l e  you read I  wou ld  . . . [ in te rvenes]  10 

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Thank you ,  and what  I  had  put  to  

Mr  Monyane is  th is  i s  the  chapter  f rom the  Nugent  

Commiss ion  repor t  wh ich  de ta i l s  the  c i r cumstances  o f  the 

depar tu re  o f  the  s ix  peop le  and  I  do  no t  in tend go ing  

th rough i t .   Th is  i s  ev idence tha t  was g iven and these are  

f ind ings tha t  have been made,  bu t  Mr  Monyane,  you sa id  

you w ished to  say someth ing  abou t  tha t .  

MR MONYANE:    Cha i r,  no t  to  sound r i d icu lous,  le t  us  s ta r t  

w i th  [ ind is t inc t ]  was res ign ing  because o f  pe rsona l  reasons 

and i f  th is  Commiss ion  does no t  accept  i t ,  i t  i s  jus t  a  20 

dec is ion  tha t  you  make.   He may  be ca l led  here .   Kos i lo  

was ready,  leav ing  the  organ isa t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Who is  tha t?  

MR MONYANE:    Kos i lo ,  Kos i lo ,  the  Ch ie f  o f  Sa l iga .   I  

th ink  he  was go ing  on re t i rement  because o f  age ,  so  he  
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sa id  he  was leav ing  and the re fo re  I  see no reason why,  and 

a lso  in  h i s  case I  approached the  Min is te r  and I  

approached h im to  s tay  a  l i t t le  b i t  longer.  

Gene Rave le ,  he  le f t  because he  wanted to  leave ,  

he  sa id  he  was  res ign ing ,  so  these peop le  pu t  the i r  

reasons tha t  they are  res ign ing  on  persona l  reasons,  I  

have no author i t y  to  s top  them.   Ms E l i sabeth  Khumalo  she  

was there  on  a  temporary  bas is ,  she was Head o f  HR,  she  

d id  ind ica te  to  me tha t  as  soon as  we s tar t  the  process o f  

s t rugg l ing  the  organ isa t ion  she w i l l  be  leav ing .   She le f t ,  10 

she was coming I  th ink  f rom Te lkom or  so ,  she was there  

as  Head o f  HR.  

Bob Head is  a  Br i t i sh  Nat iona l  who came here  

dur ing  Mr  Gordhan ’s  tenure ,  he  came wi th  h is  g i r l f r iend  

who was g iven a  job  here  and there fore  he  was a lso  about  

to  leave and he sa id  he  wanted to  leave and I  a l lowed h im  

to  leave.    

Peter  R icher,  he  was imp l ica ted  i n  the  Rogue Un i t  

mat te r  and he sa id  he  wanted to  leave,  so  I  do  no t  see why  

I  am be ing  b rought  down here  in to  these mat te rs ,  because  20 

as  I  sa id ,  I  have  no ro le  except  to  be  ab le  to  unders tand  

what  was happen ing  in  the  o rgan isa t ion  and fo r  me to  be  

drawn to ,  espec ia l l y  on  paragraph 4 ,  hav ing  read the  repor t  

on  the  Sunday Times Mr  Monyane ca l led  together  the  

members  o f  ExCo,  wh ich  I  had sa id  to  you Cha i r,  be fore  I  
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read th is  and I  demanded to  know what  th is  repor t  about  

the  Rogue Un i t  i s  a l l  about .  

A l l  members  [ ind is t inc t ] ,  i t  i s  incred ib le  tha t  th is  

[ ind is t inc t ] .   They  knew the  Rogue Un i t  ex is ted .   Cha i r,  jus t  

fo r  a  moment ,  they knew,  why wou ld  then have gone in to  

th is  deep ana lys i s  by  S ikakane?  They knew about  th is .   

So there  was cyn ic ism on the  par t  o f  the  leadersh ip  

pro tec t ing  one another  and I  cou ld  no t  unders tand why  

they sa id  they do  not  know,  there  was no,  to  say they 

d isavowed the  knowledge o f  the  ex is tence o f  the  Rogue 10 

Un i t  i t  i s  fa r fe tched.   They knew.   They might  have known i t  

as  HR whatever,  h igh  whatever,  research  un i t ,  whatever  i t  

i s ,  bu t  the  fac t  o f  the  mat te r  i s  tha t  fo r  them to  say they do  

not  know th is  un i t ,  bu t  the  peop le  were  there .  

Mr  Gordhan here  under  oa th  accepted tha t  the  

Rogue Un i t  ex is ted .   Perhaps the  word  makes  peop le  

uncomfo r tab le ,  bu t  tha t  un i t  wh ich  ex is ted  was the re .    

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Yes,  thank you Mr  Monyane.   Cou ld  

you p lease now tu rn  back to  a  document  wh ich  I  took  you  

to  ear l ie r?  20 

MR MONYANE:    Which  one?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    I t  i s  a t  page 513,  so  i t  i s  SARS 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Frank l in ,  i f  your  team wou ld  jus t  

remember  to  make su re  I  have got  m iss ing  pages.  
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ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And my Reg is t ra r  wou ld  remind them o f  

i t .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Yes.   I  am sor ry.   Le t  me g ive  you  

tha t  re fe rence aga in .   I t  i s  AW100  and in  the  next  b reak,  

Cha i r,  we w i l l  a t tempt  to  ge t  those  miss ing  pages fo r  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Wou ld  you look a t  AW100  wh ich  

commences on page SARS01,  page 534?  Do you have i t?  

MR MONYANE:    AW100?  10 

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Yes.  

MR MONYANE:    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    That  i s  the  presenta t ion  wh ich  you 

ident i f ied  ear l ie r,  SARS2.0 ,  what  has to  be  done,  August  

2014.  

MR MONYANE:    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Now I  want  to  take  you to  page 535  

and in  the  m idd le  o f  the  page th is  i s  what  the  p lan  says:  

“ In terms of  t ransform SARS into an 

innovat ive revenue and customs agency,  SA 20 

Government wi l l  have to run a profound 

st rategy refresh and focus on execut ion to 

reach SARS’ fu l l  potent ia l . ”  

That  was par t  o f  the  p lan  wh ich  you and Ba in  had  

d iscussed in  advance o f  you tak ing  up  your  pos i t ion ,  
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cor rec t?  

MR MONYANE:    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Now what  i s  in te res t ing  about  tha t  

and wh ich  I  wou ld  ask  you to  comment  on  is  tha t  you,  f rom 

the  outs ide ,  you and Ba in  be l ieved tha t  SARS wou ld  have  

to  undergo a  pro found s t ra tegy re f resh in  o rder  to  

t ransform i t  in to  an  innovat ive  revenue and customs 

agency and tha t  was your  ob jec t i ve  as  wr i t ten  here ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR MONYANE:    Yes,  underp inned by  the  dec is ion  by  10 

SARS to  do  an opera t ing  [ ind is t inc t ] .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Wel l ,  th is  is  more  than an opera t ing  

mode l  change,  i t  i s  to  t ransform SARS in to  an  innovat ive  

revenue and customs agency,  cor rec t?  

MR MONYANE:    That  i s  what  i t  says .   That  i s  what  i t  says ,  

bu t  chang ing  opera t ing  mode l  i t  means you have  to  do  a 

rad i ca l  change in  the  organ isa t ion .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Now you have accepted th is  be fore ,  

ne i the r  you,  nor  Ba in  had been w i th in  SARS a t  the  t ime 

th is  was wr i t ten ,  cor rec t?  20 

MR MONYANE:    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    And I  must  pu t  i t  to  you,  you have  

accepted yourse l f  you had no revenue author i t y  exper ience 

and I  must  jus t  te l l  you  tha t  Mr  Wi l l iams who gave ev idence  

here  to ld  the  Commiss ion  tha t  the  Ba in  leadersh ip  team 
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tha t  u l t imate ly  was appo in ted  by  SARS as consu l tan ts  had 

no revenue author i t y  exper ience  e i ther.   Do you  accept  

tha t?  

MR MONYANE:    I  do  no t  know.   They shou ld  have  

appo in ted  peop le  who unders tood the  env i ronment .   I  th ink  

when you have a  consu l t ing  company they mus t  a t tach 

peop le  who have a  sense o f  what  the  organ isa t ion  needs.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    D id  you a t  any s tage  ask  Mr  

Massone or  Mr  Franzen about  the i r  exper ience in  revenue 

author i t y  consu l t ing?  10 

MR MONYANE:    Wel l ,  f rom the  d iscuss ion  I  had they have  

done consu l tancy  w i th  o ther  o rgan isa t ions,  they have done 

benchmark ing  w i th  in te rna t iona l  revenue organ isa t ions in  

the  wor ld .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Wel l ,  tha t  i s  I  am a f ra id  no t  what  

Mr  Wi l l iams says.  

MR MONYANE:    Pardon?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Not  what  Mr  Wi l l iams to ld  the  

Commiss ion .   He to ld  the  Commiss ion  tha t  the  th ree  peop le  

on  the  team had exper t i se  in  te lecommunica t ions,  f inanc ia l  20 

serv i ces  and bank ing ,  bu t  none o f  the  work ing  w i th  tax  

au thor i t ies  anywhere  in  the  wor ld .   A re  you ab le  to  d ispute  

tha t?  

MR MONYANE:    Wel l ,  tha t  i s  wha t  he  says,  bu t  they were  

ab le  to  in te rac t  w i th  my peop le  on  a  mean ing fu l  pos i t ion  on  
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i ssues tha t  per ta ined to  the  sector,  so  I  wou ld  no t  know 

tha t  they d id  no t  have exper ience in  tha t  f ie ld .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    And then what  I  a lso  want  to  po in t  

ou t  to  you is  the  ev idence tha t  was g i ven both  to  the  

Nugent  Commiss ion  and to  th is  Commiss ion  by  

Mr  Symington and Mr  van Loggerenberg ,  and te l l  me i f  you 

have any cause to  d ispute  i t ,  and tha t  i s  tha t  Mr  Symington 

sa id  tha t  the  Commiss ion  by  2008,  2009,  so r ry,  tha t  SARS 

by those dates  was recogn ised in te rnat iona l l y  as  one o f  

the  best  and most  e f f i c ien t  tax  admin is t ra t ion  se rv ices  i n  10 

the  wor ld .   Would  you d i spute  tha t?  

MR MONYANE:    No.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    And Mr  van  Loggerenberg ,  you sa id ,  

bu t  there  is  a  tax  admin is t ra t ion  d iagnost ic  assessment  

too l  wh ich  is  used in te rnat iona l l y  as  a  measurement  

ins t rument  and in  2013 SARS scored amongst  the  top  f i ve  

revenue and cus toms author i t ies  us ing  th is  t oo l .   Wou ld  

you accept  tha t?  

MR MONYANE:    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    In  o ther  words,  the  organ isa t ion  in to 20 

wh ich  you were  appo in ted  was  regarded by  ob jec t i ve  

measures as  be ing  wor ld  c lass .   Do you accept  tha t?  

MR MONYANE:    That  i s  t rue ,  bu t  tha t  does not  mean tha t  

i t  was lack ing  in  o ther  a reas tha t  needed  to  be  

s t rengthened.  
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ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Wel l ,  one wou ld  a lways a t t empt  to  

s t rengthen an organ isa t ion ,  bu t  what  i s  apparent  f rom your  

p lan  i s  tha t  you in tended a  p ro found s t ra tegy re f resh and a  

t ransformat ion  o f  the  organ isa t ion  in to  someth ing ,  you  

used the  te rm innovat ive  revenue and customs agency and  

what  I  had asked  you to  exp la in  t o  the  Commiss ion  is  why 

was i t  necessary  to  pu t  SARS through a  pro found s t ra tegy 

re f resh a t  the  t ime when i t  was wor ld  c lass  and you  had no  

par t i cu la r  knowledge about  revenue author i t ies ,  why tha t  

p lan?  10 

MR MONYANE:    I  th ink  tha t  quest ion  wou ld  be  answered  

s imp ly  by  the  fo l low ing,  why wou ld  SARS have accepted  

tha t  there  is  a  need fo r  a  new opera t ing  mode l  tha t  looks 

in to  the  o rgan isa t ion  in  a  pro found manner  i f  every th ing  

was as  h igh  leve l  and w i thout  the  need to  change?  There  

were  reasons fo r  tha t .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Wel l ,  you  re fer  to  those documents  

Mr  Monyane,  I  have not  seen them.  

MR MONYANE:    Pardon?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    I  have not  seen the  document  tha t  20 

you re fer  to .   We d iscussed  tha t  ear l ie r.   Do you  

unders tand?  

MR MONYANE:    Wel l ,  I  sa id  even i f  you do not  have a  

copy,  bu t  i t  i s  there  in  the  document ,  i t  i s  o f f i c ia l .   I t  i s  

ca l led  APP2014/2015,  reorgan isa t ion  o f  SARS.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Can I  take  you back a  few minutes  ago,  

Mr  Monyane,  about  whether  Ba in  or  the  peop le  f rom Ba in  

tha t  you were  dea l ing  w i th ,  whether  they  had any  

exper ience re la t ing  to  the  type o f  bus iness tha t  SARS is  in .   

D id  you a t  any s tage as  fo r  the  pro f i les  o f  the  peop le  

concerned to  unders tand what  k ind  o f  exper ience they  

have got  to  be  ab le  to  adv ise  you or  SARS as to  what  to  do  

in  te rms o f  tax  co l lec t ion?  D id  you  get  the i r  p ro f i les  to  see 

whethe r  they d id  have the  exper ience?  

MR MONYANE:    Do you mean  before  o r  a f te r  I  was 10 

appo in ted ,  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    A t  some s tage before  you s ta r ted  a t  

SARS,  ja .  

MR MONYANE:    Wel l ,  w i th  respect  to  be fore ,  no .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONYANE:    I  depended ent i re ly  on  the  knowledge tha t  

Mr  Massone w i l l  a t tach  peop le  who unders tand the  secto r.   

Post  when they were  appo in ted  I  was not  invo lved d i rec t l y  

in  the  appo in tment  o f  the  organ isa t ion ,  bu t  I  took  i t  on  

good fa i th  tha t  the  teams tha t  he  has pu t  in  p lace ,  g iven 20 

the  fac t  tha t  SARS was a  wor ld  c lass  organ isa t ion ,  wou ld  

no t  come and have peop le  who are  seconded who does not  

have the  unders tand ing  or  the  background o f  the  

organ isa t ion ,  what  the  organ isa t i on  is  a l l  about  and what  

fu tu re  p rospects  you want  to  pu t  in  p lace .   I  must  say  here  
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no ,  I  d id  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR MONYANE:    But  I  took  i t  tha t  the  peop le  who were  

seconded to  do  these th ings,  one way or  the  o ther  they  

must  have exper ience in  the  f ie ld .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Mr  Frank l in?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Mr  Monyane,  

cou ld  I  ask  you p lease to  look  back  a t  your  s ta tement ,  your  

a f f idav i t  ra ther,  wh ich  is  in  SARS bund le  3 ,  and  I  wou ld  

want  you to  look  p lease a t  paragraph 29.    10 

MR MONYANE:    Which  one?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Paragraph 29 on page SARS0320.  

MR MONYANE:    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Now th is ,  in  th is  sec t ion  you dea l  

w i th  a  head ing ,  you say ‘ the  Rogue Un i t  and  S ta te 

Capture ’ .   Now jus t  to  ge t  the  term ino logy cor rec t ,  when  

you ar r i ved a t  SARS there  was one o f  many un i ts ,  one was  

ca l led  the  H igh  Per fo rmance Un i t  and th i s  i s  the  labe l  tha t  

was g iven to  i t  once the  press  repor ts  came out ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t ,  the  labe l  Rogue Un i t?  20 

MR MONYANE:    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    And you have sa id  in  paragraphs 29  

and 30:  

“Final ly I  wish to state categorical ly that  the 

format ion an dope of  the so-cal led Rogue 
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Uni t ,  the existence of  which Mr Gordhan has 

subsequent ly conf i rmed, and based on the 

object ive evidence before the Commission,  

were i l legal  and probably amounted to a 

form of  State Capture. ”  

And you say:  

“The uni t  was cer tainly formed and operated 

against  the clear  provisions of  the law in 

breach of  the PFMA and other  relevant  

statutes,  more part icular ly in that  publ ic 10 

funds were received under fa lse pretence 

that  the uni t  would be housed at  Nat ional  

Inte l l igence Agency when in fact  i t  was 

housed at  SARS.”  

And then the re  are  two fu r ther  parag raphs tha t  you dea l  

w i th ,  bu t  am I  co r rec t  in  su rmis ing  f rom those paragraphs  

tha t  as  you s i t  in  the  w i tness box in  March o f  2021 you,  

a l though you are  no t  a  lawyer,  bu t  your  unders tand ing  and 

your  pe rcept ion  is  tha t  the  Rogue  Un i t ,  as  you ca l l  i t ,  was 

un lawfu l  and i t s  fo rmat ion  was aga ins t  the  c lear  p rov is ions 20 

o f  the  law,  as  you sa id?   I s  tha t  what  you,  i s  tha t  your  

s tandpo in t?  

MR MONYANE:    Yes,  tha t  i s  the  s tandpo in t  I  have.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    I  imag ine  you have fo l lowed the  

l i t iga t ion  tha t  has taken p lace i n te r  a l ia  be tween Min is te r  
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Gordhan and the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  and you were  aware  o f  

judgments  tha t  have been g iven in  those proceed ings.   

Would  you agree? 

MR MONYANE:    Wel l ,  I  hear  wha t  you are  say ing .   I  th ink  

when my counse l  was he re  he  d i scussed th is  mat te r  w i th  

Mr  Gordhan and I  th ink  i t  was on  reco rd  as  to  what  the  

ou tcome o f  those  judgments  were  a l l  about .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Yes,  we l l  no t  much po in t  wou ld  be  

served in  read ing  out  the  judgment ,  bu t  what  I  want  to  jus t  

te l l  you ,  we do not  have the  judgments here ,  no t  read i l y  a t  10 

hand,  bu t  the  fu l l  bench o f  the  H igh  Cour t  in  Gauteng gave  

a  judgment  on  the  7 t h  o f  December  o f  2020 in  the  mat te r  o f  

Gordhan v  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  &  O thers ,  i t  i s  repor ted  in  

2020(JOL)  49105GP,  and you do not  have i t  be fore  you,  bu t  

what  I  want  to  pu t  to  you is  tha t  the  fu l l  bench o f  the  

H igh  Cour t  in  Pre tor ia  found unequ ivoca l l y  tha t  the  f ind ing  

o f  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  tha t  the  so-ca l led  Rogue Un i t  was  

un lawfu l ,  was s imp ly  wrong.  

In  fac t ,  they  found i t  was not  on ly  wrong in  law,  bu t  

i r ra t iona l  and fa l l s  to  be  rev iewed and se t  as ide .   Now 20 

every  leg  upon wh ich  the  Rogue Un i t  res ted ,  such  as  the  

Sunday Times repor t ,  the  S ikakane repor t ,  the  Kroon 

repor t ,  a l l  o f  those have e i ther  been w i thdrawn or  

d iscred i ted .  

So I  need to  jus t ,  as  you s i t  here  now you s t i l l  
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adamant ly  ins is t  tha t  th is  un i t  was un lawfu l l y  es tab l i shed,  

why do you have tha t  approach to  th is  un i t?  

MR MONYANE:    Cha i r,  I  have no t  had,  I  have in te rac ted  

w i th  Advocate  S ikakane a f te r  the  in te rv iew wi th  the  cross-

examinat ion  on  th is  mat te r.   As  fa r  as  she is  concerned th i s  

assessment  was not  in  any way seen as  ou t  o f ,  no t  p laced 

in  te rms o f  what  he  d i scovered a t  SARS and I  am not  sure  

as  to  why the  Rogue Un i t  mat te r  i s  so  cont rovers ia l  to  

peop le  he re  when i t  i s  very  c lear  tha t  the  bugg ing  o f  

o f f i ces  by  SARS has noth ing  to  do  w i th  tax .   You bug  10 

o f f i ces ,  tha t  i s  no t  tax  mat te r.  

The mat te r  tha t  I  was exposed to  tha t  I  s t i l l  ho ld ,  I  

s t i l l  s tand on what  I  am say ing ,  bu t  there  may be tha t  

dec is ion ,  I  am not  aware  o f  tha t  dec i s ion .   My lega l  

counse l  wou ld  have to  in fo rm me as to  the  ou tcome what  

happened,  bu t  the  fac t  o f  the  mat te r  i s  tha t  I  as  the  

Commiss ioner  I  was approached by  members  o f  tha t  

par t i cu la r  un i t  tha t  they d id  some o f  the  th ings tha t  a re  

i l l ega l  tha t  were  ou ts ide  the  ambi t  o f  tax  au thor i t y.  

I  am not  sure  as  to  why th is  quest ion  says i t  i s  a ,  20 

why do we s t i l l  s t i ck  w i th  th is .   I  s t i l l  s t i ck  w i th  th is  mat te r.   

The Rogue Un i t  ex i s ted  un lawfu l l y,  tha t  i s  what  was the  

ou tcome.   Now you are  say ing  the  Kroon Commiss ion ,  the  

Kroon Commiss ion  i t  was one man tha t  dec ided tha t  he  

d is tances h imse l f  w i th  the  repor t ,  Judge Kroon,  bu t  he  d id  
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no t  consu l t  the  o ther  peop le .   The Adv iso ry  Commi t tee  

cons is ted  o f  o ther  peop le ,  no t  h im on ly,  so  i t  was a  

persona l  op in ion ,  no t  a  dec i s ion  tha t  was taken  by the  

Adv isory  Commi t tee .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Yes you see Mr  Monyane,  the  

d i f f i cu l t y  i s  tha t  a  cour t  has pronounced,  and i t  rea l l y  does 

not  mat te r  wha t  anyone th inks  o f  i t ,  a  cour t  has  

pronounced and you,  I  wou ld  have thought  tha t  you wou ld  

have looked a t  tha t  and seen i t ,  bu t  i t  has  p ronounced in  

c lea r  and unequ ivoca l  te rms tha t  there  was noth ing 10 

un lawfu l  about  the  es tab l i shment  o f  th is  un i t  and  in  fac t  

what  the  cour t  found was tha t  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  in  

mak ing  a  f ind ing  tha t  the  un i t  was un lawfu l  a l lowed he r  

impor tan t  o f f i ce  to  be  used to  t ry  and resusc i ta te  a  long  

dead,  fake  news propaganda f i c t ion .   Now tha t  i s  a  cour t . . .   

You shake your  head.   Three  Judges found tha t ,  so  

whatever  you th ink  o f  i t  i s  i r re levant ,  so  tha t  i s  what  I  am 

put t ing  to  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  Mr  Frank l in ,  had you f in ished 

what  you were  pu t t ing  f i rs t?  20 

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Yes,  I  have one fu r ther  p ropos i t ion  

to  pu t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay no,  okay le t  me hear.    

FEMALE SPEAKER:    The ob jec t ion  is  as  fo l lows ,  Cha i r.   

Mr  Frank l in  i s  pu t t ing  to  the  w i tness tha t  the  fu l l  bench in  
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P re tor ia  found or  made cer ta in  f ind ings aga ins t  the  Pub l ic  

Pro tec tor  in  the  mat te r  o f  Prav in  Gordhan v  The Pub l ic  

Pro tec tor  and there fore  my learned  f r iend proceeds,  i t  does 

not  mat te r  what  eve rybody e lse  says,  in  o the r  words i t  

does not  mat te r  what  S ikakane found,  i t  does not  mat te r  

what  Kroon found,  those f ind ings by  the  fu l l  bench in  

Pre tor ia  s t i l l  s tand,  and I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  i t  i s  cor rec t .  

I f  Mr  Cha i rman wou ld  remember,  even dur ing  the  

cross-examinat ion  o f  Mr  Gordhan he was qu izzed about  the 

f ind ing  and the  u t te rances o f  the  fu l l  bench where  he  was 10 

concerned and the  th ings he  sa id .   So i f  my learned f r iend  

says to  Mr  Monyane i t  does not  ma t te r  what  S ikakane says 

fo r  the  fu l l  bench judgment ,  I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  i s  cor rec t  

and I  th ink  Mr  Monyane has a  good po in t  when he says,  

when he reminds my learned f r iend tha t  in  fac t  K roon 

apo log ised fo r  say ing  and,  fo r  say ing  th ings w i thout  hav ing  

consu l ted  who was concerned.    

Maybe my learned f r iend wou ld  want  to  rephrase  

the  quest ion ,  bu t  we cannot  have  i t ,  we cannot  have h im 

say ing  to  Mr  Monyane what  the  fu l l  bench sa id  nu l l i f i es  20 

every  o ther  f ind ing  when we a l l  know tha t  fo r  example  the  

S ikakane repor t  has no t  been rev iewed by  anyone.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  me put  i t  th is  way,  Mr  Monyane,  

var ious peop le  and pane ls  expressed v iews on whether  th is  

un i t  was lawfu l  o r  un lawfu l .   I s  tha t  r igh t?  
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MR MONYANE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And tha t  inc ludes the  S ikakane repor t ,  

the  Kroon Pane l  and what  Mr  Frank l in  i s  say ing  is  tha t  you 

ar t i cu la ted  a  v iew,  I  th ink  ea r l ie r  on ,  tha t  the  un i t  was 

un lawfu l ,  I  hope my reco l lec t ion  is  r igh t ,  bu t  he  was now 

put t ing  to  you tha t  there  has now been a  judgment  o f  th ree  

Judges in  the  H igh  Cour t  o f  P re tor ia  who have dec ided tha t  

there  was noth ing  un lawfu l  about  the  es tab l i shment  o f  the  

un i t  and he asked you whether  you s t i l l  s tood by  your  v iew,  

and I  th ink  you sa id  you s t i l l  s tood by  your  v iew and you 10 

sa id  you spoke  to  Advocate  S ikakane and he sa id  

someth ing  to  you ,  I  cannot  remember  what  he  sa id ,  bu t  I  

go t  the  impress ion  tha t  you were  say ing  tha t  based on w i th  

he  sa id  to  you i t  meant  tha t  you d id  no t  change your  v iew 

about  the  un i t  tha t  i t  was un lawfu l .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MONYANE:    Yes,  Advocate  S ikakane s tands by  what  

h is  f ind ings were .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  yes ,  and you have not  read the  

judgment  tha t  Mr  Frank l in  i s  re fe r r i ng  to .  

MR MONYANE:    No s i r,  I  cannot  a rgue w i th  h im.   That  i s  20 

what  the  Judges are  say ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MONYANE:    Bu t  what  has to  be  answered 

Cha i rperson,  i s  i f  i t  i s  un lawfu l ,  i t  i s  no t  un lawfu l ,  what  i s  

the  lawfu lness o f  what  happened by  these members  when 
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they  a re  bugged. . .   I  hear  what  you  are  say ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONYANE:    When they bugged government  en t i t ies ,  

tha t  i s  an  i ssue.   That  i s  the  mat te r  tha t  I  am ra is ing  here .   

Th is  i s  no t  someth ing  tha t  i s ,  I  am dreaming about ,  i t  i s  a  

rea l i t y  o f  fac t .   So he can say what  he  wants  to  say,  bu t  I  

as  the  Commiss ioner  was sub jec ted  fo r  a  two and  a  ha l f  

confess ion ,  open ,  unso l i c i ted ,  so  I  do  no t  unders tand.   He  

can say whatever  he  does,  bu t  tha t  i s  f ine .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  10 

MR MONYANE:    I f  i t  i s  un lawfu l  tha t  i s  what  the  law says,  

so  i t  means the re  are  th ings tha t  a re  un lawfu l  tha t  become 

lawfu l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  do  no t  th ink  Mr  Monyane wou ld  be  ab le  

to  cont r ibu te  much in  te rms o f  whether  the  un i t  was lawfu l  

o r  no t ,  because he is  no t  a  lawyer.   He has sa id  he  phoned 

Mr  S ikakane and  Mr  S ikakane sa id ,  he  s tood by  what  he  

sa id .   So he,  I  th ink  you depended  on adv i ce  on  whether  i t  

was lawfu l  o r  no t ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MONYANE:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Yes M 'Lord ,  Cha i r,  abso lu te ly.   There  

is  no  po in t  in  debat ing  the  lega l i t y  and no r  d id  I  in tend to  

do  so .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  
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ADV FRANKLIN SC:    The po in t  I  make is  s imp ly  tha t  there  

has been a  de f in i t i ve  f ind ing  by  a  th ree  member  bench as  

to  the  lawfu lness o f  the  Rogue Un i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  yes .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Bu t  desp i te  tha t ,  Mr  Monyane in  

March o f  2021 s t i l l  ma in ta ins  tha t  i t  was un lawfu l  and tha t  

i s  the  on ly  th ing  I ,  and there  is  no  po in t  o f  deba t ing  my 

learned f r iend ’s  ob jec t ion  e i the r  and a  fu l l  read ing  o f  the 

judgment  w i l l  show tha t  the  cour t  dea l t  w i th  each  o f  the  

var ious . . . [ in te rvenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Grounds.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Bod ies  tha t  invest iga ted  th is  and  

d isagreed and sa id  tha t  they were  wrong.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Bu t  I  have  made my po in t .   Jus t  a  

f ina l  th ing  fo r  now on the  Rogue Un i t .   You ear l ie r  sa id  

words to  the  e f fec t  you are  no t  sure  why,  I  am us ing  my 

words now,  why the  fuss  and why peop le  a re  s t i l l  debat ing  

the  issue o f  the  Rogue Un i t ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?   I s  tha t  what  

you sa id?  20 

MR MONYANE:    Cha i r,  w i th  your  permiss ion  may I  request  

tha t  we move fu r the r?   Because th is  i s  no t  go ing  to  

advance any d iscuss ions,  my po in ts  and h i s  po in ts  and 

o ther  po in ts ,  so .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  he ,  I  th ink  he  wants  to  fo l low up  
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on  what  you sa id ,  he  wants  to  make sure  tha t  he  

unders tood you cor rec t l y  f i rs t .   I  th ink  you were  say ing  

someth ing  a long the  l ines  tha t  you  d id  no t  unders tand why  

th is  i ssue o f  the  un i t  was be ing  brought  up  in  the  

Commiss ion ,  tha t  was the  impress ion  o f ,  o r  my impress ion  

o f  what  you were  say ing .   I s  tha t  cor rec t ,  o r  no t?  

MR MONYANE:    Yes,  the  Rogue Un i t  was brought  to  your  

a t ten t ion ,  c ross-examinat ion  happened here  and the re  was  

an acceptab le  by  Mr  Gordhan tha t  yes ,  the  Rogue Un i t  

ex i s ted .   So o the r  pa r ts  tha t  we a re  a rgu ing  about  here ,  i f  10 

there  is  a  judgment ,  a  cour t  judgment  about  the  law fu lness  

o f  the  un i t ,  le t  us  leave i t  there  and le t  us  proceed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Frank l in?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Yes,  thank you.   The las t  p ropos i t ion  

I  want  to  pu t  i s  tha t  i t  i s ,  I  f ind  i t  s t range tha t  you  shou ld  

express tha t  sen t iment ,  because is  i t  no t  cor rec t  tha t  a  

number  o f  the  s teps wh ich  you  took wh i l s t  you were  

Commiss ioner  was based upon a  v iew tha t  there  was  a  un i t  

wh ich  go t  the  labe l  Rogue Un i t  wh ich  was un lawfu l?  

MR MONYANE:    Mr  Frank l in ,  w i th  due respect ,  a re  you 20 

say ing  tha t  the  two peop le  who came and confessed about  

wrong ac t iv i t ies  tha t  they d id ,  was lawfu l?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Mr  Monyane,  I  am not  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MONYANE:    No,  I  am ask ing .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    No,  do  no t  ask  me anyth ing .   I  am 
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say ing  to  you tha t  you as  Commiss ioner  based a  number  o f  

your  dec i s ions and ac t ions on  the  assumpt ion  tha t  there  

was an un lawfu l  Rogue Un i t ,  no t  so?  

MR MONYANE:    Which  dec is ions d id  I  take?  I  d id  no t  take  

any dec is ion  about  the  Rogue Un i t .   I  was dea l i ng  w i th  

mat te rs  o f  admin is t ra t ion  in  the  o rgan isa t ion .   The  Rogue 

Un i t  was jus t  a  d i f fe ren t  mat te r  a l togethe r.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    D id  the  d i sbandment  o f  ExCo not  

fo l low f rom the  news o f  the  so -ca l led  Rogue Un i t?  

MR MONYANE:    The d i sbandment  o f  ExCo was in  l i ne  w i th  10 

the  dec i s ion  tha t  we d iscussed w i th  the  Min is te r,  and i t  was 

re-es tab l i shed.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    And d id  the  depar tu re  o f  a  number  o f  

peop le  tha t  I  re fe r red  to  no t ,  was i t  no t  connected w i th  the  

so-ca l led  Rogue Un i t?  

MR MONYANE:    No,  aga in  you are  wrong,  no t  the 

depar tu re  o f  peop le .   Bar ry  Hore  d id  no t  leave because o f  

the  Rogue Un i t ,  Kos i lo  d id  no t  leave because o f  the  Rogue  

Un i t ,  Ms Khumalo  d id  no t  leave because o f  the  Rogue Un i t .   

So tha t  assumpt ion  is  wrong.  20 

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Yes,  we l l  as  I  have seen the  

documenta t ion  I  must  pu t  i t  to  you tha t  the  Rogue Un i t  

loomed la rge  du r ing  your  tenure  a t  SARS and you ra ised i t  

a t  eve ry  tu rn  as  a  jus t i f i ca t ion  fo r  your  ac t ions.    

MR MONYANE:   I  d isag ree w i th  you.   I  th ink  you are  
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comple te l y  m iss ing  the  po in t  here ,  Mr  Frank l in .    

I  d id  no t  run  SARS on the  bas is  o f  the  Rogue Un i t ,  I  

ran  SARS on the  bas i s  o f  what  needed to  be  done a t  tha t  

t ime and th is  asser t ion  is  comple te ly  unacceptab le  fo r  me,  

Cha i rperson,  because I  d id  no t  run  SARS based on the  

Rogue Un i t .   The Rogue Un i t  was a  s ideshow tha t  was a  

d is t rac t ion ,  tha t  was not  necessar i l y  in  the  organ isa t ion  

and I  repeat ,  Ba r ry  Hore ,  Kos i lo ,  Ma Khumalo  and o the rs  

le f t  a t  the i r  own  vo l i t ion .   I t  had  noth ing  to  do  w i th  the  

Rogue Un i t .  10 

Now you lumped everybody around the  Rogue Un i t ,  

I  am not  sure  where  you take  tha t  po in t  and Cha i r,  I  take ,  

my l ine  o f  th ink ing  i f  th is  i s  r igh t ,  i t  i s  no t  cor rec t  what  

Mr  Frank l in  i s  say ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  no ,  no ,  you are  r igh t  to  g ive  your  

response.   I f  you ,  you say what  i s  pu t  on to  you i t  i s  no t  

cor rec t  tha t  i s  leg i t imate  fo r  you to  say,  jus t  as  i t  i s  

leg i t imate  fo r  h im to  pu t  to  you  h is  in te rpre ta t ion  o f  the  

fa i rness o f  the  fac ts  as  he  sees  i t  and then g ive  you a  

chance to  respond.   Sha l l  we take  the  ad journment?  20 

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    For  10  m inutes .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  we take a  10  minutes  b reak.   We 

ad journ .  



26 MAY 2021 – DAY 403 
 

Page 207 of 221 
 

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  Mr  Frank l in?  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Cha i r,  I  am 

mindfu l  o f  the  hour.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    And I  am a lso  m indfu l  o f  the  fac t  

tha t  you defe r red  the  two app l i ca t ions to  c ross-examine 

and so  I  have not  covered the  top i cs  tha t  I  w ished to .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  10 

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    There  is  a  ve ry  nar rowly  

c i rcumscr ibed issue,  wh ich  Mr  Four ie  w ishes to  dea l  w i th  in  

re la t ion  to  Mr  Symington,  i f  you  g ive  leave.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The prob lem m ight  be  i f  I  do  no t  g ran t  

h im leave.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  tha t  i s  why  I  sa id  you must  cover  

what  you need to  cover  so  tha t  i r respect ive  o f  what  the  

ou tcome is  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Cer ta in ly.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    We do not  say  someth ing  was not  

covered.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Cer ta in ly.   Ja ,  he  is  s imp ly  be t te r  

p laced to  dea l  w i th  the  spec i f i c  i ssue.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja ,  bu t  f rom you r igh t  s ide  you have 
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covered.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    And then I  th ink  obv ious ly  

Mr  Hudman wi l l  add ress you to  the  ex ten t  tha t  he  w ishes 

to .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes  okay,  okay.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  thank you ,  Mr  Frank l in .   I  guess 

Mr  Hudman shou ld  be  the  f i rs t  one to  come back.   10 

Somebody must  san i t i se  the  pod ium.  

MR HUDMAN:    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR HUDMAN:    I  w i l l  no t  go  on  a t  length .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR HUDMAN:    Cha i rperson,  in  essence the  ev idence  

leader  has covered,  in  add i t ion  to  the  main  top ics  he  has  

covered broad ly  the  areas tha t  I  wou ld  have wanted to  

t raverse  in  c ross-examinat ion  w i th  Mr  Monyane.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  20 

MR HUDMAN:    I  am sat is f ied  a t  th is  s tage.   The  mat te r  

tha t  I  wou ld  now ra ise  in  add i t ion  to  what  he  has covered 

are  re la t i ve ly,  I  do  no t  want  to  say n i tp ick ing ,  bu t  they 

wou ld  be  co r rec t ,  they wou ld  cor rec t  fac tua l  inaccurac ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  
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MR HUDMAN:    And wou ld  ob ta in  concess ions in  re la t ion  to  

tha t ,  bu t  wou ld  no t  in  any way change the  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  the  b igger  scheme o f  th ings.  

MR HUDMAN:    The b igger  scheme o f  th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .  

MR HUDMAN:    And the  na tu re  o f  the  responses o f  

Mr  Monyane thus fa r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR HUDMAN:    We have one,  my c l ien t  has,  and  I  share  

one concern  and tha t  i s  tha t  thus fa r  my c l ien t ’s  a f f idav i t s  10 

have not  been p laced on the  webs i te  o f  the  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

MR HUDMAN:    The t ranscr ip t  o f  h is  ev idence on,  I  th ink  i t  

was the  24 t h  o f  March,  i s  up .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR HUDMAN:    Bu t  no t  h is  a f f idav i t s  and h is  a f f idav i t s ,  

we l l  h is  f i rs t  a f f idav i t  and h i s  second a f f idav i t ,  I  w i l l  speak  

o f  those fo r  the  t ime be ing ,  those a f f idav i t s  t raverse  in  ep ic  

de ta i l  much o f  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    The issues tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

MR HUDMAN:    Wel l ,  a l l  the  issues tha t  had been in  

debate .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR HUDMAN:    They dea l  w i th  a l l  sor ts  o f  th ings such as  

the  lega l i t y  o f  the  un i t ,  the  fac t  tha t  the  ex i s tence  o f  the  
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un i t  was never  den ied  by  anybody,  what  was den ied  is  tha t  

i t  was rogue,  tha t  i t  was i l l ega l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja .  

MR HUDMAN:    And tha t  i s  no t ,  you know what  i s  pu t  tha t  

Mr  Gordhan confessed to  supposed ly,  he  confessed to  the  

ex i s tence o f  the  Rogue Un i t .   My unders tand ing  is  tha t  

there  was a  un i t ,  tha t  un i t  ex is ted .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja .  

MR HUDMAN:    Not  tha t  i t  was rogue.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  10 

MR HUDMAN:    So  those issues are  a l l  dea l t  w i th  and i f  

the  pub l i ca t ion  takes p lace then we are  sa t is f ied  tha t  the  

fu l l  p ic tu re  has been p laced befo re  the  Commiss ion .   So in  

those c i rcumstances i t  wou ld  seem to  me to  be  somewhat  

less  than accommodat ing  to  the  t ime tha t  the  Commiss ion  

has fo r  me to  now embark  on  cross-examinat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes  okay,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Of  

course  you can speak to  Mr  Frank l in ,  pa r t i cu la r ly  i f  the  

a f f idav i t  has been redacted,  there  shou ld  be  no prob lem 

wi th  i t  be ing  pu t  on  the  webs i te  o f  the  Commiss ion .  20 

MR HUDMAN:    Yes.   I  assume tha t  the  reason why i t  had 

not  gone up was  tha t  the  issue o f  redact ions had not  ye t  

been f ina l i sed,  bu t  you know,  i f  I  s imp ly  p lace  on  reco rd  

tha t  we wou ld  expect  tha t  the  a f f idav i t s  go  up .  

CHAIRPERSON:    They go up,  ja .  
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MR HUDMAN:    As  soon as  poss ib le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  and tha t  shou ld  be  no p rob lem as fa r  

as  I  am concerned,  bu t  Mr  Frank l in  and h is  team wou ld  

check i f  there  i s  any prob lem.  

MR HUDMAN:    I t  seems to  me,  Mr  Cha i rperson,  tha t  i t  i s  

s imp ly  a  mat te r  o f  admin is t ra t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja .   No,  i t  i s  a  mat te r  o f  

admin is t ra t ion .  

MR HUDMAN:    Thank you very  much.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  I  can take  the  app l i ca t ion  as  10 

w i thdrawn.  

MR HUDMAN:    I  am jus t  no t  p ress ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  unders tand .   I  unders tand you.  

MR HUDMAN:    No,  I  cannot  w i thdraw i t ,  because my  

a f f idav i t ,  a lbe i t  the  second a f f idav i t ,  i s  in ,  i t  has  two 

purposes.   We want  to  pu t  up  fu r ther  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    You are  no t  ask ing  me to  make any 

orde r.  

MR HUDMAN:    We want  to  pu t  up  the  fu r ther  ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  20 

MR HUDMAN:    And to  mot iva te  the  app l i ca t ion ,  so  the  

a f f idav i t s  cannot  d isappear.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja ,  bu t  you are  no t  ask ing  me to  

make any orde r.  

MR HUDMAN:    I  am not  ask ing  you to  make an o rder.  



26 MAY 2021 – DAY 403 
 

Page 212 of 221 
 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR HUDMAN:    Bu t  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Four ie?  

MR FOURIE:     Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  Mr  Four ie?  

MR FOURIE:     Cha i r,  th is  i s  an  app l i ca t ion  fo r  leave to  

c ross-examine Mr  Monyane in  respect  o f  l im i ted  aspects  

re la t ing  to  the  ev idence prov ided by  my c l ien t ,  Mr  

F lock  Symington a t  a  p rev ious s i t t ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes?  10 

MR FOURIE:     Cha i r,  the  app l i ca t ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    And obv ious ly  based on what  went  on  in  

the  morn ing ,  you are  aware  o f  the  remarks  tha t  I  have 

made in  the  o the r  app l i ca t ion  in  the  morn ing .  

MR FOURIE:     Yes,  and I  take  note  o f  the  comment  tha t  

was made tha t  th is  i s  no t  the  cor rec t  fo rum and the re  is  no  

t ime to  s imp ly  indu lge  peop le  coming to  re fu te  a l l egat ions 

tha t  they have been less  than t ru th fu l ,  par t i cu la r l y  i f  they  

have not  been imp l ica ted  in  any way in  S ta te  Capture  and 

cer ta in ly  Cha i r,  my c l ien t  has no t  been imp l ica ted  by  20 

anyone in  anyth ing  to  do  w i th  S ta te  Captu re .    

He was rea l l y  a  v ic t im o f  c i rcumstances,  happened 

to  s tumble  ac ross what  we say,  we submi t  i s  g la r ing  

ev idence,  a  th read,  wh ich  when pu l led  ind i ca tes ,  g ives  one 

a  g l impse in to  the  abyss o f  S ta te Capture ,  bu t  why I  submi t  



26 MAY 2021 – DAY 403 
 

Page 213 of 221 
 

h is ,  a l low ing ve ry  l im i ted  c ross-examinat ion ,  and I  am 

happy to  commi t  to  a  l im i ted  t ime per iod  o f  say  45  minutes ,  

why I  submi t  tha t  may be in  the  in te res t  o f  the  Commiss ion ,  

i t  may ass is t  the  Commiss ion  in  eva lua t ing  the  c red ib i l i t y  

o f  Mr  Monyane ’s  ev idence and a l so  the  probab i l i t ies  o f  h is  

vers ion  as  compared to  the  numerous compet ing  vers ions 

they have tha t  a re  be fore  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  a reas d id  you want  to  cover?  

MR FOURIE:     In  par t i cu la r  i f  I  cou ld  draw your  a t ten t ion ,  

Cha i r,  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    What  I  do  reca l l  c lear l y  about  your  c l ien t  

i s  the  inc ident  o f  h is ,  I  th ink  k idnapp ing  might  no t  be  an  

inappropr ia te  word .  

MR FOURIE:     Cor rec t ,  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    When he was den ied ,  re fused the  

oppor tun i ty  to  leave a  par t i cu la r  room.  

MR FOURIE:     That  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  the  one  th ing  tha t  i s  upper  most  

in  my mind about  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR FOURIE:     Qu i te  cor rec t ,  Cha i r,  and tha t  rea l l y  i s  the  20 

hear t  o f  the  mat te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR FOURIE:     What  I  wou ld  seek leave to  exp lore  under  

c ross-examinat ion  o f  Mr  Monyane  is  why my c l ien t ,  who is  

a  tax  l awyer,  who spent  h is  who le  career  a t  SARS,  shuns  
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any  k ind  o f  l ime l igh t ,  why i t  was tha t  he  found h imse l f  in  

th is  d ramat ic  s i tua t ion  where  he  is  he ld  aga ins t  h is  w i l l  by 

members  o f  the  law enforcement  and the  Commiss ioner ’s  

own bodyguard  and where  a  document  wh ich  was 

inadver ten t ly  handed to  h im,  o f  wh ich  he  was unaware  a t  

the  t ime o f  any s ign i f i cance o f  i t ,  was taken f rom h im by 

fo rce  by  members  o f  the  Hawks.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you wou ld  pursue tha t  quest ion ing  

on  the  bas is  tha t  i t  wou ld  ach ieve  what  you are  seek ing  to  

p rove in  the  end.  10 

MR FOURIE:     Wel l ,  where  I  submi t  i t  may go  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  where  w i l l  i t  lead us?  

MR FOURIE:     What  i t  w i l l  show,  Cha i r,  I  submi t  i s  tha t  

Mr  Monyane was  ins t rumenta l  in  suppress ing  excu lpa to ry  

ev idence about  Mr  P i l lay,  Mr  Magashu la  and Min is te r  

Gordhan and tha t  he  was ins t rumenta l  in  w i thho ld ing  tha t  

ev idence,  the  excu lpa tory  ev idence f rom the  NDPP.   Had  

the  NDPP been g iven tha t  ev idence,  as  they shou ld  have 

been,  they probab ly  wou ld  never  have been charged as  20 

broad.   That  i s  where  I  have to  go  in  the  examinat ion ,  the  

cross-examinat ion  o f  Mr  Monyane.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then what  wou ld  tha t  mean in  the  

contex t  o f  the  te rms o f  re fe rence o f  the  Commiss ion? 

MR FOURIE:     Wel l ,  i t  wou ld ,  I  wou ld  submi t ,  a  s t rong  
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ind ica t ion  o f  par t i c ipa t ion  in  the  S ta te  Capture  Pro jec t ,  

be ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  speak more  about  tha t .  

MR FOURIE:     Very  we l l .   Be ing  the  dep loyment  o f  

Mr  Monyane in to  SARS by fo rmer  Pres ident  Zuma to 

ach ieve cer ta in  goa ls ,  one o f  wh ich  is  be ing ,  ge t t ing  r id  o f  

peop le  who are  obstac les  to  the  S ta te  Capture  Pro jec t ,  

namely  en fo rcement  o f f i c ia ls  who pose a  r i sk  to  o ther  

benef ic ia r i es  or  funds o f  S ta te  Capture  or  o f f i c ia ls  such as  

Mr  P i l lay  and potent ia l l y  Min i s te r  Gordhan who are  s imp ly  10 

obstac les  to  the  broader  S ta te  Capture  Pro jec t .   Now Mr  

Symington has been ca l led  a  fan tas i s t  by  Mr Monyane and  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  a l legat ions has Mr  Monyane made 

aga ins t  your  c l ien t?  

MR FOURIE:     What  he  says is ,  there  are  two pr imary  

a l legat ions he  makes,  Cha i r,  in  Mr  Monyane ’s  a f f idav i t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  le t  us  go  to  your  c l ien t ’s  

app l i ca t ion .   Where  does he says what  i t  i s  tha t ,  what  20 

a l legat ion  Mr  Monyane has made aga ins t  h im? 

MR FOURIE:     Cha i r,  my c l ien t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because such  an app l i ca t ion  must  be  

prompted by  a l legat ions made by  the  w i tness aga ins t  the  

app l i cant .  
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MR FOURIE:     Yes.   Cha i r,  on  beha l f  o f  my  c l ien t  my  

a t to rneys f i led  a  no t ice  in  te rms o f  Ru le ,  I  th ink  i t  i s  3 (4)  o f  

the  Ru les  o f  the  Commiss ion ,  to  c ross-examine  var ious  

peop le ,  inc lud ing  Mr  Monyane and  the  no t ice  i s  no t  

accompan ied by  the  a f f idav i t  wh ich  se ts  ou t  exac t ly  who 

sa id  what  and what  i ssues we seek  to  cross-examine  on.   I t  

s imp ly  re fers  to  Mr  S immington ’s  found ing  and rep l y ing  

a f f idav i t  in  the  commiss ion .   Now both  those a f f idav i t s  

were  f i led  pr io r  to  Mr  Monyane f i l i ng  h is  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You see,  you have got  to  make your  10 

case in  your  found ing  a f f idav i t ,  so  your  c l ien t  has  go t  to  

make h is  case fo r  leave to  c ross-examine Mr  Monyane in  

h is  a f f idav i t ,  he  need to  say th is  i s  what  Mr Monyane has  

sa id  about  me or  aga ins t  me and th is  i s  why i t  i s  so  

impor tan t  in  te rms o f  the  contex t  o f  the  funct ion  and or  

ob jec t i ves  o f  the  Commiss ion  and  te rms o f  re fe rence and 

th is  i s  how i t  a f fec ts  me and th i s  i s  how i t  w i l l  benef i t  the 

Commiss ion  i f  I  am a l lowed to ,  i f  I  am granted leave to  

c ross-examine.  

So I  wou ld  look a t  the  a f f idav i t  to  see what  case i s  20 

made out ,  tha t  i s  why I  say  what  a l legat ion  made by  

Mr  Monyane aga ins t  h im is  he  re ly ing  on?  

MR FOURIE:    Cha i r,  I  cannot  po in t  to  an  a f f idav i t  by  

Mr  Symington,  to  answer  the  Cha i rperson ’s  quest ion .   What  

I  can do is ,  i f  a l lowed,  f rom the  bar  po in t  to  Mr Monyane ’s  
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a f f idav i t  s imp ly  to  show the  two key a l legat ions wh ich  I  

seek leave to  tes t  in  c ross-examina t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  he  does not  re ly,  your  c l ien t  does  

not  re ly  on  those a l legat ions.  

MR FOURIE:    My c l ien t  has no t  deposed to  an  a f f idav i t  in  

wh ich  he  says,  in  wh ich  he  responds to  Mr  Monyane ’s  

a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   You see,  tha t  i s  go ing  to  be  

prob lemat ic ,  because I  look  a t  h is  a f f idav i t  to  see what  

case he has made out ,  you know,  and one o f  the  th ings I  10 

look a t  i s ;  why  does he want  to  c ross-examine th is  

par t i cu la r  w i tness?  What  has th i s  w i tness a l leged  aga ins t  

h im and what  does he have to  say about  those a l legat ions? 

MR FOURIE:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And i f  he  does not  say  th is  i s  what  th is  

w i tness has a l leged aga ins t  me and th is  i s  my  response 

then there  is  a  p rob lem.   Do you unders tand? 

MR FOURIE:     I  do ,  Cha i r.   I  must  submi t  tha t  

Mr  S immington ’s  vers ion  is  fu l l y  be fore  the  Commiss ion ,  

bo th  and h i s  two a f f idav i t s  and  a lso  in  h is  ex tens i ve  20 

ev idence tha t  he  has g iven.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR FOURIE:     And I  cer ta in l y  w i l l  no t  seek to  pu t  any  

propos i t ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    You accept  I  w i l l  no t ,  I  w i l l  no t  go  around 
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look ing  fo r  a l l  the  a f f idav i t s  here  as  f i led  in  the  

Commiss ion  when I  want  to  look  a t  what  h is  case is .  

MR FOURIE:     Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  have to  look  a t  h is  a f f idav i t  wh ich  is  

f i l ed  in  suppor t  o f  h is  app l i ca t ion  fo r  leave to  c ross-

examine.  

MR FOURIE:     Yes.   Cha i r,  may  I ,  I  do  Cha i r,  bu t  I  do 

submi t  tha t  there  is  a  b i t  o f  a  lacuna in  the  Ru les  o f  the  

Commiss ion  when i t  comes to  th is  t ype o f  app l i ca t ion  to  

c ross-examine by  someone who has not  been imp l ica ted  in  10 

S ta te  Capture .   The Ru les  dea l  w i th  g iv ing  peop le  the  r igh t  

to  rep ly  who have  been imp l ica ted .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  the  Ru les  seek to  g ive  on ly  peop le  

who are  imp l ica ted  by  a  pa r t i cu la r  w i tness the  r igh t  to  

app ly  fo r  leave to  c ross-examine.  

MR FOURIE:     Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Aga in  the  r igh t  to  app ly,  no t  the  r igh t  to  

c ross-examine,  so  you have got  to  b r ing  yourse l f  w i th in  the  

Ru les ,  Ru le  3(3)  o r  Ru le  3  to  say I  am an imp l ica ted  

person,  I  have been imp l ica ted  by  th is  w i tness and pa r t  o f  20 

what  I  was say ing  in  the  morn ing  is  i f  you  have been 

imp l ica ted  in  ac t s  o f  cor rup t ion ,  f raud o r  S ta te  Capture  

your  case migh t  be  much more  eas ier  than i f  your  

compla in t  i s  th i s  w i tness has imp l ica ted  me in  l y i ng ,  you 

know,  because he says th is  i s  what  I  sa id .   Rea l ly  in  the  
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con tex t  o f  what  we are  ta lk ing  about  i t  does not  go  in to  the  

b ig  p ic tu re ,  you see.  

MR FOURIE:     Cha i r,  I  cannot  re l y  on  the  Ru les .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR FOURIE:     I  have to  re ly  on  the  Regu la t ion  wh ich  g ive  

the  Cha i rpe rson  or  the  Commiss ion  an  over r id ing  

d iscre t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR FOURIE:     And the  key,  the  key fac tors  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    O f  course  I  w i l l  . . . [ in te rvenes]  10 

MR FOURIE:     A re  whether  the  ev idence w i l l  be  o f  

ass is tance to  the  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .  

MR FOURIE:     That  rea l l y  i s  the  key,  Cha i r  and I  submi t  to  

you tha t  you wou ld  have a  d i sc re t ion  and the  power  to  

g rant  leave to  a  w i tness who has g iven ev idence,  bu t  he  is  

no t  persona l ly  imp l ica ted  in  S ta te  Captu re ,  to  c ross-

examine and I  unders tand i t  i s  a  d iscre t ion  tha t  you  cou ld  

exerc ise  e i ther  way.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  20 

MR FOURIE:     Las t ly  Cha i r,  i f  I  cou ld  perhaps j us t  remind 

you tha t  you ment ioned th is  morn ing  tha t  the  r igh t  o f  an  

ind iv idua l  shou ld  a lways be taken in to  account .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR FOURIE:     My c l ien t  was to ta l l y  innocent ,  he  s tumbled  
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acc identa l l y  on to  a  th read wh ich ,  as  I  have sa id  when  

pu l led ,  exposes  a  g l impse in to  the  abyss.   He was  

k idnapped,  he  was he ld  aga ins t  h is  w i l l  by  law enfo rcement  

and then he was sub jec t  to  bogus charges and then  he los t  

h is  job .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  o f  course  you accept  tha t  he  has 

taken the  s tand,  he  has pu t  . . . [ in tervenes]  

MR FOURIE:    I  do .  

CHAIRPERSON:    The fac ts  as  he  knows them. .  

MR FOURIE:    I  do .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    The pub l i c  i s  aware  o f  h is  vers ion .  

MR FOURIE:    And you gave h im a  fa i r  and adequate  

hear ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR FOURIE:    There  is  no  doubt  about  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .  

MR FOURIE:    I t  rea l l y  wou ld  be  then jus t  to  cha l lenge  

Mr  Monyane w i th  the  hear t  o f  Mr  S immington ’s  ve rs ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR FOURIE:    Thank you.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t  thank you.   I  am not  go ing  

to  g ive  reasons,  bu t  i f  reasons are  asked fo r  they  w i l l  be 

prov ided.   Th i s  app l i ca t ion  is  d i smissed.   You were  done,  

Mr  Frank l in .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  le t  me ask counse l  fo r  Mr  Monyane 

whethe r  she w ishes to  ask  any c la r i f i ca tory  ques t ions or  

re -examinat ion  on  Mr  Monyane?  

UNKOWN COUNSEL:    Mr  Cha i rman,  thank you.   There  are  

no  quest ions f rom me.   Actua l l y  I  was go ing  to  ask  i f  

Mr  Monyane can then be excused f rom the  co ld  seat  there  

where  he  is .   There  are  no  quest ions.  

NO FURTHER QUESTIONS 

CHAIRPERSON:    There  are  no  quest ions,  okay.   Thank 

you.   Mr  Monyane,  we have come to  the  end o f  your  10 

ev idence and quest ion ing .   Thank you very  much fo r  

ava i l ing  yourse l f .   We are  go ing  to . . .   Le t  me a l low 

Mr  Frank l in  to  come back.   I  take  i t  tha t  you have noth ing  

fu r ther  to  say.  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    No,  tha t  conc ludes the  ques t ion ing ,  

thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   We are  go ing  to  ad journ  fo r  

the  day and in  t e rms o f  the  pub l i c  I  w i l l  j us t  ment ion  tha t  

we do not  have  any even ing  sess ion  th is  ev idence,  bu t  

tomorrow and Fr iday I  w i l l  hear  the  ev idence o f  Mr  Ano j  20 

S ingh aga in  in  re la t ion  to  the  Transnet  work  s t ream,  so  

there  is  no  even ing  sess ion  th is  even ing .  

ADV FRANKLIN SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you to  everybody.   We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 27 MAY 2021 


